
FEBRUARY MARCH 
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 

1 2   3    4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

   8   9 10 11 12 13 14 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31 

4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive NE #611 | Blaine, MN 55449 | T: 763-398-3070 | F: 763-398-3088 | www.ricecreek.org 

BOARD OF 
MANAGERS 

 Jess Robertson Michael J. Bradley Marcie Weinandt John J. Waller 
Anoka County Anoka County Ramsey County Ramsey County Washington County

RCWD BOARD OF MANAGERS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, February 11, 2026, 9:00 a.m. 

Mounds View City Hall Council Chambers 
2401 County Road 10, Mounds View, Minnesota 

Virtual Monitoring via Zoom Webinar 

Join Zoom Webinar: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88460139384?pwd=C80zJzLMnXF4DmQOVBnQGXpLige9Hb.1 

Passcode: 516265 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

Webinar ID: 884 6013 9384
Passcode: 516265 

Agenda 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

OPEN MIC/PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any RCWD resident may address the Board in his or her individual capacity, for up to three minutes, on any matter not on the 
agenda. Speakers are requested to come to the podium, state their name and address for the record.  Additional comments may 
be solicited and accepted in writing.  Generally, the Board of Managers will not take official action on items discussed at this 
time, but may refer the matter to staff for a future report or direct that the matter be scheduled on an upcoming agenda. 

SETTING OF THE AGENDA 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: JANUARY 28, 2026, REGULAR MEETING 

CONSENT AGENDA 
The following items will be acted upon without discussion in accordance with the staff recommendation 
and associated documentation unless a Manager or another interested person requests opportunity for 
discussion: 

Table of Contents-Permit Applications Requiring Board Action 
No. Applicant Location Plan Type Recommendation 
25-123 Lexington Meadows, LLC Blaine Final Site Drainage Plan CAPROC 8 items 

It was moved by Manager _____________ and seconded by Manager _____________, to approve 
the consent agenda as outlined in the above Table of Contents in accordance with RCWD District 
Engineer’s Findings and Recommendations, dated February 4, 2026. 

1



Agenda for the Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of February 11, 2026 Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Water Quality Grant Program Cost Share Application (Molly Nelson) 
No. Applicant Location Project Type Eligible 

Total Project 

Cost 

Pollutant 

Reduction 

Funding 

Recommendation 

R26-01 Scott 

Barnes 

1472 

County 

Road C2 

W, 

Roseville 

Raingarden 

& Porous 

Pavers 

  

$19,939.75 Vol: 3,695 

Cu-ft/yr 

TSS: 70.76 

Lbs/yr 

TP: 0.28 

lbs/yr 

Cost share of 

$9,969.87 not to 

exceed 50% of 

total eligible cost; 

or $10,000 

whichever cost is 

lower 

R26-02 White 

Bear 

Towns-

hip 

W Bald 

Eagle 

Blvd & 

St. 

Anthony 

Ave 

Shoreline 

Stabilization 

& 

Restoration 

$16,390.00 Vol: 3,931 

Cu-ft/yr 

TSS: 1,614.83 

Lbs/yr 

TP: 0.92 

lbs/yr 

Cost share of 

$8,195.00 not to 

exceed 50% of 

total eligible cost; 

or $10,000 

whichever cost is 

lower 

It was moved by Manager _____________ and seconded by Manager _____________, to 
approve the consent agenda as outlined in the above Table of Contents in accordance with 
RCWD Outreach and Grants Technician’s Recommendations, dated February 3rd, 2026. 

PUBLIC HEARING: 2026 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT GRANT PROGRAM 

ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION 
1. Annual Designation of Depository and Newspaper (Nick Tomczik) 

2. Jones Lake Outlet Modification, Dredging, and Restoration Project – Environmental Assessment 
Worksheet Findings of Fact (David Petry) 

3. Memorials to RCWD (Nick Tomczik) 

4. Check Register Dated February 11, 2026, in the Amount of $252,912.98 Prepared by 
Redpath and Company 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND INFORMATION 
1. District Engineer Updates and Timeline 

2. Administrator Updates 

3. Manager Updates 

2



APPROVAL OF MINUTES: JANUARY 28, 2026, REGULAR MEETING 
  

3



DRAFT 

 1 
For Consideration of Approval at the February 11, 2026 Board Meeting. 2 
Use these minutes only for reference until that time. 3 

 4 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE RCWD  BOARD OF MANAGERS 
Wednesday, January 28, 2026 

Mounds View City Hall Council Chambers 
2401 County Road 10, Mounds View, Minnesota 

and 
Meeting also conducted by alternative means  

(teleconference or video-teleconference) from remote locations 

Minutes 5 

CALL TO ORDER 6 

President Michael Bradley called the meeting to order, a quorum being present, at 9:00 a.m.  7 

 8 

ROLL CALL 9 

Present: President Michael Bradley, 1st Vice-Pres. John Waller, Treasurer, Marcie Weinandt, and 10 

Secretary Jess Robertson 11 

 12 

Absent: None 13 

 14 

Staff Present: Administrator Nick Tomczik, Regulatory Manager Patrick Hughes, Drainage & Facilities 15 

Manager Tom Schmidt, Program Technician Emmet Hurley (video-conference), 16 

Communications & Outreach Manager Kendra Sommerfeld, Lake & Stream Manager Matt 17 

Kocian, Project Manager David Petry, Office Manager Theresa Stasica 18 

 19 

Consultants: District Engineer Chris Otterness from Houston Engineering, Inc. (HEI) 20 

 21 

Visitors: Mark Fairbanks, Mike Perron 22 

 23 

OPEN MIC/PUBLIC COMMENT 24 

President Bradley noted that the District had received written communication from Laura Shira* concerning 25 

a new housing development in Blaine and the possible elimination of over 200 large oak trees, as well as 26 

concerns about the effect on local wildlife. 27 

 *The written communication is signed as Laura Currier 28 

Mike Perron, 7671 Peltier Lake Drive, and Mark Fairbanks, 7625 Peltier Lake Drive, addressed the Board 29 

and explained that their concerns remained the same as they had shared last year, primarily related to algae 30 

blooms and curlyleaf pondweed management. They expressed their appreciation to the District for their 31 

help in identifying issues on the lake, and their desire to identify and implement projects to address those 32 

issues. 33 

4



DRAFT 
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of January 28, 2026 Page 2 of 9 

 

Nyle Zikmund, Administrator, City of Mounds View, shared that they were planning to begin work on the 34 

ditch in Mounds View and thanked the Board for their involvement in this project.  He explained that he 35 

was here to celebrate, educate, and commemorate the project. He noted that they were planning to restore 36 

and expand the wetland, which will become the first wetland bank in Ramsey County and possibly the entire 37 

metro area.   38 

SETTING OF THE AGENDA 39 

Motion by Manager Robertson, seconded by Manager Weinandt, to approve the agenda as presented. 40 

Motion carried 4-0. 41 

 42 

READING OF THE MINUTES AND THEIR APPROVAL 43 

Minutes of the January 12, 2026, Workshop and January 14, 2026, Board of Managers Regular Meeting.  44 

Motion by Manager Robertson, seconded by Manager Weinandt, to approve the minutes as presented.  45 

Motion carried 4-0.  46 

 47 

CONSENT AGENDA 48 

The following items will be acted upon without discussion in accordance with the staff recommendation and 49 

associated documentation unless a Manager or another interested person requests an opportunity for discussion: 50 

Table of Contents-Permit Applications Requiring Board Action 51 

No. Applicant Location Plan Type Recommendation 52 

25-109 Harley A Carlotta Flor Blaine Final Site Drainage Plan CAPROC 7 items 53 

 Living Trust  Land Development 54 

   Wetland Alteration 55 

   Floodplain Alteration 56 

 57 

25-114 Sunset Rural Farms LLC Blaine Final Site Drainage Plan CAPROC 7 items 58 

   Land Development 59 

Regulatory Manager Hughes reiterated that the District had received written comment from Laura Shira*, 60 

who lives just east of the Flowerfield development.  He explained that she had wanted to address the 61 

Board, but was unable to attend the meeting, and he gave her the opportunity to submit her comments in 62 

writing. He noted that he had shared with her the District’s rules and regulations and how they had 63 

worked through the project. 64 

District Administrator Tomczik asked if the concerns noted by Ms. Shira were items addressed by the 65 

District rules. 66 

Regulatory Manager Hughes shared examples of Ms. Shira’s concerns and how some of them would be 67 

addressed through the District rules, but noted that others were related to land use authority and design, 68 

which is not something that could be addressed via District rules.   69 

5



DRAFT 
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of January 28, 2026 Page 3 of 9 

 

Manager Robertson explained that the City of Blaine was aware of both of these projects, including the 70 

concerns of the nearby residents, particularly for the Flowerfield project. She stated that the Blaine City 71 

Council had reviewed them at a recent workshop and noted that she could bring this feedback to the 72 

council if Ms. Shira doesn’t share it with them herself.  73 

President Bradley explained that Manager Robertson sits on the Blaine City Council.    74 

 *The written communication is signed by Laura Currier 75 

 76 

It was moved by Manager Waller and seconded by Manager Bradley to approve the consent agenda as 77 

outlined in the above Table of Contents in accordance with RCWD District Engineer’s Findings and 78 

Recommendations, dated January 20, 2026.  Motion carried 4-0. 79 

 80 

ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION  81 

1. RCWD Board Election of Officers 82 

Motion by Manager Bradley, seconded by Manager Weinandt, to approve the slate of existing 83 

officers, which included: Michael Bradley – President; John Waller – Vice President; Jess Robertson 84 

– Secretary; and Marcie Weinandt – Treasurer.  Motion carried 4-0. 85 

 86 

2. HEI Task Order 2026-004: Comprehensive Wetland Protection and Management Plans (CWPMP) 87 

Annual Reporting 88 

Regulatory Manager Hughes reviewed the proposed Houston Engineering Task order related to 89 

the Comprehensive Wetland Protection and Management Plans Annual reporting.  90 

 91 

Manager Weinandt confirmed that the $17,000 for this had already been included in the 2026 92 

budget.   93 

 94 

Motion by Manager Weinandt, seconded by Manager Bradley, to authorize the Board President 95 

to execute the HEI Task Order 2026-04 to prepare the 2025 CWPMP Annual Monitoring Report in 96 

an amount not to exceed $17,000. 97 

 98 

Manager Waller suggested that the Board have a discussion around the loss of capacity for water 99 

storage in the District and gave an example of Rice Creek in Hugo.   100 

 101 

District Administrator Tomczik stated that the annual budgetary District program review at 102 

forthcoming workshops may be a good opportunity for the Board to discuss this matter. 103 

 104 

Motion carried 4-0. 105 

 106 

3. HEI Task Order 2026-005: Hansen Park Iron-Enhanced Sand Filter (IESF) Rehabilitation 107 

6



DRAFT 
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of January 28, 2026 Page 4 of 9 

 

Drainage and Facilities Manager Schmidt reviewed the proposed Houston Engineering Task Order 108 

to evaluate the function of the Hansen Park IESF and reminded the Board that this had already 109 

been included in the 2026 budget. 110 

 111 

District Engineer Otterness noted that an important part of their evaluation would be looking at 112 

updating the operations and maintenance of the IESF. 113 

 114 

Manager Weinandt asked if the required work, following the study, would be done by District 115 

staff. 116 

 117 

Drainage and Facilities Manager Schmidt explained that the work he was envisioning would be 118 

necessary, would be a contractor, and not District staff.  119 

 120 

Manager Weinandt stated that the Board has had many discussions about the IESFs, and staff have 121 

also been having discussions with other watershed districts that also have them.  She asked if those 122 

discussions would continue and the District would learn as they go about how the IESFs work.  123 

 124 

District Administrator Tomczik acknowledged that the District has had several meetings regarding 125 

IESFs and planned to continue those meetings.  He stated that the IESF at Hansen Park was one of 126 

the first of its kind, and what they know today about them is different than what they knew when it 127 

was first designed and installed.  He noted that it is important for the Board and the public to know 128 

that the facility does indeed remove dissolved phosphorus from the water column.   129 

 130 

Manager Weinandt stated that this was an important facility for the District, especially as the Jones 131 

Lake project moves forward. 132 

 133 

President Bradley reminded the Board that the District had received grant money for this project 134 

and required a 25-year commitment to maintenance. 135 

 136 

Motion by Manager Weinandt, seconded by Manager Bradley, to approve Task Order 2026-005 137 

Hansen Park IESF rehabilitation, not to exceed $18,300, and further authorizes the District 138 

Administrator to sign the task order. 139 

 140 

Manager Waller stated that he realized there was a commitment from the District for maintenance.  141 

He noted that he would not vote against this Task Order, but wanted to point out that IESFs work 142 

really well when they work.  He stated that the problem with the IESFs has been that they don’t 143 

work consistently. He explained that he would like this study to help the District find some standard 144 

operating procedures that help them eliminate the constant loss of use of these facilities throughout 145 

the year.  146 

 147 

7



DRAFT 
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of January 28, 2026 Page 5 of 9 

 

District Administrator Tomczik agreed that there have been problems with these systems and noted 148 

that they are District facilities, so there will be ongoing maintenance activities that need to take 149 

place, similar to car ownership and the need to change the oil. He gave the example of an IESF 150 

maintenance activity that will be necessary, changing out the sand media and recognized that there 151 

will be ongoing costs.  152 

  153 

Motion carried 4-0. 154 

 155 

4. HEI Task Orders 2026-002: GIS and Ditch Records Maintenance; DrainageDB Annual Subscription 156 

& 2026-003: MS4Front Annual Subscription and Implementation Services 157 

District Administrator Tomczik explained that these were annual Task Orders for the District for the 158 

foundational tools of the District supporting the continuance of its work and gave a brief overview 159 

of what they covered. 160 

 161 

Manager Waller asked if the engineering firm would provide the software solutions. 162 

 163 

District Administrator Tomczik confirmed that HEI would provide the software solutions. 164 

 165 

Manager Waller asked what provisions were in place in case HEI stopped working with the District.  166 

 167 

District Engineer Otterness explained that the documents would be stored in the cloud, and if the 168 

District chose to go away from HEI, the District would simply download those documents, so they 169 

would have access to them.  He added that it has always been HEI’s policy that there would be no 170 

cost to the District for transferring documents should the District elect to use a different engineer. 171 

 172 

Manager Waller explained that he brought this up because there was an annual cost to the software. 173 

 174 

District Engineer Otterness noted that the majority of the Task Order was for the time HEI was 175 

putting in to manage the District’s data, and that the software subscription was a smaller portion of 176 

the cost. 177 

 178 

Board discussion  179 

 180 

Motion by Manager Bradley, seconded by Manager Weinandt, to approve HEI Task Order 2026-181 

002 in an amount not to exceed $23,000 and authorize the District Administrator to sign.  Motion 182 

carried 4-0. 183 

 184 

Motion by Manager Bradley, seconded by Manager Weinandt, to approve HEI Task Order 2026-185 

003 in an amount not to exceed $22,000 and authorize the District Administrator to sign.  Motion 186 

carried 4-0. 187 

 188 

8



DRAFT 
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of January 28, 2026 Page 6 of 9 

 

5. Winter Salt Week Proclamation 2026 189 

Communications and Outreach Manager Sommerfeld briefly reviewed the proposed proclamation 190 

for Winter Salt Week 2026.   191 

 192 

Motion by Manager Weinandt, seconded by Manager Bradley, to adopt the Winter Salt Week 193 

2026 Proclamation.   194 

 195 

President Bradley shared information about a salt alternative product called Chick Grit that he had 196 

started using on his property. 197 

 198 

Manager Waller stated that another alternative North Dakota has used is a byproduct from the 199 

sugar beet industry.    200 

  201 

Motion carried 4-0. 202 

 203 

WINTER SALT WEEK PROCLAMATION 204 

 205 

WHEREAS, all the salt applied to Rice Creek Watershed District’s roadways, parking lots, and 206 

sidewalks eventually ends up in our freshwater, polluting lakes, streams, and groundwater; and  207 

WHEREAS, chloride contamination is increasing statewide, with measurable impacts on our 208 

drinking water; and  209 

WHEREAS, even a small amount—just one teaspoon—can pollute five gallons of water to a 210 

level that is toxic for aquatic life, and removing salt from water is costly and challenging; and  211 

WHEREAS, winter maintenance best practices not only protect our freshwater resources, but 212 

also minimize damage to infrastructure and property and reduce harm to aquatic plants and 213 

animals while maintaining public safety; and  214 

WHEREAS, raising awareness among residents, businesses, and local governments about the 215 

responsible use of deicing salt is essential to balancing public safety with environmental 216 

stewardship; and 217 

WHEREAS, Winter Salt Week serves as an opportunity to educate our communities on smart 218 

salting practices, including effective application methods and environmental considerations; 219 

and 220 

WHEREAS, the residents of Rice Creek Watershed District can make meaningful contributions 221 

to salt pollution reduction by learning about smart salting practices, engaging in safe winter 222 

driving, and hiring trained service providers; and  223 

WHEREAS, the Rice Creek Watershed District is committed to promoting winter maintenance 224 

strategies that ensure public safety while protecting the health of our freshwater resources for 225 

present and future generations; and  226 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Rice Creek Watershed District proclaims January 26-30, 2026, as 227 

“WINTER SALT WEEK” 228 

And urges all residents, businesses, and state departments to take part in activities and 229 

9



DRAFT 
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of January 28, 2026 Page 7 of 9 

 

initiatives that promote the responsible use of deicing salt and encourage the adoption of 230 

winter maintenance strategies that maintain safety while reducing environmental harm. 231 

 232 

6. Anoka County Ditch 55 Branch #8 Transfer Petition Schedule 233 

Drainage and Facilities Manager Schmidt explained that the engineering report was completed, 234 

and staff are to consult with the Board to schedule the Public Hearing for the transfer petition for 235 

ACD-55 branch #8. He noted that staff was suggesting the Public Hearing be scheduled for 236 

February 25, 2026, during the Board’s regular meeting.   237 

 238 

Motion by Manager Waller, seconded by Manager Bradley, to schedule the ACD-55, Branch #8 239 

Transfer Petition Public Hearing for February 25, 2026, at 9:30 a.m. during the Board’s regular 240 

meeting.  Motion carried 4-0. 241 

 242 

7. Check Register Dated January 28, 2026, in the Amount of $289,479.64 and January Interim 243 

Financial Statements Prepared by Redpath and Company 244 

 245 

Motion by Manager Weinandt, seconded by Manager Bradley, to approve the check register 246 

dated January 28, 2026, in the Amount of $289,479.64 and the January Interim Financial 247 

Statements prepared by Redpath and Company.  Motion carried 4-0. 248 

 249 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND INFORMATION 250 

1. Chloride Pollution and the District’s Role 251 

Lake & Stream Manager Kocian gave a presentation regarding chloride pollution, which primarily 252 

comes from road salt application; outlined the problems it can bring, such as being toxic to many 253 

fish/invertebrates/amphibians; what the monitoring data show across the State and specifically 254 

within the District; demonstrating a trend of increasing chloride presence in surface waters and 255 

where there are chloride impairments in the District; what can be done to mitigate chloride 256 

pollution; and briefly reviewed the District’s role.  He referenced the recent proclamation for 257 

Winter Salt week and noted that the District regularly supports training and workshops related to 258 

smart salting.   259 

 260 

President Bradley suggested that Lake & Stream Manager Kocian could give this presentation at the 261 

upcoming City/County partner meeting in March.  262 

 263 

District Administrator Tomczik noted that the City/County partner meeting was scheduled for 264 

February 10, 2026, and staff could include chloride pollution in that meeting.  265 

 266 

2. Staff Reports 267 

10



DRAFT 
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of January 28, 2026 Page 8 of 9 

 

Manager Weinandt asked if there was an update on Jones Lake and explained that a question that 268 

arose when they were discussing was how to manage the legislative body's requests.  She asked 269 

Project Manager Petry had reached out to the cities to see if their lobbyists could also track this.  270 

 271 

District Administrator Tomczik stated that the District did not know if the District was included in 272 

the Governor’s bonding bill and noted that practically legislators would determine the District’s 273 

inclusion its session begins on February 17, 2026.   274 

 275 

Project Manager Petry reviewed the list of partners he had reached out to and possible funding 276 

through the State’s bonding bill, as well as grant applications. 277 

 278 

Manager Weinandt explained that she would advocate that the District have someone physically at 279 

the capital watching out for these interests. 280 

 281 

Manager Waller noted that there were other bills the District was interested in and hoped that staff 282 

were also working on those.  He stated that for working with the cities, even if they don’t have 283 

lobbyists, he would suggest speaking with their administrators and having them contact the correct 284 

individuals at the League of Minnesota Cities.  He suggested that they put together a map of the 285 

District and the various cities with their geographical limits superimposed on the map, along with 286 

the Senate and House districts, so they know the mayors, city administrators, and representatives 287 

for each city. He shared examples of other ways that may be useful to communicate and talk with 288 

individuals about these bills.   289 

 290 

3. February Calendar 291 

District Administrator Tomczik reiterated that the City/County partner meeting was scheduled for 292 

February 10, 2026.  293 

 294 

4. Administrator Updates 295 

District Administrator Tomczik stated that he and Project Manager Petry presented the City of New 296 

Brighton with the Mn Association of Floodplain Managers’ plaque for the Hansen Park project.  He 297 

noted that District staff have continued to work on water quality at Silver Lake and referenced things 298 

that are being looked at for White Bear Lake.  He noted the opening on the Board for a 299 

representative from Anoka County has been posted, and the county’s new manager appointment 300 

scheduled for later in February.   301 

 302 

5. Manager Updates 303 

Manager Waller referenced a recent article regarding the City of Hugo and how they had handled 304 

the Family Leave Act issue.  He explained that he had asked District staff to reach out to discuss.   305 

 306 

11



DRAFT 
Minutes for Rice Creek Watershed District Regular Board Meeting of January 28, 2026 Page 9 of 9 

 

ADJOURNMENT 307 

Motion by Manager Waller, seconded by Manager Robertson, to adjourn the meeting at 10:28 a.m.  308 

Motion carried 4-0. 309 

12



CONSENT AGENDA 
The following items will be acted upon without discussion in accordance with the staff recommendation 
and associated documentation unless a Manager or another interested person requests opportunity for 
discussion: 

Table of Contents-Permit Applications Requiring Board Action 
No. Applicant Location Plan Type Recommendation 
25-123 Lexington Meadows, LLC Blaine Final Site Drainage Plan CAPROC 8 items  

It was moved by Manager _____________ and seconded by Manager _____________, to 

approve the consent agenda as outlined in the above Table of Contents in accordance with 

RCWD District Engineer’s Findings and Recommendations, dated February 4, 2026.  

13



 

2/5/2026  CAPROC = Conditional Approval Pending Receipt of Changes Page 1 of 1 

 

RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

February 11, 2026 

 

  

It was moved by __________________________________ and seconded by 

 

______________________________ to Approve, Conditionally Approve Pending Receipt  

 

Of Changes, or Deny, the Permit Application noted in the following Table of Contents, in  

 

accordance with the District Engineer’s Findings and Recommendations, as contained in  

 

the Engineer’s Findings and Recommendations, as contained in the Engineer’s Reports  

 

dated February 4, 2026. 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Permit 

Application 

Number Applicant     Page  Recommendation 

Permit Location Map 15 

 

25-123 Lexington Meadows, LLC 16 CAPROC 

 

14



15



WORKING DOCUMENT: This Engineer’s 
report is a draft or working document of 
RCWD staff and does not necessarily reflect 
action by the RCWD Board of Managers. 

 

Houston Engineering Inc. Page 1 of 4 2/4/2026 

Permit Application Number: 25-123 

Permit Application Name: Magnifi Financial 

 
Applicant/Landowner: Permit Contact: 

Lexington Meadows LLC Contour Civil Design LLC 
Attn: Stephen B. Wellington Attn: Josephine Radach 
1625 Energy Park Drive Ste 100 P.O. Box 89 
Saint Paul, MN 55108 Rockford, MN 55373 
Ph: 651 292 9844 Ph: 612 730 2265 
swellington@wellingtonmgt.com jradach@contourcd.com 
            
 HTG Architects 
 Attn: Josh Longo 
 1010 Mainstreet, Suite 100 
 Hopkins, MN 55343 
 Ph: 952 204 3249 
 jlongo@htg-architects.com 
  
  
Project Name: Magnifi Financial 

Purpose: FSD – Final Site Drainage; Construction of a credit union building and associated parking 
and drive areas 

Site Size: 1.55 ± acre parcel / 1.4 ± acres of disturbed area; existing and proposed impervious areas 
are 0.105 ± acres and 0.883 ± acres, respectively  

Location: North Meadows plat corner of 109th Ave NE and 114th Ave NE, Blaine, MN 

T-R-S: SE ¼, Section 14, T31N, R23W 

District Rule: C, D 

Recommendation:  CAPROC 

It is recommended that this Permit Application be given Conditional Approval Pending Receipt of Changes 
(CAPROC) and outstanding items related to the following items: 

Conditions to be Met Before Permit Issuance: 

Rule D – Erosion and Sediment Control 

1. Submit the following information per Rule D.4: 

(c) Name, address and phone number of party responsible for maintenance of all erosion and 
sediment control measures.   

(i) A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan for projects that require an NPDES Permit.  

Administrative 

2. Email one final, signed full-sized pdf of the construction plan set. Include a list of changes that have 
been made since approval by the RCWD Board. Final plans must include the following: 

16



RCWD Permit Number 25-123 
 

Houston Engineering Inc  Page 2 of 4 2/4/2026 

• Ensure the EOF of underground system is shown 

3. The applicant must pay the deferred Water Management District Charges associated with this parcel. 
These charges were previously noticed to the landowner in conjunction with a public hearing which 
established the charges to be due upon development or redevelopment of the parcel. The charges 
are subject to change during the 12-month CAPROC term of this permit application. Therefore, the 
applicant must contact the District prior to submitting final payment to verify the amount to be paid to 
the District. 

PID: 14-31-23-44-0003 
Amount: $242.47 
RCWD Fund: 80-24 
 

4.  Submit a copy of the recorded plat or easements establishing drainage or flowage over stormwater 
management facilities, stormwater conveyances, ponds, wetlands, on-site floodplain up to the 100-
year flood elevation, or any other hydrologic feature (if easements are required by the City of Blaine).   

5. The applicant must submit a Draft Declaration for Maintenance of Stormwater Management Facilities 
acceptable to the District for proposed onsite stormwater management and pretreatment features.   

6. The applicant must provide an attested copy of any and all signed and notarized legal document(s) 
from the County Recorder.  Applicant may wish to contact the County Recorder to determine 
recordation requirements prior to recordation.  
 

7. The applicant must submit a cash surety of $2,600 along with an original executed escrow agreement 
acceptable to the District. If the applicant desires an original copy for their records, then two original 
signed escrow agreements should be submitted. The surety is based on $1,000 for 1.4 acres of 
disturbance, and $1,600 for 3,100 CF of storm water treatment.  
 

8. The applicant or contractor must provide a construction schedule for the underground system (or 
communicate when the schedule will be provided). A note shall be added to the final plans to contact 
the RCWD inspection prior to the installation. See Stipulation 2.  

Stipulations: The permit will be issued with the following stipulations as conditions of the permit.  By 
accepting the permit, applicant agrees to these stipulations:  

1. Provide an as-built survey of all stormwater BMPs (ponds, rain gardens, trenches, swales, etc.) to the 
District for verification of compliance with the approved plans before return of the surety. 

2. RCWD inspector must be notified prior to installation of underground system.  

Exhibits: 

1. Plan set containing 16 sheets dated 1-06-2026 and received 1-06-2025 

2. Permit application, dated 12-12-2025 and received 12-30-2025  

3. HydroCAD model, received 1/20/2026 containing the 2-year, 10-year and 100-year rainfall events for 
proposed conditions.  

4. Stormwater Calculations, dated 1-06-2026 and received 1-06-2025, containing narrative, drainage 
maps, HydroCAD report for the 2-inch rainfall event for proposed conditions. Geotechnical 
information (date) 

5. Permit file 19-110 

17



RCWD Permit Number 25-123 
 

Houston Engineering Inc  Page 3 of 4 2/4/2026 

Findings: 

1. Description – The project proposes to construct a credit union building and associated parking areas 
on a 1.553± acre parcel located in Blaine, MN.  The project will increase the impervious area from 
0.105± acres to 0.883± acres and disturb 1.4± acres overall. This site was previously mass graded 
under permit 19-110. The existing drainage pattern on site is that runoff drains southwest towards an 
existing storm sewer in Austin St. N, then towards an existing regional pond designed to provide rate 
control for this site (Pond 201 in permit 19-110), eventually draining to ACD 53-62 before draining to 
Golden Lake, the Resource of Concern. The proposed drainage pattern will route stormwater to a 
subsurface infiltration system on site, then towards the existing regional pond, and eventually towards 
ACD 53-62 which drains to Golden Lake.  The applicant has submitted a $3,000 application fee for a 
Rule C permit creating less than 5 acres of new and/or reconstructed impervious surface. 

2. Stormwater – The applicant is proposing the BMPs as described below for the project: 

Proposed BMP 
Description 

Location Pretreatment 
Volume 
provided 

EOF 

Underground 
infiltration system 

Western 
property line 

Sump manhole with 
SNOUT oil/debris 
stop 

3,175± cubic 
feet 

903.1* 

*Applicant to label 
 
Soils on site are primarily HSG A consisting of silty sands (SM) and sands (SP). Per Rule C.6(c)(1), 
the Water Quality requirement is 1.1-inches over the new/reconstructed area (0.778± acres) for a 
total requirement of 3,100± cubic feet.  

Adequate pre-treatment has been provided. Drawdown is expected within 48-hours using an 
appropriate rate of 0.8 inches per hour. The seasonal high water table is estimated at elevation 894.6, 
which provides a minimum of three feet of separation. The project is not located within a DWSM area. 
The applicant has treated 96% of the required impervious area.  Additional TSS removal is not 
practicable. The applicant has met all the Water Quality requirements of Rule C.6 and the design 
criteria of Rule C.9(c).  

The project is not located within the Flood Management Zone. The North Meadows development 
(permit 19-110) was developed under the assumption that Outlot J, which encompasses this site, 
would have 70% impervious area. The regional ponds were designed to provide rate control to 
accommodate this. Outlot J is 8.36 acres, allowing for 5.85 acres of impervious surfaces. 2.12 acres 
has been used under permit 25-106. This project will use 0.78 acres, leaving 2.95 acres for the 
remaining development of the lot. Thus, the applicant has complied with the rate control requirements 
of Rule C.7.     

The applicant has complied with the freeboard requirements of Rule C.9(h). The project discharges 
directly to ACD 53-62 Main Trunk and will not increase rates from existing conditions. As such, the 
project will not increase bounce or inundation.   

3. Wetlands – This project is in accordance with the wetland mitigation plan previously permitted under 
19-110, which included the WMC requirements. The WMC is not located on the project property. The 
project will not affect any additional wetlands.  

4. Floodplain – This project is in accordance with the floodplain mitigation plan previously permitted 
under permit 19-110. The project will not impact any additional floodplain. 

5. Erosion Control – Proposed erosion control methods include silt fence, rock construction entrances, 
inlet protection and erosion control blankets. The project will disturb more than 1 acre; an NPDES 
permit is required.  The SWPPP is located on plan sheet(S) C5.1 through C5.3. The information listed 
under the Rule D – Erosion and Sediment Control section above must be submitted. Otherwise, the 

18



RCWD Permit Number 25-123 
 

Houston Engineering Inc  Page 4 of 4 2/4/2026 

project complies with RCWD Rule D requirements. The project is within 1 mile of Unnamed ditch 
(Anoka County Ditch 53-62) which is impaired for nutrients. 

6. Regional Conveyances – Rule G is not applicable.  

7. Public Drainage Systems – Rule I is not applicable. 

8. Documenting Easements and Maintenance Obligations –Applicant must provide a draft maintenance 
declaration for approval, and a receipt showing recordation of the approved maintenance declaration 
and the drainage and flowage easements.  

9. Previous Permit Information – This site was graded under permit 19-110. The floodplain fill, rate 
control, WMD charges, and wetland mitigation are covered under 19-110. Permit 20-111 was applied 
for north of the site but not constructed. Permit 25-106 was applied for east of the site. 

 

I assisted in the preparation of this report under the supervision of the District Engineer. 
 

 

 

 

I hereby certify that this plan, specification or report was prepared by me or under my direct supervision and 
that I am a duly Registered Professional Engineer under the laws of the state of Minnesota. 

 

 

 

 

 
Katherine MacDonald, MN Reg. No 44590 

 

 
Josephine Khan, EIT 
 

02/04/2026

02/04/2026

19



20



21



Water Quality Grant Program Cost Share Application (Molly Nelson) 
No. Applicant Location Project Type Eligible Total 

Project Cost 

Pollutant 

Reduction 

Funding 

Recommendation 

R26-01 Scott 

Barnes 

1472 

County 

Road C2 

W, 

Roseville 

Raingarden & 

Porous Pavers 

  

$19,939.75 Vol: 3,695 

Cu-ft/yr 

TSS: 70.76 

Lbs/yr 

TP: 0.28 

lbs/yr 

Cost share of 

$9,969.87 not to 

exceed 50% of total 

eligible cost; or 

$10,000 whichever 

cost is lower 

R26-02 White 

Bear 

Towns-hip 

W Bald 

Eagle Blvd 

& St. 

Anthony 

Ave 

Shoreline 

Stabilization 

& Restoration 

$16,390.00 Vol: 3,931 

Cu-ft/yr 

TSS: 1,614.83 

Lbs/yr 

TP: 0.92 

lbs/yr 

Cost share of 

$8,195.00 not to 

exceed 50% of total 

eligible cost; or 

$10,000 whichever 

cost is lower 

It was moved by Manager _____________ and seconded by Manager _____________, to 
approve the consent agenda as outlined in the above Table of Contents in accordance with 
RCWD Outreach and Grants Technician’s Recommendations, dated February 3rd, 2026. 

  

22



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Rice Creek Watershed District  

1 | P a g e  

 

Date:  February 3rd, 2026 

To:  RCWD Board of Managers 

From:  Molly Nelson, Outreach and Grants Technician 

Subject: R26-01 Barnes Raingarden & Porous Pavers 

Introduction 
R26-01 Barnes Raingarden & Porous Pavers 

• Applicant: Scott Barnes 

• Location: 1472 County Road C2 W, Roseville, MN 

• Total Eligible Project Cost: $19,939.75 

• RCWD Grant Recommendation: $9,969.87 (50%) 
Background  
 The R26-01 Barnes Raingarden & Porous Pavers Water Quality Grant application proposes 2 raingardens 

with a retrofit of an existing swale and porous pavers on a residential property in Roseville. The 

benefitted waterway from the treatment and capture of stormwater in this project is Lake Josephine. 

The project scored a value of 14 on the Water Quality Grant program screening form and is eligible for 

the RCWD Water Quality Grant program. The Ramsey County Soil and Water Conservation Division 

(RSWCD) drafted the designs for the project and provided recommendations for a cost-share grant 

award which has been reviewed and approved by RCWD staff. 

The estimated pollutant reductions for the proposed project are: 

• Volume Reduction 

 Porous Pavers: 1,509 cu-ft/yr (61%) 

 Raingardens: 2,186 cu-ft/yr (33%) 

• Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 

 Porous Pavers: 35.08 lbs/yr (80%) 

 Raingardens: 35.68 lbs/yr (33%) 

• Total phosphorus (TP) 

 Porous Pavers: 0.12 lbs/yr (80%) 

 Raingardens: 0.16 lbs/yr (33%) 

 

The applicant obtained 1 bid for the project: 

• Sandstrom Land Management: $19,939.75 

The RSWCD provided a cost estimate amounting to $20,885.5, which is higher than the proposed bid on 

the project.  

 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on the submitted application and program guidelines, RCWD staff support the project award of 
$9,969.87 not to exceed 50% of eligible project expenses of $19,939.75 
 
Request for Proposed Motion 
Manager _________________ moves to authorize the RCWD Board President, on advice of counsel, to 
approve the Water Quality Grant Contract for R26-01 of $9,969.87 not to exceed 50% of eligible project 

23



costs or up to $10,000.00, whichever amount is lower, as outlined in the consent agenda and in 
accordance with the RCWD Staff’s recommendation and established program guidelines.   
 
Attachments 
R26-01 Barnes Raingarden & Porous Pavers application documents. 
 
 
 

 
 

 

24



 
 

 

25



To: RCWD Advisory Committee
From: Brian Olsen: Environmental Resource Specialist
Date: 1/20/2026
Re: Scott Barnes Cost Share Application

Ramsey County Soil & Water Conservation Division

1474 County Road C2 W.
Roseville, MN 55113
Raingarden & Porous Pavers

Project: R26-01

Background:

Recommendation:

The proposed project is located at a residential property in Roseville. Currently, the drainage on site runs 
towards the garage and around to the back of the house and eventually ends up entering a surface drain 
connected to the storm sewer without being properly treated. There is also an old swale around the other side 
of the property that is no longer function as designed to help capture driveway runoff.

The proposed project is to install porous pavement at the main collection point of the driveway with an 
underdrain that routes into the backyard and connects to an area with an existing dry well beneath the lawn. 
Also, the swale will be re-graded and retrofitted with native plants to better collect runoff and direct it to a new 
raingarden on the side of the house. Both of the projects are designed to collect the runoff before it enters the 
storm sewer and ultimately flows into Lake Josephine. The raingarden will also be planted with native species 
to provide pollinator resources throughout the growing season. The project will capture a large amount of 
stormwater to remove pollutants and infiltrate the water into the ground before it enters the surface waters. An 
additional raingarden is designed to be included in the backyard for a potential future project to enhance and 
collect additional runoff, but is not being installed at this time.

Total catchment area treated by the proposed project is 5,777 square feet (0.133 acres). It is 37% impervious 
and includes driveway, roofs, and landscape/turf grass.

It is my recommendation that the Scott Barnes project be awarded cost share in the amount of $9,969.87 or 
50% of the eligible project costs, whichever is less.

2015 Van Dyke Street • Maplewood, MN 55109 • Telephone 651-266-7270 • Fax 651-266-7276
www.ramseycounty.us

Pollution Reductions: Porous Pavers

Pollution Reductions: Raingarden

Material & Labor Estimate: $19,939.75
Cost Share Request: $9,969.87

1

Before After Reduction Red. %
Volume (cu-ft/yr) 2,493 983 1,509 61%
TSS (lbs/yr) 43.81 8.73 35.08 80%
TP (lbs/yr) 0.1532 0.0300 0.1233 80%

Before After Reduction Red. %
Volume (cu-ft/yr) 6,537 4,351 2,186 33%
TSS (lbs/yr) 107.90 72.22 35.68 33%
TP (lbs/yr) 0.4843 0.3247 0.1596 33%

26



EXHIBIT A: Site Drainage

RAMSEY COUNTY SWCD
2015 VAN DYKE STREET

MAPLEWOOD, MN 55109
651-266-7280

www.ramseycounty.us

PROJECT:
LOCATION:

WATERSHED DISTRICT:

DESIGNER:
DATE:
REVISION:
REVISION:
REVISION:
REVISION:
CHECKED BY:
TAA:

L100
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

NOTES:

SCALE:

BARNES RESIDENCE

1474 COUNTY ROAD C2 W
ROSEVILLE, MN 55113

RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT

LACEY DOUCET CAMPBELL
8/7/2025

 

BTO

-CONTACT GOPHER STATE ONE CALL TO
CONFIRM UTILITY LOCATIONS
-ELEVATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE,
SITE VERIFY
-VERIFY ANY BID ALTERNATES OR ONSITE
CHANGES WITH SWCD STAFF PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION
-ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 11"x17"

1" = 20'-0"

 

EXISTING
EVERGREEN TREE

[TYP]

DRIVEWAY

914'

916'

PROPOSED RAINGARDEN B  [355 SF]

PROPOSED RAINGARDEN A  [360 SF]

PROPOSED POROUS PAVERS [310 SF]

PROPOSED DRAINTILE [90 LF TOTAL]

PROPOSED BIOSWALE  [240 SF]

BIOSWALE

RAINGARDEN FLAT BASIN

RAINGARDEN 3H:1V SIDE SLOPE

MIXED SIZE ROCK 

PLAN
LEGEND:

0 10 20 ft

2' CONTOUR

PROPERTY LINE [APPROX]

1474 COUNTY ROAD C2 W

COUNTY ROAD C2 W

EXISTING CANOPY 
TREE [TYP]

GENERAL PROJECT NOTES:

1. CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE UTILITIES PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK 
AND SECURE ANY NECESSARY PERMITS. CONFRIM WITH RCSWCD 
STAFF IF ANY UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CONFLICT WITH PROPOSED 
PROJECT LOCATIONS.
2. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE ANY REQUIRED TEMPORARY EROSION 
CONTROL AS NEEDED DURING INSTALLATION.
3. CONTRACTOR TO PROTECT ALL TREES IN/NEAR PROJECT AREA 
DURING INSTALLATION UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON PLANS OR BY 
LANDOWNER REQUEST.

2
27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



County: Ramsey
Number of BMPs: 1 of 3 Date: 8/8/2025

Item Qty Unit  Unit Cost Amount
Sod/Vegetation Removal; Raingarden Excavation/Grading & Soil Haul-Away 15.00 CY 120.00$              1,800.00$            
(use excavated soils onsite as possible before soil haul-away)
Ripped Sub-Grade Soils 1.00 LS 750.00$              750.00$               
Regrade Swale area; direct flow into raingarden 1.00 LS 1,500.00$           1,500.00$            
Soil Amendment (80% Washed No.2 Sand; 20% MnDOT Grade II Compost) 7.00 CY 110.00$              770.00$               
Aggregate: River Rock (Clean, washed (2-6") or equivalent) 0.25 TON 200.00$              50.00$                 
Geotex 401 (or Mirfani 140N: Non-woven geotextile, or equal) 10.00 SF 3.50$                  35.00$                 
Shovel Cut Natural Edge; or approved equivalent edging material 100.00 LF 3.00$                  300.00$               
Twice-Shredded Hardwood Mulch (MnDot Type II) 5.50 CY 110.00$              605.00$               
Native Perennial: 4" Pot; or equivalent [include 1 year plant warranty] 181.00 EA 12.00$                2,172.00$            
Mobilization 1.00 LS 1,000.00$           1,000.00$            

Subtotal 8,982.00$            

Subtotal -$                     

Project Estimate 8,982.00$            
:-10% 8,083.80$            
:+10% 9,880.20$            

Estimated WD/WMO Grant Award: 4,491.00$            
Estimated RCPR Grant Award: -$                     

Potential Grant Award Total: 4,491.00$            
Estimated Landowner Cost: 4,491.00$            

Soil & Water Conservation Division
2015 Van Dyke Street
Maplewood, MN 55109
www.ramseycounty.us

ADDITIONAL BID ITEMS AS NECESSARY

PROJECT TOTAL

ALL ITEMS AS SPECIFIED BELOW ARE FOR REFERENCE USE ONLY

Scott Barnes
1474 County Rd C2 W
Roseville, MN 55113
BMP Type: Raingarden B

INSTALLED MATERIALS & LABOR - RAINGARDEN B

36

http://www.ramseycounty.us/


County: Ramsey
Number of BMPs: 3 of 3 Date: 8/8/2025

Item Qty Unit  Unit Cost Amount
Aggregate: 3/8" Angular Granite 2.50 TON 200.00$                    500.00$                      
Aggregate: 1.5" Angular Granite 4.75 TON 210.00$                    997.50$                      
Aggregate: 2"-4" Angular Granite 10.75 TON 210.00$                    2,257.50$                   
Asphalt/Concrete Removal & Haul Away 370.00 SF 5.00$                        1,850.00$                   
Soil & Base Excavation, Grading & Haul-Away 14.25 CY 90.00$                      1,282.50$                   
4" Perferated PVC Drain Tile Pipe - incl. fittings, install, etc. 33.00 LF 12.00$                      396.00$                      
4" Solid PVC Draint Tile - incl. fittings, install, two clean-outs, etc. 58.00 LF 12.00$                      696.00$                      
Paver Restraint 14.00 LF 6.00$                        84.00$                        
Porous Pavers 310.00 SF 6.00$                        1,860.00$                   
Asphalt Patching 60.00 SF 8.00$                        480.00$                      
Mobilization 1.00 LS 1,500.00$                 1,500.00$                   

Subtotal 11,903.50$                 

Subtotal -$                            

Total Project Estimate 11,903.50$                 
:-10% 10,713.15$                 
:+10% 13,093.85$                 

Estimated WD/WMO Grant Award: $5,951.75
Potential Grant Award Total: $5,951.75
Estimated Landowner Cost: $5,951.75

Soil & Water Conservation Division
1425 Paul Kirkwold Drive
Arden Hills, MN 55112
www.ramseycounty.us

ADD/DEDUCT BID ITEMS (AS NECESSARY)

PROJECT TOTAL

Scott Barnes

ALL ITEMS AS SPECIFIED BELOW ARE FOR REFERENCE USE ONLY

1474 County Rd C2 W
Roseville, MN 55113
BMP Type: Porous Pavers

INSTALLED MATERIALS - POROUS PAVERS

Cost Estimate - Barnes

37

http://www.ramseycounty.us/


38



MEMORANDUM 

Rice Creek Watershed District 

1 | P a g e

Date: 

To: 

From: 

February 3rd, 2026 

RCWD Board of Managers 

Molly Nelson, Outreach and Grants Technician 
R26-02 White Bear Shoreline Stabilization & Restoration Subject: 

Introduction 
R26-02 White Bear Township Shoreline Stabilization & Restoration 

• Applicant: The City of White Bear Township

• Location: Intersection of W Bald Eagle Blvd & St. Anthony Ave

• Total Eligible Project Cost: $16,390.00

• RCWD Grant Recommendation: $8,195.00 (50%)
Background  
The R26-02 White Bear Township Shoreline Stabilization & Restoration Water Quality Grant application 

proposes a shoreline restoration project on a public parcel on White Bear Lake Locke Lake. The project 

location was identified by RCWD staff while conducting field work on White Bear Lake and was noted 

that severe erosion could be spotted from the boat on the lake. RCWD, RSWCD, and city staff met at the 

site to evaluate the state of the shoreline and determined a stabilization project was necessary. The 

project scored a value of 14 on the Water Quality Grant program screening form and is eligible for the 

RCWD Water Quality Grant program. The Ramsey County Soil and Water Conservation Division (RSWCD) 

drafted the designs for the project and provided recommendations for a cost-share grant award which 

has been reviewed and approved by RCWD staff.   

The estimated pollutant reductions for the proposed project are: 

• 3,931 cu-ft/yr reduction in volume (73%)

• 1,614.83 lbs/yr reduction in total suspended solids (TSS) (99%)

• 0.92 lbs/yr total phosphorus (TP) (92%)

The applicant obtained 1 bid for the project: 

• Sandstrom Land Management: $16,390.00

The RSWCD provided a cost estimate amounting to $19,831.00, which is higher than the proposed bid 

on the project.   

Staff Recommendation 
Based on the submitted application and program guidelines, RCWD staff support the project award of 
$8,195.00 not to exceed 50% of eligible project expenses of $16,390.00 

Request for Proposed Motion 
Manager _________________ moves to authorize the RCWD Board President, on advice of counsel, to 
approve the Water Quality Grant Contract for R26-02 of $8,195.00 not to exceed 50% of eligible project 
costs or up to $10,000.00, whichever amount is lower, as outlined in the consent agenda and in 
accordance with the RCWD Staff’s recommendation and established program guidelines.   

Attachments 
R26-02 White Bear Township Shoreline Stabilization & Restoration application documents. 

39



40



To: RCWD Advisory Committee
From: Brian Olsen: Environmental Resource Specialist
Date: 1/20/2026
Re: White Bear Township Shoreline Cost Share Application

Ramsey County Soil & Water Conservation Division

Intersection of W. Bald Eagle Blvd & St. Anthony Ave
White Bear Township, MN 55110
Shoreline Stabilization & Restoration

Project: R26-02

Background:

Recommendation:

The proposed project is located at a small Township park property along the south shoreline of Bald EagleLake 
where W. Bald Eagle Blvd intersects St. Anthony Ave. The existing shoreline is experiencing significant erosion, 
with extensive areas of exposed soil along a steep cut-face bank. This ongoing erosion is contributing sediment 
and associated pollutants into Bald Eagle Lake, negatively impacting water quality and shoreline stability.

The proposed project involves shoreline stabilization and restoration using a combination of riprap and 
bioengineering techniques to regrade, properly slope, and stabilize the existing shoreline. In addition, a native 
shoreline planting buffer will be installed to enhance long-term stability, provide pollinator habitat, and help 
filter stormwater runoff from the adjacent park property and roadway. This site was identified by Ramsey 
County Watershed District (RCWD) staff as a priority restoration area along the Bald Eagle Lake shoreline. 
Implementation of this project will stabilize the shoreline, reduce sediment inputs to the lake, and establish a 
resilient, vegetated lake edge that supports long-term ecological health and habitat value.

Total catchment area treated by the proposed project is 3,980 square feet (0.091 acres). It is 40% impervious 
and includes road, sidewalk, and landscape/turf grass.

It is my recommendation that the White Bear Township Shoreline project be awarded cost share in the amount 
of $8,195.00 or 50% of the eligible project costs, whichever is less.

2015 Van Dyke Street • Maplewood, MN 55109 • Telephone 651-266-7270 • Fax 651-266-7276
www.ramseycounty.us

Pollution Reductions: Porous Pavers

Material & Labor Estimate: $16,390.00
Cost Share Request: $8,195.00

1

Before After Reduction Red. %
Volume (cu-ft/yr) 5,385 1,483 3,931 73%
TSS (lbs/yr) 1,635.60 20.77 1,614.83 99%
TP (lbs/yr) 0.994 0.075 0.919 92%

41



EXHIBIT A: Site Drainage

RAMSEY COUNTY SWCD
2015 VAN DYKE STREET

MAPLEWOOD, MN 55109
651-266-7280

www.ramseycounty.us

PROJECT:

LOCATION:

WATERSHED DISTRICT:

DESIGNER:
DATE:
REVISION:
REVISION:

CHECKED BY:
TAA:

L100

SI
TE

 P
LA

N

NOTES:

SCALE:

BALD EAGLE SHORELINE AT ST.
ANTHONY AVE & BALD EAGLE BLVD

W BALD EAGLE BLVD & 
ST ANTHONY AVE INTERSECTION
WHITE BEAR TOWNSHIP, MN 55110

RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT

8/19/2025
 

BTO

-ELEVATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE
-UTILITY LOCATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE,
CONFRIM LOCATIONS PRIOR TO WORK
-CONTRACTOR AQUIRE NECESSARY
PERMITS PRIOR TO START
-ORIGINAL SHEET SIZE: 11"x17"

1"= 10'0"

HH

LACEY DOUCET CAMPBELL

910

912

914

916

W BALD EAGLE BLVD

EXISTING PICNIC
TABLE AND 
CONCRETE PAD

PROPOSED NATIVE PLANTING

PROPOSED BIO D-BLOCK

LEGEND

PROPOSED FIELD STONE RIP RAP PROPOSED SILT FENCE

EXISTING SAND BEACH

2' CONTOUR

PROPERTY LINE [APPROX]

0 5 10 15 ft

EXISTING BENCH

EXISTING 
STORM DRAIN

EXISTING 
GARBAGE CANS

BALD EAGLE LAKE
OHW: 911.87'

PROPOSED
NATIVE PLANTING
444 SQ FT

PROPOSED
NATIVE PLANTING
305 SQ FT

EXISTING 
SAND BEACH

28'-1"

4'-9"

18'-1"

6'-0"

7'-0"

4'-11"

8'-0"

9'-11"

STEEL EDGING  ALONG
NATIVE PLANTING BEDS
162.5 LF TOTAL

EXISTING 
FENCE LINE

EXISTING 
FENCE LINE

EXISTING 
SHORELINE
[APPROX.]

TWO ROWS OF PROPOSED
BIO-D BLOCKS [12" DIA]
66 LF TOTAL

 PROPOSED RIP RAP
102 SQ FT
45 LF

PROPOSED RIP RAP 
OR ROCK SPASH AREA
AT MOUTH OF STORM DRAIN

6'-7"4'-6"

914

910

916

SHORE STABILIZATION NOTES:
1. REMOVE ALL EXISTING VEGETATION WITHIN PROPOSED 
PROJECT AREA.

2. WATER-SAFE HERBICIDE APPLICATIONS MINIMUM, OR 
EQUIVALENT MECHANICAL REMOVAL METHOD.

3. CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL ADEQUATE SEDIMENT AND 
PERIMETER CONTROLS DURING SOIL DISTURBANCE & GRADING 
ACTIVITIES [I.S. SILT FENCE OR FLOATING SILT CURTAIN AS 
NEEDED.]

4. PROJECT LAYOUT, TOTAL AREA, AND MATERAILS MAY VARY 
WITH RCSWCD APPROVAL. VERIFY FINAL LAOUT WITH 
LANDOWNER/RCSWCD PRIOR TO HERBICIDE APPLICATION.

5. EAST SIDE OF SHORELINE: INSTALL BIO D-BLOCK SOIL LIFTS 
ALONG SHORELINE AT LOCATIONS SHOWN ON PLAN [9”x16”x10']. 
INSTALL TWO ROWS WITH 12” OFFEST BETWEEN THEM TO 
CREATE TIERED SLOPE. SEE NOTES AND SPECIFICATIONS ON 
SHEET L400.

6. MIDDLE OF SHORELINE: MAINTAIN SANDY SLOPED “BEACH” 
AREA IN APPROXIMATE AREA SHOWN ON PLAN. 

7 EAST SIDE OF SHORELINE: INSTALL NATURAL FIELD STONE RIP 
RAP [6-24” MIXED SIZE BOULDERS OR EQUIVALENT MIX]. INSTALL 
PER DNR SPECIFICAITONS AND DETAILS/NOTS PROVIDED ON 
SHEET L500.

7. INSTALL NATURAL FIELD STONE RIP RAP TO ARMOR AREA IN 
FRONT OF EXSITING STORM SEWER OUTLET. EXCAVATE SOME 
SOIL & REMOVE PRIOR TO PLACING THE RIP RAP.

8. INSTALL 3”-THICK TWICE SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH IN 
AREAS ABOVE BIO D-BLOCK & RIP RAP.

9. PLANT PROPOSED NATIVE AREAS WITH SPECIES PER 
PLANTING PLAN ON SHEETS L200 & L300. EXACT SPECIES, 
QUANTITIES & LAYOUT MAY VARY WITH RCSWCD STAFF 
APPROVAL. MAINTAIN APPROXIMATE SQUARE FOOT SIZE OF 
PLANTING.

10. INSTALL STEEL EDGING BETWEEN PROPOSED PLANTING 
AREAS & EXISTING TURF/LAWN. INSTALL FLUSH WITH GRADE.

11. RESTORE ANY LANDSCAPE/LAWN DAMAGE OUTSIDE OF 
PROPOSED PROJECT AREAS. SEED AREAS TO TURF GRASS OR 
BEE LAWN/CLOVER MIXTURE. VERIFY WITH LANDOWNER AND 
RCSWCD STAFF PROPOSED LAWN RESTORATION 
METHODS/SPECIES PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

2
42



43



44



45



46



47



White Bear Township - Shoreline
OPINION OF COST
DATE: 8/21/2025

Item # Item Description Unit Estimated Quantity Unit Price Item Cost

1 NATIVE PERENNIAL/SHRUB: 4" POT EA 188.00 12.00$             2,256.00$           
2 NATIVE SHRUB: 2 GALLON EA 18.00 20.00$             360.00$              
3 NATIVE TREE: 10 GALLON EA 3.00 250.00$          750.00$              
4 TREE WATERING BAGS: TREEGATOR OR EQUIV. EA 3.00 25.00$             75.00$                 
5 TEMPORARY EXCLUSION FENCE LF 205.00 5.00$               1,025.00$           
6 MULCH MATERIAL TYP 6 (2-3" DEPTH) CY 7.00 115.00$          805.00$              
7 EDGING [STEEL] LF 75.00 14.00$             1,050.00$           
8 GRADING (SHORELINE SHAPING AS NEEDED FOR 3H:1V SLOPE MAX) CY 15.00 150.00$          2,250.00$           
9 RIP RAP FILTER ROCK (1.5" WASHED ANGULAR ROCK) TON 3.00 200.00$          600.00$              

10 RIP RAP ROCK (NATURAL FIELD STONE 6-24" DIAMETER) TON 12.00 260.00$          3,120.00$           
11 BIO D-BLOCK 16-400 [9"x16"x10'] LF 66.00 65.00$             4,290.00$           
12 MOBILIZATION LS 1.00 1,500.00$       1,500.00$           
13 PERIMITER/SEDIMENT & EROSION CONTROL AS NEEDED LS 1.00 1,000.00$       1,000.00$           
14 SITE RESTORATION – (TURF/LANDSCAPE REPAIR AS NEEDED) LS 1.00 750.00$          750.00$              

Project Subtotal 
10,000.00$         

9,831.00$           

19,831.00$                                                                                       

ESTIMATED LANDOWNER COST
ESTIMATED RCWD GRANT

48



49



PUBLIC HEARING: 2026 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT GRANT 

PROGRAM 
  

50



MEMORANDUM 

Rice Creek Watershed District 

1 | P a g e

Date: January 28th, 2026 

To: RCWD Board of Managers 

From: Will Roach, Watershed Technician/Inspector 

Subject: 2026 Stormwater Management Grant Program – Public Hearing 

Introduction 

District staff will host a public hearing to receive comments from the public regarding the six eligible 
Stormwater Management Grant applications.  

Background 

The District received six applications from four different applicants for funding through its 2026 
Stormwater Management Grant Program. These Applications are attached to this memo. District 
staff will provide a summary presentation during a duly noticed public hearing to be held on 
February 11th, 2026, during the Board’s regular meeting. No action will be taken druing February 11th 
meeting. After public comment, the Board is invited to to ask questions or provide preliminary 
comments to District staff regarding the applications. Board action on the applications is scheduled 
for the February 25th, 2026, Board meeting. A summary of the applications can be found on the 
following page.  

Attachments 
Stormwater Management Grant Applications (6). 

Note: Submitted answers to SMG 2026 Application Forms may be incomplete when presented via certain 
formats, including printed paper. To accommodate, 'Expanded Answers' sections have been added, 
immediately following each Application Form.

51



MEMORANDUM 

Rice Creek Watershed District 

2 | P a g e

1. Arden Hills – 2026 PMP Street & Utility Improvements (Karth Pond) 
a. Target Waterbody: Karth Lake & Valentine Lake
b. Total Project Cost: $174,583
c. Requested Grant: $87,291.50

2. Arden Hills – 2026 PMP Street & Utility Improvements (Karth SAFLs) 
a. Target Waterbody: Karth Lake, Valentine Lake, and Wetland Area
b. Total Project Cost: $61,105
c. Requested Grant: $30,552.50

3. Lino Lakes – Regenerative Air Sweeper & Enhanced Street Sweeping 
a. Targeted Waterbody: Rice Creek Chain of Lakes, Peltier, Baldwin, Bald Eagle.
b. Total Project Cost: $425,000
c. Requested Grant: $100,000

4. New Brighton – Knollwood Pond Overflow 
a. Targeted Waterbody: Rice Creek & Knollwood Pond
b. Total Project Cost: $250,000
c. Requested Grant: $100,000

5. Shoreview- Target Pond Improvements 
a. Targeted Waterbody: Valentine Lake
b. Total Project Cost: $163,545
c. Requested Grant: $81,772.50

6. Shoreview – 2026 Storm Improvements 
a. Targeted Waterbody: Island Lake
b. Total Project Cost: $570,000
c. Requested Grant: $100,000

52



I. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Organization (to be named as Grantee): 
Street Address: 

City, State, Zip: 
Tax Status: Tax ID#: 

(e.g., local government, non-profit 501(c)(3), private business, etc.)

II. PROJECT CONTACTS

Project Officer: Financial Officer: 

Title: Title: 
Telephone: Telephone: 

Fax: Fax: 
Email: Email: 

III. PROJECT INFORMATION
Project Name: 

Location(s) of Project: 
City: State: County: 

Project Start Date: Project Completion Date: 

Project Type (check only those that directly apply):

Water Quality Treatment Project Stormwater Reuse Irrigation Project
Peak Runoff Rate Control Project   Runoff Volume Control / Flood Storage Project 
Other: 

Is a RCWD Rule C permit required for this project? YES NO UNKNOWN
IV. GRANT REQUEST

RCWD Grant Funding Requested: $  

Applicant Match Funding Committed: $  

Total Estimated Project Cost: $    

Would you be willing to accept grant funding in an amount less than requested? YES NO

V. SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT
I certify that the information contained within this application is true and accurate.

Signature of Project Officer Date

Rice Creek Watershed District 
Stormwater Management Grant Program 

2026 Application Form

Water 
Peak Runoff Rate Control Project
Other: 

53



Page 2 of 4

VI. Executive Summary / Abstract 

Include a brief Executive Summary (100 words or less) that summarizes the main goals and activities of 
the project and the expected environmental outcomes that will be achieved. Identification of the total 
amount of funds being requested along with the required match. The summaries will be used in the grant 
review process and on the RCWD website for projects that are funded. 

 
 

VII. Description (10 points) 
The RCWD has established guidelines for prioritizing projects based on location. Water quality 
improvement projects should be located to benefit a RCWD lake classified as either “Protection” or 
“Restoration” (see Table 2-4 in the RCWD 2020 Watershed Management Plan), and/or a waterbody with 
an approved Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) study or other recognized diagnostic water quality study. 
Flood storage and runoff rate control projects should focus on reducing peak flood elevations in known 
regional flood hazard areas and/or documented local problem areas. Describe the specific watershed 
management, water quality or quantity need(s) that the project will address and its impact on the target 
water resource within the District. 

 
Name the target waterbody benefiting from this project:   

List and describe the Best Management Practices (BMPs) to be incorporated into this project

If applicable, describe how the project impacts or protects RCWD groundwater resources, minimizes 
impervious surfaces, and/or maximizes infiltration.

Provide drawings, maps and/or schematics which graphically illustrate the location and conceptual 
design of the project. (Attach separate sheets.)

Describe how long-term operation and maintenance of the project will be accomplished and identify the 
individual(s) responsible for maintenance activities if different than the project officer listed in section 2.

54



Page 3 of 4 

VIII. Prioritization (20 points)
How does the project support existing regional planning efforts such as the RCWD Watershed 
Management Plan, municipal surface water management plans, TMDLs, or other recognized diagnostic 
studies? Is the project included on the Member Community Project List (Appendix G) within the RCWD 
Watershed Management Plan? Please provide citations where possible.

IX. Targeting (15 points) 
Describe the critical pollution or flooding sources and risks addressed by this project. Explain why the 
proposed project is the most cost-effective and feasible means to attain the expected resource benefits. 
Has a formal analysis been conducted to substantiate this position?

X. Measurable Outcomes (20 points)

Provide a detailed estimate and description of the anticipated pollutant reduction, stormwater 
rate/volume reduction, groundwater withdrawal reduction, and/or other environmental or natural 
resource benefits associated with the project. Describe the methods and cite the sources (i.e. P8 model, 
HydroCAD, XP-SWMM, MIDS, MN Stormwater Manual, etc.) used to calculate or estimate the pollutant 
reductions and/or hydrologic outcomes. (Mandatory for RCWD to consider your proposal!)

55



Page 4 of 4 

XI. Cost-Effectiveness (15 points)

Provide a detailed budget that lists each item for which funding is being requested. You must also list the 
sources of required local matching contributions. Please provide a summary that demonstrates why this 
is the most cost-effective approach to solving the problem. Or, have other alternatives been explored, 
and if so, why were they determined to not be the best alternative? What is the anticipated lifespan of 
the practice? (Attach separate sheets if needed.)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
XII. Project Readiness (10 points) 
Please describe the anticipated timeline for implementing this project. What steps have been taken to 
ensure that the project can be implemented according to this timeline? Are any permits needed? 
(If permits are required please cite from what agency and where the project is in that process). 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
XIII. Engagement Opportunities (10 points) 
Demonstrate any potential for public engagement, education and demonstration and describe what 
methods will be used to ensure that the purpose and success of the project are made known to the 
public. Applicants must incorporate a public engagement component into the project. 

56



57



58



 

 

59



 

60



 

61



 

62



 

 

63



 

 

 

 

64



65



Expanded Answers: Arden Hills Karth Pond

Section VI Executive Summary & Abstract 
The City of Arden Hills proposes a stormwater pond with the 2026 PMP Street & Utility 
Improvements project. This pond will provide water quality treatment by reducing 
sediment and phosphorus before runoff enters Karth Lake. The improvement supports 
watershed protection goals, aligns with recommendations from the Southwest Urban 
Lakes Study, and complements other planned BMPs with the project, including sump 
structures with SAFL Baffles and the Karth Lake pumping system retrofit. The total cost for 
the proposed work is estimated to be $174,583.00. Arden Hills requests $87,291.50 in 
RCWD grant funding (50% of eligible costs) to implement this BMP. 

Section VII Description 
List and describe the Best Management Practices (BMPs) to be incorporated into this 
project.

The 2026 PMP Street & Utility Improvements project includes the construction of a 
stormwater pond designed to provide dedicated water quality treatment before runoff 
discharges to Karth Lake and ultimately Valentine Lake. Stormwater ponds improve water 
quality through physical, biological, and chemical processes, with the primary treatment 
occurring as sediment and associated pollutants settle to the bottom of the permanent 
pool. The permanent pool prevents resuspension, increasing long-term pollutant removal 
effectiveness. 

If applicable, describe how the project impacts or protects RCWD groundwater 
resources, minimizes impervious surfaces, and/or maximizes infiltration. 

The project maintains a net-zero increase in impervious surface, ensuring no additional 
runoff is generated within the watershed. The stormwater pond is designed to maximize 
treatment within the available project area by slowing, storing, and filtering runoff before it 
reaches Karth Lake and, ultimately, Valentine Lake. Together with the SAFL Baffle BMPs 
proposed elsewhere in the project, the pond enhances pollutant removal and reduces 
downstream loading, supporting RCWD goals for lake protection and restoration 
identified in the Watershed Management Plan and the Southwest Urban Lakes Study. 

66



Describe how long-termoperation and maintenance ofthe project will be 
accomplished and identify the individual(s)responsible for maintenance activitiesif 
differentthan the project officer listed in section 2. 

The stormwater pond is designed to reduce sediment and phosphorus loading prior to 
discharge into Karth Lake, and ultimately Valentine Lake. By capturing and settling 
sediment within the pond, the amount of material reaching Karth Lake will be reduced, 
lowering long-term sediment accumulation and decreasing the frequency and cost of 
future lake maintenance activities such as dredging. Routine inspections and sediment 
removal will be completed by City staff in accordance with MS4 requirements, including 
annual inspections of structural stormwater BMPs and additional inspections as needed. 

Section VIII Prioritization 

This project supports RCWD goals identified in the Watershed Management Plan by 
advancing water quality protections for Karth Lake, and ultimately Valentine Lake, 
resources highlighted for improvement in local and regional planning. The stormwater 
pond is Phase 2 of the previously completed Karth Lake BMP #1 project, included on the 
Member Community Project List, reinforcing its priority status within the watershed. The 
pond also aligns with recommendations in the Southwest Urban Lakes Study, which 
identifies the need for enhanced stormwater treatment to protect and restore urban lake 
systems. In addition, the BMP complements other coordinated improvements in the Karth 
Lake subwatershed, including the planned pumping retrofit/cost-share effort and 
installation of sump structures with SAFL Baffles. Collectively, these actions strengthen 
pollutant removal, increase watershed resilience, and advance RCWD priorities for long-
term lake protection. 

Section IX Targeting 

Runoff from the contributing drainage areas currently carries sediment and phosphorus to 
Karth Lake, affecting water quality and contributing to long-term maintenance needs such 
as dredging. The proposed stormwater pond will help address these issues by capturing 
sediment and providing permanent pool treatment before water reaches Karth Lake and, 
ultimately, Valentine Lake. Because the pond is being constructed as part of the larger 
2026 PMP Street & Utility Improvements project, it offers a cost-effective opportunity to 
add meaningful water quality treatment without the additional expense of a standalone 
project. This coordinated approach provides substantial pollutant reduction while 

minimizing new infrastructure costs. 

67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



Expanded Answers: Arden Hills Karth SAFL 

Section VI Executive Summary & Abstract 

The City of Arden Hills proposes installing two sump storm sewer structures with SAFL 
Baffles as part of the 2026 PMP Street & Utility Improvements project. These BMPs will 
remove sediment and phosphorus from stormwater before it enters Karth Lake and 
adjacent wetlands, improving water quality and reducing long-term maintenance needs. 
The total cost for the proposed work is estimated to be $61,105. Arden Hills requests 
$30,552.50 in RCWD grant funding (50% of eligible costs) to implement these 
improvements alongside a planned stormwater pond BMP, supporting regional water 
quality goals identified in the Southwest Urban Lakes Study. 

Section VII Description 

List and describe the Best Management Practices (BMPs) to be incorporated into 
this project.

The 2026 PMP Street & Utility Improvements project addresses water quality concerns by 
installing two sump storm sewer structures with SAFL Baffles upstream of outfalls to 
Karth Lake and an adjacent wetland. SAFL Baffles are a stormwater pretreatment systems 
that are installed with a sump storm sewer manhole structure to provide stormwater 
quality treatment by removing sediment, and harmful chemicals (such as phosphorus) 
that cling to the surface area of sediment, from stormwater, which keeps it out of 
downstream water bodies. It works by capturing and retaining sediment, by stopping the 
rotating scour action that takes place during high flow conditions. 

If applicable, describe how the project impacts or protects RCWD groundwater 
resources, minimizes impervious surfaces, and/or maximizes infiltration. 
The project will maintain net-zero impervious surface and enhance regional water 
quality. The sump & SAFL Baffle structure improvements, along with a planned 
stormwater pond BMP within the same project, maximize treatment benefits to Karth 
Lake, an adjacent wetland, and ultimately, Valentine Lake. Together, these measures 
support RCWD goals for lake protection and restoration identified in the Watershed 
Management Plan and the Southwest Urban Lakes Study. 

84



Describe how long-term operation and maintenance of the project will be 
accomplished and identify the individual(s) responsible for maintenance 
activities if different than the project officer listed in section 2. 

Each structure will be inspected at least annually (or more frequently if deemed 
necessary over the first season of operation) by city maintenance staff. As the SAFL 
Baffle captures sediment which settles into the sump, staff will utilize a Vac Truck to 
remove the accumulated sediment and ensure proper operation of the structure is 
maintained. By capturing sediment and phosphorus before discharging to surrounding 
water bodies, the sump & SAFL Baffle structures will reduce pollutant loading and long-
term maintenance needs for Karth Lake and adjacent wetlands. 

Section VIII Prioritization 

This project supports RCWD’s Watershed Management Plan goals for lake protection 
and restoration by improving water quality in Karth Lake, and ultimately Valentine Lake, 
resources identified in regional planning efforts. The proposed BMPs align with 
recommendations in the Southwest Urban Lakes Study, which highlights the need for 
enhanced stormwater treatment in urban lake watersheds. Additionally, these 
improvements complement the City’s broader efforts in the Karth Lake area, including a 
planned pumping retrofit and cost-share initiative, and the installation of a stormwater 
pond BMP within the 2026 PMP project. Together, these actions advance RCWD 
objectives for pollutant reduction and watershed resilience. The sump & SAFL Baffle 
structure improvements are not identified on the Member Community Project List. 

Section IX Targeting 

The current stormwater system conveys sediment and pollutants to lakes and 
wetlands, creating pollution risks that degrade water quality and increase dredging 
and maintenance needs. These pollutants impact aquatic habitats and reduce 
system performance. Installing sump structures with SAFL Baffles offers a practical, 
cost-effective solution by capturing sediment at the source without major 
infrastructure changes. SAFL Baffles retrofit easily into existing structures and 
provide measurable pollutant reduction at a relatively low cost. Additional research 
can be found at the following website: 
https://upstreamtechnologies.us/docs/SAFL/SAFL-Baffle-Research-Summary.pdf 

85



I. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Organization (to be named as Grantee):
Street Address:

City, State, Zip:
Tax Status: Tax ID#:

(e.g., local government, non-profit 501(c)(3), private business, etc.)

II. PROJECT CONTACTS

Project Officer: Financial Officer: 

Title: Title: 
Telephone: Telephone: 

Fax: Fax: 
Email: Email: 

III. PROJECT INFORMATION
Project Name:

Location(s) of Project:
City: State: County: 

Project Start Date: Project Completion Date: 

Project Type (check only those that directly apply):

Water Quality Treatment Project Stormwater Reuse Irrigation Project
Peak Runoff Rate Control Project Runoff Volume Control / Flood Storage Project 
Other: 

Is a RCWD Rule C permit required for this project? YES NO UNKNOWN
IV. GRANT REQUEST

RCWD Grant Funding Requested: $

Applicant Match Funding Committed: $

Total Estimated Project Cost: $

Would you be willing to accept grant funding in an amount less than requested? YES NO

V. SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT
I certify that the information contained within this application is true and accurate.

Signature of Project Officer Date

Rice Creek Watershed District 
Stormwater Management Grant Program 

2026 Application Form

Water
Peak Runoff Rate Control Project
Other:

86



Page 2 of 4

VI. Executive Summary / Abstract

Include a brief Executive Summary (100 words or less) that summarizes the main goals and activities of 
the project and the expected environmental outcomes that will be achieved. Identification of the total 
amount of funds being requested along with the required match. The summaries will be used in the grant 
review process and on the RCWD website for projects that are funded. 

VII. Description (10 points)
The RCWD has established guidelines for prioritizing projects based on location. Water quality 
improvement projects should be located to benefit a RCWD lake classified as either “Protection” or 
“Restoration” (see Table 2-4 in the RCWD 2020 Watershed Management Plan), and/or a waterbody with 
an approved Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) study or other recognized diagnostic water quality study. 
Flood storage and runoff rate control projects should focus on reducing peak flood elevations in known 
regional flood hazard areas and/or documented local problem areas. Describe the specific watershed 
management, water quality or quantity need(s) that the project will address and its impact on the target 
water resource within the District. 

Name the target waterbody benefiting from this project:

List and describe the Best Management Practices (BMPs) to be incorporated into this project

If applicable, describe how the project impacts or protects RCWD groundwater resources, minimizes 
impervious surfaces, and/or maximizes infiltration.

Provide drawings, maps and/or schematics which graphically illustrate the location and conceptual 
design of the project. (Attach separate sheets.) 

Describe how long-term operation and maintenance of the project will be accomplished and identify the 
individual(s) responsible for maintenance activities if different than the project officer listed in section 2. 

87



Page 3 of 4 

VIII. Prioritization (20 points)
How does the project support existing regional planning efforts such as the RCWD Watershed 
Management Plan, municipal surface water management plans, TMDLs, or other recognized diagnostic 
studies? Is the project included on the Member Community Project List (Appendix G) within the RCWD 
Watershed Management Plan? Please provide citations where possible.

IX. Targeting (15 points) 
Describe the critical pollution or flooding sources and risks addressed by this project. Explain why the 
proposed project is the most cost-effective and feasible means to attain the expected resource benefits. 
Has a formal analysis been conducted to substantiate this position?

X. Measurable Outcomes (20 points)

Provide a detailed estimate and description of the anticipated pollutant reduction, stormwater 
rate/volume reduction, groundwater withdrawal reduction, and/or other environmental or natural 
resource benefits associated with the project. Describe the methods and cite the sources (i.e. P8 model, 
HydroCAD, XP-SWMM, MIDS, MN Stormwater Manual, etc.) used to calculate or estimate the pollutant 
reductions and/or hydrologic outcomes. (Mandatory for RCWD to consider your proposal!)

88



Page 4 of 4 

XI. Cost-Effectiveness (15 points)

Provide a detailed budget that lists each item for which funding is being requested. You must also list the 
sources of required local matching contributions. Please provide a summary that demonstrates why this 
is the most cost-effective approach to solving the problem. Or, have other alternatives been explored, 
and if so, why were they determined to not be the best alternative? What is the anticipated lifespan of 
the practice? (Attach separate sheets if needed.)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
XII. Project Readiness (10 points) 
Please describe the anticipated timeline for implementing this project. What steps have been taken to 
ensure that the project can be implemented according to this timeline? Are any permits needed? 
(If permits are required please cite from what agency and where the project is in that process). 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
XIII. Engagement Opportunities (10 points) 
Demonstrate any potential for public engagement, education and demonstration and describe what 
methods will be used to ensure that the purpose and success of the project are made known to the 
public. Applicants must incorporate a public engagement component into the project. 

89



90



Annual Comparisons of Phosphorus Yield (per volume calculations) for mechanical sweeper versus Projected RAS 

2022 2023 2024 2025

Mechanical 
Sweeper (lbs)

Projected 
RAS (lbs)

Mechanical 
Sweeper 
(lbs)

Projected 
RAS (lbs)

Mechanical 
Sweeper 
(lbs)

Projected 
RAS (lbs)

Mechanical 
Sweeper 
(lbs)

Projected 
RAS (lbs)

spring 145.16 311.06 163.99 351.4 159.48 341.75 185.27 397.01
summe 149.93 321.29 202.05 432.96 76.4 163.71 150.89 323.33
fall 257.55 551.89 292.44 626.66 289.41 624.21 301.78 646.67
total 552.64 1184.24 658.48 1411.02 525.29 1129.67 637.94 1367

Calculated average with Mechanical sweeper = 593.6 lbs/year
Projected average with regenerative air sweeper = 1272.9 lbs/year

Annual 
Operation 

Cost*

Total P 
Yield 

(mech 
sweeper)

$/lb P 
Spring

$/lb P 
Summer $/lb P Fall

2022 $65,059 552 lbs $192.08 $123.98 $72.17
2023 $91,819 658 lbs $157.47 $163.31 $112.83
2024 $84,692 525 lbs $157.35 $328.45 $119.22
2025 $100,151 638 lbs $151.04 $263.40 $107.31

*Annual cost for each years sweeping activities derived from Cartegraph
 (Lino Lakes asset management software - accounts for labor, equipment cost, fuel & depreciation)

91



Expanded Answers: Lino Lakes  Regenerative Air Sweeper 

Section VI Executive Summary & Abstract 

The City of Lino Lakes wishes to initiate an enhanced sweeping program with the purchase 
of a regenerative air sweeper (RAS).  The additional sweeper would be used in tandem with 
our existing mechanical sweeper to more efficiently and frequently remove pollutants 
citywide and within priority areas designated to receive additional sweeping throughout the 
sweeping season.  The City is requesting $100,000 to help facilitate the purchase of the 
sweeper.  Lino Lakes will contribute the balance of the purchase (approx. $325,000) if the 
grant were approved. 

Section VII Description 

List and describe the Best Management Practices (BMPs) to be incorporated into this 
project. 

The City intends to incorporate a Regenerative Air Sweeper (RAS) into our street sweeping 
practices.  By utilizing both a mechanical and RAS sweeper, the City would more efficiently 
remove phosphorus and other pollutants from our roadways.  Regenerative Air Sweepers 
are proven to remove the fine dust/particles that are left behind by a mechanical sweeper.  
It is these fine particles that carry and release the highest concentrations of pollutants to 
the environment.  A sweeper comparison study* found regenerative air sweepers showed 
significantly higher debris pick up efficiency (75%) compared to a mechanical broom 
sweeper (35%).  A similar study** shows when RAS sweepers are used in tandem with 
mechanical sweepers, cleaning efficiency can approach 90%.  

Areas proposed to receive additional fall sweeping include subdivisions discharging 
stormwater to receiving waters without treatment and subdivisions with fully developed 
tree canopies.  In some locations both conditions occur.  The priority areas total 28.2 miles 
of curbed road.  This is currently 30.6% of our curbed roadways. 

The increase in efficiency along with more frequent sweeping efforts, particularly in the fall, 
will result in a substantially improved street sweeping program. 

*City of Los Angelas/Larry Walker Associates

**Roger Sutherland MSCE, P.E. Cascade Water Resources 

92



If applicable, describe how the project impacts or protects RCWD groundwater 
resources, minimizes impervious surfaces, and/or maximizes infiltration. 

Enhanced sweeping would provide additional opportunities to remove pollutants before 
they reach our infiltration BMPs, thereby protecting groundwater resources.  Removing 
sediment from the road before it is deposited in infiltration BMPs would also help extend 
the life of those BMPs.  Areas with raingardens, permeable pavers and our underground 
storm chamber are included in our targeted sweeping area. 

Section VIII Prioritization 

The Lino Lakes Chain of Lakes TMDL, the Peltier and Centerville Lakes TMDL, and the Bald 
Eagle TMDL each identify excess nutrients as a primary impairment. The adoption of an 
increased/targeted sweeping program by the City would directly reduce phosphorus and 
other nutrients discharged to each of the lakes included in these TMDLs.   99.6% of Lino 
Lakes maintained roads are within the RCWD. 

Section IX Targeting 

The critical pollutant targeted with sweeping is phosphorus. The risk addressed is the 
accelerated eutrophication caused by the presence of excess phosphorus.  As a first line of 
defense, sweeping is recognized to be the most cost-effective practice to reduce 
phosphorus loading.  The University of Minnesota Water Resources Center suggests that 
street sweeping can be up to 10 times more cost effective than structural phosphorus 
removal practices.  The second most efficient phosphorus removal practice, catch basin 
cleaning structures, are known to be 6 to 40 times more expensive per pound P removed 
(John Sansalone University of Florida 2019).  Sweeping operations should be optimized for 
maximum pollutant removal before structural practices are considered.  Lino Lakes is able 
to reduce nutrients delivered to any one of three approved TMDLs nearly every time the 
sweeper is utilized.    

Section X Measurable Outcomes 

The City of Lino Lakes has kept meticulous records of the volume of material removed from 
our streets.  Using volume to mass calculation guidance provided within the MN 
Stormwater Manual, along with the MPCA Phosphorus Credit Calculator, we estimated the 
lbs phosphorus collected by our mechanical sweeper for each of the past three seasons 

93



and compared the data to the anticipated results of a regenerative air sweeper (supporting 
calculations attached).  Per the previously cited 2011 sweeper comparison study, we 
assume a 35% pick up efficiency with our existing mechanical sweeper and a 75% pick up 
efficiency with a proposed regenerative air sweeper.  Calculations estimate 579 lbs P are 
currently removed on average annually with our mechanical sweeper compared to the 
expected average of 1,242 lbs P removal per year with a regenerative air sweeper.  This 
represents a 114% increase in phosphorus yield by simply replacing our existing sweeper 
with a regenerative air sweeper and continuing with our existing program.  After consulting 
with MPCA staff familiar with the comparison study, it was suggested this increase may be 
slightly high for a RAS alone but is certainly achievable with a tandem sweeping program.   

Further, our enhanced sweeping plan targets 28.2 miles of asphalt for additional sweeping 
efforts.  The Clean Sweep quick estimating tool (QET) predicts an additional 60% increase 
in Phosphorus removal by adding three additional fall sweeping efforts to our target area, 
increasing our estimated phosphorus yield to 1,987 lbs annually. 

In summary, estimates via the MPCA Phosphorus Credit Calculator and the Clean Sweep 
Quick Estimating Tool show that we can reasonably expect to triple our phosphorus yield 
with the integration of a regenerative air sweeper into an enhanced sweeping program. 

If approved, staff with the U of M and the Clean Sweep program have expressed a 
willingness to include Lino Lakes in extensive free material testing for a research study on 
street sweeping materials.  This would allow us to monitor our phosphorus yield and 
ensure we are achieving our reduction goals.  Lino Lakes has independently submitted 11 
sweeping samples to the U of M laboratory for analysis from our fall 2026 sweeping efforts.  
We intend to continue to collect samples throughout the seasons to obtain the most 
representative results from the MPCA Phosphorus Credit Calculator.  

Section XI Cost Effectiveness 

Sweeping is recognized as the most cost-effective nonstructural practice to remove 
pollutants before they enter runoff.  Studies cited in the Minnesota Stormwater Manual-
Street Sweeping for Trees (Kalinosky et al 2012, 2013) show that spring & fall sweeping yield 
removal rates at $18 - 28 per lbs. of P removed, mid-summer rates can be "several 
hundred" $ per lbs., and an average optimized rate could be $40 to $110 per lbs. P 
removed.  The months of March, April, October and November are shown to have a cost 
efficiency of less than $100/lbs of phosphorus removed (Kalinosky et al.,2013 Prior Lake).  

94



Our own cost-effectiveness calculations using data generated from the phosphorus credit 
calculator and our city asset management software (Cartegraph) range from $72 to $328 
per lb total P removed.  Our overall average is $158 per lb P removed. 

In comparison, catch basin cleaning structures (generally regarded as the second most 
efficient BMP for phosphorus removal) are shown to range from $1,600 to $12,000 per lb P 
removed (John Sansalone University of Florida 2019). 

95



I. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Organization (to be named as Grantee):
Street Address:

City, State, Zip:
Tax Status: Tax ID#:

(e.g., local government, non-profit 501(c)(3), private business, etc.)

II. PROJECT CONTACTS

Project Officer: Financial Officer: 

Title: Title: 
Telephone: Telephone: 

Fax: Fax: 
Email: Email: 

III. PROJECT INFORMATION
Project Name:

Location(s) of Project:
City: State: County: 

Project Start Date: Project Completion Date: 

Project Type (check only those that directly apply):

Water Quality Treatment Project Stormwater Reuse Irrigation Project
Peak Runoff Rate Control Project   Runoff Volume Control / Flood Storage Project 
Other: 

Is a RCWD Rule C permit required for this project? YES NO UNKNOWN
IV. GRANT REQUEST

RCWD Grant Funding Requested: $

Applicant Match Funding Committed: $

Total Estimated Project Cost: $

Would you be willing to accept grant funding in an amount less than requested? YES NO

V. SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT
I certify that the information contained within this application is true and accurate.

Signature of Project Officer Date

Rice Creek Watershed District 
Stormwater Management Grant Program 

2026 Application Form

Water
Peak Runoff Rate Control Project
Other:

96



Page 2 of 4

VI. Executive Summary / Abstract 

Include a brief Executive Summary (100 words or less) that summarizes the main goals and activities of 
the project and the expected environmental outcomes that will be achieved. Identification of the total 
amount of funds being requested along with the required match. The summaries will be used in the grant 
review process and on the RCWD website for projects that are funded. 

 
 

VII. Description (10 points) 
The RCWD has established guidelines for prioritizing projects based on location. Water quality 
improvement projects should be located to benefit a RCWD lake classified as either “Protection” or 
“Restoration” (see Table 2-4 in the RCWD 2020 Watershed Management Plan), and/or a waterbody with 
an approved Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) study or other recognized diagnostic water quality study. 
Flood storage and runoff rate control projects should focus on reducing peak flood elevations in known 
regional flood hazard areas and/or documented local problem areas. Describe the specific watershed 
management, water quality or quantity need(s) that the project will address and its impact on the target 
water resource within the District. 

 
Name the target waterbody benefiting from this project:   

List and describe the Best Management Practices (BMPs) to be incorporated into this project

If applicable, describe how the project impacts or protects RCWD groundwater resources, minimizes 
impervious surfaces, and/or maximizes infiltration.

Provide drawings, maps and/or schematics which graphically illustrate the location and conceptual 
design of the project. (Attach separate sheets.)

Describe how long-term operation and maintenance of the project will be accomplished and identify the 
individual(s) responsible for maintenance activities if different than the project officer listed in section 2.

97



Page 3 of 4 

VIII. Prioritization (20 points)
How does the project support existing regional planning efforts such as the RCWD Watershed 
Management Plan, municipal surface water management plans, TMDLs, or other recognized diagnostic 
studies? Is the project included on the Member Community Project List (Appendix G) within the RCWD 
Watershed Management Plan? Please provide citations where possible.

IX. Targeting (15 points) 
Describe the critical pollution or flooding sources and risks addressed by this project. Explain why the 
proposed project is the most cost-effective and feasible means to attain the expected resource benefits. 
Has a formal analysis been conducted to substantiate this position?

X. Measurable Outcomes (20 points)

Provide a detailed estimate and description of the anticipated pollutant reduction, stormwater 
rate/volume reduction, groundwater withdrawal reduction, and/or other environmental or natural 
resource benefits associated with the project. Describe the methods and cite the sources (i.e. P8 model, 
HydroCAD, XP-SWMM, MIDS, MN Stormwater Manual, etc.) used to calculate or estimate the pollutant 
reductions and/or hydrologic outcomes. (Mandatory for RCWD to consider your proposal!)

98



Page 4 of 4 

XI. Cost-Effectiveness (15 points)

Provide a detailed budget that lists each item for which funding is being requested. You must also list the 
sources of required local matching contributions. Please provide a summary that demonstrates why this 
is the most cost-effective approach to solving the problem. Or, have other alternatives been explored, 
and if so, why were they determined to not be the best alternative? What is the anticipated lifespan of 
the practice? (Attach separate sheets if needed.)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
XII. Project Readiness (10 points) 
Please describe the anticipated timeline for implementing this project. What steps have been taken to 
ensure that the project can be implemented according to this timeline? Are any permits needed? 
(If permits are required please cite from what agency and where the project is in that process). 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
XIII. Engagement Opportunities (10 points) 
Demonstrate any potential for public engagement, education and demonstration and describe what 
methods will be used to ensure that the purpose and success of the project are made known to the 
public. Applicants must incorporate a public engagement component into the project. 

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



COUNTY RD H

County: 54,760 sq. ft.

New Brighton: 293,270 sq. ft.

Mounds View: 110,420 sq. ft.

EASTMAN DRIVE

707

2701

2678

2654

2653

2630

2605

2579

2577

2554

2553

2552

2530

2529

2510

2507

2468

2530

2605

2552

2553

2542

´
50 0 5025 Feet

Knollwood Pond
Drainage AreaDrainage Boundary

Mounds View

Ramsey County

New Brighton

Ownership

106



COUNTY RD H

462,500 SQ. FT.

Hard Cover =
146,100 SQ. FT.

EASTMAN DRIVE

2707

2701

2678

2654

2653

2630

2605

2579

2577

2554

2553

2552

2530

2529

2510

2507

2468

2530

2605

2552

2553

2542

´
50 0 5025 Feet

Knollwood Pond
Hard Cover

Drainage Boundary

Hard Cover

107



108



1S

Drainage to Pond

3S

Drainage to Pond

2P

Knollwood Pond

4P

Proposed
 Knollwood Pond

Routing Diagram for Knollwood
Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept,  Printed 12/8/2025

HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Subcat Reach Pond Link

109



Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 2HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Rainfall Events Listing

Event# Event
Name

Storm Type Curve Mode Duration
(hours)

B/B Depth
(inches)

AMC

1 1-yr Type II 24-hr Default 24.00 1 2.46 2
2 2-yr Type II 24-hr Default 24.00 1 2.83 2
3 10-day Snowmelt Spillway 1-day 10-day Default 240.00 1 7.20 4
4 10-yr Type II 24-hr Default 24.00 1 4.22 2
5 100-yr Type II 24-hr Default 24.00 1 7.33 2
6 NURP Type II 24-hr Default 24.00 1 2.50 2

110



Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 3HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Area Listing (all nodes)

Area
(acres)

CN Description
(subcatchment-numbers)

12.625 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B  (1S, 3S)
6.708 98 Paved parking, HSG B  (1S, 3S)
1.716 98 Water Surface, HSG B  (1S, 3S)

21.049 76 TOTAL AREA

111



Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 4HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Soil Listing (all nodes)

Area
(acres)

Soil
Group

Subcatchment
Numbers

0.000 HSG A
21.049 HSG B 1S, 3S

0.000 HSG C
0.000 HSG D
0.000 Other

21.049 TOTAL AREA

112



Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 5HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Ground Covers (all nodes)

HSG-A
(acres)

HSG-B
(acres)

HSG-C
(acres)

HSG-D
(acres)

Other
(acres)

Total
(acres)

Ground
Cover

Subcatchment
Numbers

0.000 12.625 0.000 0.000 0.000 12.625 >75% Grass cover, Good 1S, 3S
0.000 6.708 0.000 0.000 0.000 6.708 Paved parking 1S, 3S
0.000 1.716 0.000 0.000 0.000 1.716 Water Surface 1S, 3S

0.000 21.049 0.000 0.000 0.000 21.049 TOTAL AREA

113



Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 6HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pipe Listing (all nodes)

Line# Node
Number

In-Invert
(feet)

Out-Invert
(feet)

Length
(feet)

Slope
(ft/ft)

n Width
(inches)

Diam/Height
(inches)

Inside-Fill
(inches)

Node
Name

1 4P 885.00 874.27 750.0 0.0143 0.012 0.0 12.0 0.0

114



Type II 24-hr  1-yr Rainfall=2.46"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 7HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=0.00-200.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 4001 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv.

Reach routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method  -  Pond routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=458,450 sf   40.02% Impervious   Runoff Depth=1.00"Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond
   Flow Length=150'   Slope=0.0200 '/'   Tc=14.4 min   CN=61/98   Runoff=11.46 cfs  0.880 af

Runoff Area=458,450 sf   40.02% Impervious   Runoff Depth=1.00"Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond
   Flow Length=150'   Slope=0.0200 '/'   Tc=14.4 min   CN=61/98   Runoff=11.46 cfs  0.880 af

Peak Elev=886.40'  Storage=129,122 cf   Inflow=11.46 cfs  0.880 afPond 2P: Knollwood Pond
   Discarded=0.02 cfs  0.327 af   Secondary=0.00 cfs  0.000 af   Outflow=0.02 cfs  0.327 af

Peak Elev=885.66'  Storage=98,402 cf   Inflow=11.46 cfs  0.880 afPond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond
   Discarded=0.02 cfs  0.005 af   Primary=1.51 cfs  1.271 af   Secondary=0.00 cfs  0.000 af   Outflow=1.53 cfs  1.276 af

Total Runoff Area = 21.049 ac   Runoff Volume = 1.760 af   Average Runoff Depth = 1.00"
59.98% Pervious = 12.625 ac     40.02% Impervious = 8.424 ac

115



Type II 24-hr  1-yr Rainfall=2.46"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 8HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff = 11.46 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 0.880 af,  Depth= 1.00"
     Routed to Pond 2P : Knollwood Pond

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv., Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  1-yr Rainfall=2.46"

Area (sf) CN Description
146,100 98 Paved parking, HSG B

37,370 98 Water Surface, HSG B
274,980 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
458,450 76 Weighted Average
274,980 61 59.98% Pervious Area
183,470 98 40.02% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
14.4 150 0.0200 0.17 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.83"

Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Type II 24-hr
1-yr Rainfall=2.46"

Runoff Area=458,450 sf
Runoff Volume=0.880 af

Runoff Depth=1.00"
Flow Length=150'

Slope=0.0200 '/'
Tc=14.4 min

CN=61/98

11.46 cfs

116



Type II 24-hr  1-yr Rainfall=2.46"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 9HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff = 11.46 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 0.880 af,  Depth= 1.00"
     Routed to Pond 4P : Proposed Knollwood Pond

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv., Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  1-yr Rainfall=2.46"

Area (sf) CN Description
146,100 98 Paved parking, HSG B

37,370 98 Water Surface, HSG B
274,980 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
458,450 76 Weighted Average
274,980 61 59.98% Pervious Area
183,470 98 40.02% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
14.4 150 0.0200 0.17 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.83"

Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Type II 24-hr
1-yr Rainfall=2.46"

Runoff Area=458,450 sf
Runoff Volume=0.880 af

Runoff Depth=1.00"
Flow Length=150'

Slope=0.0200 '/'
Tc=14.4 min

CN=61/98

11.46 cfs

117



Type II 24-hr  1-yr Rainfall=2.46"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 10HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 2P: Knollwood Pond

Inflow Area = 10.525 ac, 40.02% Impervious,  Inflow Depth = 1.00"    for  1-yr event
Inflow = 11.46 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 0.880 af
Outflow = 0.02 cfs @ 6.30 hrs,  Volume= 0.327 af,  Atten= 100%,  Lag= 0.0 min
Discarded = 0.02 cfs @ 6.30 hrs,  Volume= 0.327 af
Secondary = 0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs,  Volume= 0.000 af

Routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Starting Elev= 885.50'   Surf.Area= 37,370 sf   Storage= 92,400 cf
Peak Elev= 886.40' @ 24.35 hrs   Surf.Area= 46,094 sf   Storage= 129,122 cf   (36,721 cf above start)

Plug-Flow detention time= (not calculated: initial storage exceeds outflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 5,274.5 min ( 6,063.0 - 788.5 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 880.00' 220,445 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic) Listed below (Recalc)

Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)

880.00 2,361 0 0
882.00 10,012 12,373 12,373
884.00 23,993 34,005 46,378
885.50 37,370 46,022 92,400
886.00 40,742 19,528 111,928
888.00 67,775 108,517 220,445

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Secondary 886.61' 8.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   Limited to weir flow at low heads   
#2 Discarded 885.50' 0.02 cfs Exfiltration when above 885.50'   

Discarded OutFlow  Max=0.02 cfs @ 6.30 hrs  HW=885.52'   (Free Discharge)
2=Exfiltration  (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Secondary OutFlow  Max=0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs  HW=885.50'   (Free Discharge)
1=Orifice/Grate  ( Controls 0.00 cfs)

118



Type II 24-hr  1-yr Rainfall=2.46"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 11HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 2P: Knollwood Pond

Inflow
Outflow
Discarded
Secondary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=10.525 ac
Peak Elev=886.40'

Storage=129,122 cf

11.46 cfs

0.02 cfs
0.02 cfs

0.00 cfs

119



Type II 24-hr  1-yr Rainfall=2.46"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 12HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond

Inflow Area = 10.525 ac, 40.02% Impervious,  Inflow Depth = 1.00"    for  1-yr event
Inflow = 11.46 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 0.880 af
Outflow = 1.53 cfs @ 12.59 hrs,  Volume= 1.276 af,  Atten= 87%,  Lag= 32.0 min
Discarded = 0.02 cfs @ 12.10 hrs,  Volume= 0.005 af
Primary = 1.51 cfs @ 12.59 hrs,  Volume= 1.271 af
Secondary = 0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs,  Volume= 0.000 af

Routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Starting Elev= 885.50'   Surf.Area= 37,370 sf   Storage= 92,400 cf
Peak Elev= 885.66' @ 12.59 hrs   Surf.Area= 38,438 sf   Storage= 98,402 cf   (6,002 cf above start)

Plug-Flow detention time= (not calculated: initial storage exceeds outflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 229.6 min ( 1,018.1 - 788.5 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 880.00' 220,445 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic) Listed below (Recalc)

Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)

880.00 2,361 0 0
882.00 10,012 12,373 12,373
884.00 23,993 34,005 46,378
885.50 37,370 46,022 92,400
886.00 40,742 19,528 111,928
888.00 67,775 108,517 220,445

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Secondary 886.61' 8.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   Limited to weir flow at low heads   
#2 Discarded 885.50' 0.02 cfs Exfiltration when above 885.50'   
#3 Primary 885.00' 12.0"  Round Culvert   

L= 750.0'   RCP, sq.cut end projecting,  Ke= 0.500   
Inlet / Outlet Invert= 885.00' / 874.27'   S= 0.0143 '/'   Cc= 0.900   
n= 0.012  Concrete pipe, finished,  Flow Area= 0.79 sf   

Discarded OutFlow  Max=0.02 cfs @ 12.10 hrs  HW=885.53'   (Free Discharge)
2=Exfiltration  (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Primary OutFlow  Max=1.51 cfs @ 12.59 hrs  HW=885.66'   (Free Discharge)
3=Culvert  (Inlet Controls 1.51 cfs @ 2.76 fps)

Secondary OutFlow  Max=0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs  HW=885.50'   (Free Discharge)
1=Orifice/Grate  ( Controls 0.00 cfs)

120



Type II 24-hr  1-yr Rainfall=2.46"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 13HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond

Inflow
Outflow
Discarded
Primary
Secondary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=10.525 ac
Peak Elev=885.66'
Storage=98,402 cf

11.46 cfs

1.53 cfs

0.02 cfs
1.51 cfs

0.00 cfs

121



Type II 24-hr  2-yr Rainfall=2.83"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 14HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=0.00-200.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 4001 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv.

Reach routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method  -  Pond routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=458,450 sf   40.02% Impervious   Runoff Depth=1.22"Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond
   Flow Length=150'   Slope=0.0200 '/'   Tc=14.4 min   CN=61/98   Runoff=13.98 cfs  1.072 af

Runoff Area=458,450 sf   40.02% Impervious   Runoff Depth=1.22"Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond
   Flow Length=150'   Slope=0.0200 '/'   Tc=14.4 min   CN=61/98   Runoff=13.98 cfs  1.072 af

Peak Elev=886.57'  Storage=137,448 cf   Inflow=13.98 cfs  1.072 afPond 2P: Knollwood Pond
   Discarded=0.02 cfs  0.328 af   Secondary=0.00 cfs  0.000 af   Outflow=0.02 cfs  0.328 af

Peak Elev=885.75'  Storage=102,107 cf   Inflow=13.98 cfs  1.072 afPond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond
   Discarded=0.02 cfs  0.007 af   Primary=1.88 cfs  1.461 af   Secondary=0.00 cfs  0.000 af   Outflow=1.90 cfs  1.468 af

Total Runoff Area = 21.049 ac   Runoff Volume = 2.143 af   Average Runoff Depth = 1.22"
59.98% Pervious = 12.625 ac     40.02% Impervious = 8.424 ac

122



Type II 24-hr  2-yr Rainfall=2.83"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 15HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff = 13.98 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 1.072 af,  Depth= 1.22"
     Routed to Pond 2P : Knollwood Pond

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv., Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  2-yr Rainfall=2.83"

Area (sf) CN Description
146,100 98 Paved parking, HSG B

37,370 98 Water Surface, HSG B
274,980 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
458,450 76 Weighted Average
274,980 61 59.98% Pervious Area
183,470 98 40.02% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
14.4 150 0.0200 0.17 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.83"

Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Type II 24-hr
2-yr Rainfall=2.83"

Runoff Area=458,450 sf
Runoff Volume=1.072 af

Runoff Depth=1.22"
Flow Length=150'

Slope=0.0200 '/'
Tc=14.4 min

CN=61/98

13.98 cfs

123



Type II 24-hr  2-yr Rainfall=2.83"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 16HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff = 13.98 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 1.072 af,  Depth= 1.22"
     Routed to Pond 4P : Proposed Knollwood Pond

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv., Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  2-yr Rainfall=2.83"

Area (sf) CN Description
146,100 98 Paved parking, HSG B

37,370 98 Water Surface, HSG B
274,980 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
458,450 76 Weighted Average
274,980 61 59.98% Pervious Area
183,470 98 40.02% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
14.4 150 0.0200 0.17 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.83"

Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Type II 24-hr
2-yr Rainfall=2.83"

Runoff Area=458,450 sf
Runoff Volume=1.072 af

Runoff Depth=1.22"
Flow Length=150'

Slope=0.0200 '/'
Tc=14.4 min

CN=61/98

13.98 cfs

124



Type II 24-hr  2-yr Rainfall=2.83"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 17HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 2P: Knollwood Pond

Inflow Area = 10.525 ac, 40.02% Impervious,  Inflow Depth = 1.22"    for  2-yr event
Inflow = 13.98 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 1.072 af
Outflow = 0.02 cfs @ 5.60 hrs,  Volume= 0.328 af,  Atten= 100%,  Lag= 0.0 min
Discarded = 0.02 cfs @ 5.60 hrs,  Volume= 0.328 af
Secondary = 0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs,  Volume= 0.000 af

Routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Starting Elev= 885.50'   Surf.Area= 37,370 sf   Storage= 92,400 cf
Peak Elev= 886.57' @ 24.37 hrs   Surf.Area= 48,475 sf   Storage= 137,448 cf   (45,048 cf above start)

Plug-Flow detention time= (not calculated: initial storage exceeds outflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 5,265.9 min ( 6,055.2 - 789.3 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 880.00' 220,445 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic) Listed below (Recalc)

Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)

880.00 2,361 0 0
882.00 10,012 12,373 12,373
884.00 23,993 34,005 46,378
885.50 37,370 46,022 92,400
886.00 40,742 19,528 111,928
888.00 67,775 108,517 220,445

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Secondary 886.61' 8.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   Limited to weir flow at low heads   
#2 Discarded 885.50' 0.02 cfs Exfiltration when above 885.50'   

Discarded OutFlow  Max=0.02 cfs @ 5.60 hrs  HW=885.52'   (Free Discharge)
2=Exfiltration  (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Secondary OutFlow  Max=0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs  HW=885.50'   (Free Discharge)
1=Orifice/Grate  ( Controls 0.00 cfs)

125



Type II 24-hr  2-yr Rainfall=2.83"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 18HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 2P: Knollwood Pond

Inflow
Outflow
Discarded
Secondary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=10.525 ac
Peak Elev=886.57'

Storage=137,448 cf

13.98 cfs

0.02 cfs
0.02 cfs

0.00 cfs

126



Type II 24-hr  2-yr Rainfall=2.83"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 19HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond

Inflow Area = 10.525 ac, 40.02% Impervious,  Inflow Depth = 1.22"    for  2-yr event
Inflow = 13.98 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 1.072 af
Outflow = 1.90 cfs @ 12.60 hrs,  Volume= 1.468 af,  Atten= 86%,  Lag= 32.0 min
Discarded = 0.02 cfs @ 12.05 hrs,  Volume= 0.007 af
Primary = 1.88 cfs @ 12.60 hrs,  Volume= 1.461 af
Secondary = 0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs,  Volume= 0.000 af

Routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Starting Elev= 885.50'   Surf.Area= 37,370 sf   Storage= 92,400 cf
Peak Elev= 885.75' @ 12.60 hrs   Surf.Area= 39,082 sf   Storage= 102,107 cf   (9,707 cf above start)

Plug-Flow detention time= (not calculated: initial storage exceeds outflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 228.8 min ( 1,018.1 - 789.3 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 880.00' 220,445 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic) Listed below (Recalc)

Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)

880.00 2,361 0 0
882.00 10,012 12,373 12,373
884.00 23,993 34,005 46,378
885.50 37,370 46,022 92,400
886.00 40,742 19,528 111,928
888.00 67,775 108,517 220,445

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Secondary 886.61' 8.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   Limited to weir flow at low heads   
#2 Discarded 885.50' 0.02 cfs Exfiltration when above 885.50'   
#3 Primary 885.00' 12.0"  Round Culvert   

L= 750.0'   RCP, sq.cut end projecting,  Ke= 0.500   
Inlet / Outlet Invert= 885.00' / 874.27'   S= 0.0143 '/'   Cc= 0.900   
n= 0.012  Concrete pipe, finished,  Flow Area= 0.79 sf   

Discarded OutFlow  Max=0.02 cfs @ 12.05 hrs  HW=885.54'   (Free Discharge)
2=Exfiltration  (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Primary OutFlow  Max=1.88 cfs @ 12.60 hrs  HW=885.75'   (Free Discharge)
3=Culvert  (Inlet Controls 1.88 cfs @ 2.96 fps)

Secondary OutFlow  Max=0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs  HW=885.50'   (Free Discharge)
1=Orifice/Grate  ( Controls 0.00 cfs)

127



Type II 24-hr  2-yr Rainfall=2.83"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 20HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond

Inflow
Outflow
Discarded
Primary
Secondary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=10.525 ac
Peak Elev=885.75'

Storage=102,107 cf

13.98 cfs

1.90 cfs

0.02 cfs
1.88 cfs

0.00 cfs

128



Spillway 1-day 10-day  10-day Snowmelt Rainfall=7.20", AMC=4Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 21HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=0.00-200.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 4001 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv.

Reach routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method  -  Pond routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=458,450 sf   40.02% Impervious   Runoff Depth>6.47"Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond
   Flow Length=150'   Slope=0.0200 '/'   Tc=14.4 min   AMC Adjusted CN=98/98   Runoff=4.98 cfs  5.679 af

Runoff Area=458,450 sf   40.02% Impervious   Runoff Depth>6.47"Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond
   Flow Length=150'   Slope=0.0200 '/'   Tc=14.4 min   AMC Adjusted CN=98/98   Runoff=4.98 cfs  5.679 af

Peak Elev=887.70'  Storage=201,031 cf   Inflow=4.98 cfs  5.679 afPond 2P: Knollwood Pond
   Discarded=0.02 cfs  0.322 af   Secondary=1.47 cfs  4.023 af   Outflow=1.49 cfs  4.345 af

Peak Elev=886.05'  Storage=113,776 cf   Inflow=4.98 cfs  5.679 afPond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond
   Discarded=0.02 cfs  0.019 af   Primary=2.79 cfs  5.908 af   Secondary=0.00 cfs  0.000 af   Outflow=2.81 cfs  5.927 af

Total Runoff Area = 21.049 ac   Runoff Volume = 11.357 af   Average Runoff Depth = 6.47"
59.98% Pervious = 12.625 ac     40.02% Impervious = 8.424 ac

129



Spillway 1-day 10-day  10-day Snowmelt Rainfall=7.20", AMC=4Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 22HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff = 4.98 cfs @ 121.42 hrs,  Volume= 5.679 af,  Depth> 6.47"
     Routed to Pond 2P : Knollwood Pond

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv., Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Spillway 1-day 10-day  10-day Snowmelt Rainfall=7.20", AMC=4

Area (sf) CN Adj Description
146,100 98 Paved parking, HSG B

37,370 98 Water Surface, HSG B
274,980 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
458,450 76 98 Weighted Average, AMC Adjusted
274,980 61 98 59.98% Pervious Area, AMC Adjusted
183,470 98 98 40.02% Impervious Area, AMC Adjusted

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
14.4 150 0.0200 0.17 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.83"

Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

5

4

3

2

1

0

Spillway 1-day 10-day
10-day Snowmelt Rainfall=7.20"
AMC=4
Runoff Area=458,450 sf
Runoff Volume=5.679 af
Runoff Depth>6.47"
Flow Length=150'
Slope=0.0200 '/'
Tc=14.4 min
AMC Adjusted CN=98/98

4.98 cfs

130



Spillway 1-day 10-day  10-day Snowmelt Rainfall=7.20", AMC=4Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 23HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff = 4.98 cfs @ 121.42 hrs,  Volume= 5.679 af,  Depth> 6.47"
     Routed to Pond 4P : Proposed Knollwood Pond

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv., Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Spillway 1-day 10-day  10-day Snowmelt Rainfall=7.20", AMC=4

Area (sf) CN Adj Description
146,100 98 Paved parking, HSG B

37,370 98 Water Surface, HSG B
274,980 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
458,450 76 98 Weighted Average, AMC Adjusted
274,980 61 98 59.98% Pervious Area, AMC Adjusted
183,470 98 98 40.02% Impervious Area, AMC Adjusted

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
14.4 150 0.0200 0.17 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.83"

Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

5

4

3

2

1

0

Spillway 1-day 10-day
10-day Snowmelt Rainfall=7.20"
AMC=4
Runoff Area=458,450 sf
Runoff Volume=5.679 af
Runoff Depth>6.47"
Flow Length=150'
Slope=0.0200 '/'
Tc=14.4 min
AMC Adjusted CN=98/98

4.98 cfs

131



Spillway 1-day 10-day  10-day Snowmelt Rainfall=7.20", AMC=4Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 24HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 2P: Knollwood Pond

Inflow Area = 10.525 ac, 40.02% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 6.47"    for  10-day Snowmelt event
Inflow = 4.98 cfs @ 121.42 hrs,  Volume= 5.679 af
Outflow = 1.49 cfs @ 124.36 hrs,  Volume= 4.345 af,  Atten= 70%,  Lag= 176.0 min
Discarded = 0.02 cfs @ 12.90 hrs,  Volume= 0.322 af
Secondary = 1.47 cfs @ 124.36 hrs,  Volume= 4.023 af

Routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Starting Elev= 885.50'   Surf.Area= 37,370 sf   Storage= 92,400 cf
Peak Elev= 887.70' @ 124.36 hrs   Surf.Area= 63,786 sf   Storage= 201,031 cf   (108,631 cf above start)

Plug-Flow detention time= 4,430.8 min calculated for 2.224 af (39% of inflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 1,232.4 min ( 8,228.3 - 6,995.9 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 880.00' 220,445 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic) Listed below (Recalc)

Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)

880.00 2,361 0 0
882.00 10,012 12,373 12,373
884.00 23,993 34,005 46,378
885.50 37,370 46,022 92,400
886.00 40,742 19,528 111,928
888.00 67,775 108,517 220,445

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Secondary 886.61' 8.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   Limited to weir flow at low heads   
#2 Discarded 885.50' 0.02 cfs Exfiltration when above 885.50'   

Discarded OutFlow  Max=0.02 cfs @ 12.90 hrs  HW=885.52'   (Free Discharge)
2=Exfiltration  (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Secondary OutFlow  Max=1.47 cfs @ 124.36 hrs  HW=887.70'   (Free Discharge)
1=Orifice/Grate  (Orifice Controls 1.47 cfs @ 4.20 fps)

132



Spillway 1-day 10-day  10-day Snowmelt Rainfall=7.20", AMC=4Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 25HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 2P: Knollwood Pond

Inflow
Outflow
Discarded
Secondary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=10.525 ac
Peak Elev=887.70'
Storage=201,031 cf

4.98 cfs

1.49 cfs

0.02 cfs

1.47 cfs

133



Spillway 1-day 10-day  10-day Snowmelt Rainfall=7.20", AMC=4Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 26HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond

Inflow Area = 10.525 ac, 40.02% Impervious,  Inflow Depth > 6.47"    for  10-day Snowmelt event
Inflow = 4.98 cfs @ 121.42 hrs,  Volume= 5.679 af
Outflow = 2.81 cfs @ 123.03 hrs,  Volume= 5.927 af,  Atten= 44%,  Lag= 96.5 min
Discarded = 0.02 cfs @ 119.70 hrs,  Volume= 0.019 af
Primary = 2.79 cfs @ 123.03 hrs,  Volume= 5.908 af
Secondary = 0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs,  Volume= 0.000 af

Routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Starting Elev= 885.50'   Surf.Area= 37,370 sf   Storage= 92,400 cf
Peak Elev= 886.05' @ 123.03 hrs   Surf.Area= 41,350 sf   Storage= 113,776 cf   (21,375 cf above start)

Plug-Flow detention time= 2,464.0 min calculated for 3.806 af (67% of inflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= (not calculated: outflow precedes inflow)

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 880.00' 220,445 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic) Listed below (Recalc)

Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)

880.00 2,361 0 0
882.00 10,012 12,373 12,373
884.00 23,993 34,005 46,378
885.50 37,370 46,022 92,400
886.00 40,742 19,528 111,928
888.00 67,775 108,517 220,445

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Secondary 886.61' 8.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   Limited to weir flow at low heads   
#2 Discarded 885.50' 0.02 cfs Exfiltration when above 885.50'   
#3 Primary 885.00' 12.0"  Round Culvert   

L= 750.0'   RCP, sq.cut end projecting,  Ke= 0.500   
Inlet / Outlet Invert= 885.00' / 874.27'   S= 0.0143 '/'   Cc= 0.900   
n= 0.012  Concrete pipe, finished,  Flow Area= 0.79 sf   

Discarded OutFlow  Max=0.02 cfs @ 119.70 hrs  HW=885.52'   (Free Discharge)
2=Exfiltration  (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Primary OutFlow  Max=2.79 cfs @ 123.03 hrs  HW=886.04'   (Free Discharge)
3=Culvert  (Inlet Controls 2.79 cfs @ 3.55 fps)

Secondary OutFlow  Max=0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs  HW=885.50'   (Free Discharge)
1=Orifice/Grate  ( Controls 0.00 cfs)

134



Spillway 1-day 10-day  10-day Snowmelt Rainfall=7.20", AMC=4Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 27HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond

Inflow
Outflow
Discarded
Primary
Secondary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=10.525 ac
Peak Elev=886.05'
Storage=113,776 cf

4.98 cfs

2.81 cfs

0.02 cfs

2.79 cfs

0.00 cfs

135



Type II 24-hr  10-yr Rainfall=4.22"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 28HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=0.00-200.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 4001 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv.

Reach routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method  -  Pond routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=458,450 sf   40.02% Impervious   Runoff Depth=2.15"Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond
   Flow Length=150'   Slope=0.0200 '/'   Tc=14.4 min   CN=61/98   Runoff=25.78 cfs  1.886 af

Runoff Area=458,450 sf   40.02% Impervious   Runoff Depth=2.15"Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond
   Flow Length=150'   Slope=0.0200 '/'   Tc=14.4 min   CN=61/98   Runoff=25.78 cfs  1.886 af

Peak Elev=886.99'  Storage=158,846 cf   Inflow=25.78 cfs  1.886 afPond 2P: Knollwood Pond
   Discarded=0.02 cfs  0.329 af   Secondary=0.43 cfs  0.652 af   Outflow=0.45 cfs  0.980 af

Peak Elev=886.17'  Storage=118,859 cf   Inflow=25.78 cfs  1.886 afPond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond
   Discarded=0.02 cfs  0.013 af   Primary=3.09 cfs  2.269 af   Secondary=0.00 cfs  0.000 af   Outflow=3.11 cfs  2.282 af

Total Runoff Area = 21.049 ac   Runoff Volume = 3.772 af   Average Runoff Depth = 2.15"
59.98% Pervious = 12.625 ac     40.02% Impervious = 8.424 ac

136



Type II 24-hr  10-yr Rainfall=4.22"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 29HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff = 25.78 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 1.886 af,  Depth= 2.15"
     Routed to Pond 2P : Knollwood Pond

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv., Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  10-yr Rainfall=4.22"

Area (sf) CN Description
146,100 98 Paved parking, HSG B

37,370 98 Water Surface, HSG B
274,980 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
458,450 76 Weighted Average
274,980 61 59.98% Pervious Area
183,470 98 40.02% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
14.4 150 0.0200 0.17 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.83"

Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

Type II 24-hr
10-yr Rainfall=4.22"

Runoff Area=458,450 sf
Runoff Volume=1.886 af

Runoff Depth=2.15"
Flow Length=150'

Slope=0.0200 '/'
Tc=14.4 min

CN=61/98

25.78 cfs

137



Type II 24-hr  10-yr Rainfall=4.22"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 30HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff = 25.78 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 1.886 af,  Depth= 2.15"
     Routed to Pond 4P : Proposed Knollwood Pond

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv., Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  10-yr Rainfall=4.22"

Area (sf) CN Description
146,100 98 Paved parking, HSG B

37,370 98 Water Surface, HSG B
274,980 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
458,450 76 Weighted Average
274,980 61 59.98% Pervious Area
183,470 98 40.02% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
14.4 150 0.0200 0.17 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.83"

Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

Type II 24-hr
10-yr Rainfall=4.22"

Runoff Area=458,450 sf
Runoff Volume=1.886 af

Runoff Depth=2.15"
Flow Length=150'

Slope=0.0200 '/'
Tc=14.4 min

CN=61/98

25.78 cfs

138



Type II 24-hr  10-yr Rainfall=4.22"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 31HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 2P: Knollwood Pond

Inflow Area = 10.525 ac, 40.02% Impervious,  Inflow Depth = 2.15"    for  10-yr event
Inflow = 25.78 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 1.886 af
Outflow = 0.45 cfs @ 19.71 hrs,  Volume= 0.980 af,  Atten= 98%,  Lag= 458.6 min
Discarded = 0.02 cfs @ 4.00 hrs,  Volume= 0.329 af
Secondary = 0.43 cfs @ 19.71 hrs,  Volume= 0.652 af

Routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Starting Elev= 885.50'   Surf.Area= 37,370 sf   Storage= 92,400 cf
Peak Elev= 886.99' @ 19.71 hrs   Surf.Area= 54,113 sf   Storage= 158,846 cf   (66,446 cf above start)

Plug-Flow detention time= (not calculated: initial storage exceeds outflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 2,299.9 min ( 3,089.7 - 789.9 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 880.00' 220,445 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic) Listed below (Recalc)

Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)

880.00 2,361 0 0
882.00 10,012 12,373 12,373
884.00 23,993 34,005 46,378
885.50 37,370 46,022 92,400
886.00 40,742 19,528 111,928
888.00 67,775 108,517 220,445

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Secondary 886.61' 8.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   Limited to weir flow at low heads   
#2 Discarded 885.50' 0.02 cfs Exfiltration when above 885.50'   

Discarded OutFlow  Max=0.02 cfs @ 4.00 hrs  HW=885.52'   (Free Discharge)
2=Exfiltration  (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Secondary OutFlow  Max=0.43 cfs @ 19.71 hrs  HW=886.99'   (Free Discharge)
1=Orifice/Grate  (Orifice Controls 0.43 cfs @ 2.10 fps)

139



Type II 24-hr  10-yr Rainfall=4.22"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 32HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 2P: Knollwood Pond

Inflow
Outflow
Discarded
Secondary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

Inflow Area=10.525 ac
Peak Elev=886.99'

Storage=158,846 cf

25.78 cfs

0.45 cfs
0.02 cfs

0.43 cfs

140



Type II 24-hr  10-yr Rainfall=4.22"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 33HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond

Inflow Area = 10.525 ac, 40.02% Impervious,  Inflow Depth = 2.15"    for  10-yr event
Inflow = 25.78 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 1.886 af
Outflow = 3.11 cfs @ 12.64 hrs,  Volume= 2.282 af,  Atten= 88%,  Lag= 34.9 min
Discarded = 0.02 cfs @ 11.90 hrs,  Volume= 0.013 af
Primary = 3.09 cfs @ 12.64 hrs,  Volume= 2.269 af
Secondary = 0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs,  Volume= 0.000 af

Routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Starting Elev= 885.50'   Surf.Area= 37,370 sf   Storage= 92,400 cf
Peak Elev= 886.17' @ 12.64 hrs   Surf.Area= 42,980 sf   Storage= 118,859 cf   (26,459 cf above start)

Plug-Flow detention time= 2,508.4 min calculated for 0.161 af (9% of inflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 224.9 min ( 1,014.8 - 789.9 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 880.00' 220,445 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic) Listed below (Recalc)

Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)

880.00 2,361 0 0
882.00 10,012 12,373 12,373
884.00 23,993 34,005 46,378
885.50 37,370 46,022 92,400
886.00 40,742 19,528 111,928
888.00 67,775 108,517 220,445

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Secondary 886.61' 8.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   Limited to weir flow at low heads   
#2 Discarded 885.50' 0.02 cfs Exfiltration when above 885.50'   
#3 Primary 885.00' 12.0"  Round Culvert   

L= 750.0'   RCP, sq.cut end projecting,  Ke= 0.500   
Inlet / Outlet Invert= 885.00' / 874.27'   S= 0.0143 '/'   Cc= 0.900   
n= 0.012  Concrete pipe, finished,  Flow Area= 0.79 sf   

Discarded OutFlow  Max=0.02 cfs @ 11.90 hrs  HW=885.53'   (Free Discharge)
2=Exfiltration  (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Primary OutFlow  Max=3.09 cfs @ 12.64 hrs  HW=886.17'   (Free Discharge)
3=Culvert  (Inlet Controls 3.09 cfs @ 3.93 fps)

Secondary OutFlow  Max=0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs  HW=885.50'   (Free Discharge)
1=Orifice/Grate  ( Controls 0.00 cfs)

141



Type II 24-hr  10-yr Rainfall=4.22"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 34HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond

Inflow
Outflow
Discarded
Primary
Secondary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

8

6

4

2

0

Inflow Area=10.525 ac
Peak Elev=886.17'

Storage=118,859 cf

25.78 cfs

3.11 cfs

0.02 cfs
3.09 cfs

0.00 cfs

142



Type II 24-hr  100-yr Rainfall=7.33"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 35HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=0.00-200.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 4001 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv.

Reach routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method  -  Pond routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=458,450 sf   40.02% Impervious   Runoff Depth=4.60"Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond
   Flow Length=150'   Slope=0.0200 '/'   Tc=14.4 min   CN=61/98   Runoff=57.58 cfs  4.037 af

Runoff Area=458,450 sf   40.02% Impervious   Runoff Depth=4.60"Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond
   Flow Length=150'   Slope=0.0200 '/'   Tc=14.4 min   CN=61/98   Runoff=57.58 cfs  4.037 af

Peak Elev=887.93'  Storage=215,733 cf   Inflow=57.58 cfs  4.037 afPond 2P: Knollwood Pond
   Discarded=0.02 cfs  0.329 af   Secondary=1.67 cfs  2.781 af   Outflow=1.69 cfs  3.111 af

Peak Elev=887.15'  Storage=167,627 cf   Inflow=57.58 cfs  4.037 afPond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond
   Discarded=0.02 cfs  0.023 af   Primary=4.68 cfs  4.281 af   Secondary=0.75 cfs  0.128 af   Outflow=5.45 cfs  4.433 af

Total Runoff Area = 21.049 ac   Runoff Volume = 8.073 af   Average Runoff Depth = 4.60"
59.98% Pervious = 12.625 ac     40.02% Impervious = 8.424 ac

143



Type II 24-hr  100-yr Rainfall=7.33"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 36HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff = 57.58 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 4.037 af,  Depth= 4.60"
     Routed to Pond 2P : Knollwood Pond

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv., Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  100-yr Rainfall=7.33"

Area (sf) CN Description
146,100 98 Paved parking, HSG B

37,370 98 Water Surface, HSG B
274,980 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
458,450 76 Weighted Average
274,980 61 59.98% Pervious Area
183,470 98 40.02% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
14.4 150 0.0200 0.17 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.83"

Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

0

Type II 24-hr
100-yr Rainfall=7.33"

Runoff Area=458,450 sf
Runoff Volume=4.037 af

Runoff Depth=4.60"
Flow Length=150'

Slope=0.0200 '/'
Tc=14.4 min

CN=61/98

57.58 cfs

144



Type II 24-hr  100-yr Rainfall=7.33"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 37HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff = 57.58 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 4.037 af,  Depth= 4.60"
     Routed to Pond 4P : Proposed Knollwood Pond

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv., Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  100-yr Rainfall=7.33"

Area (sf) CN Description
146,100 98 Paved parking, HSG B

37,370 98 Water Surface, HSG B
274,980 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
458,450 76 Weighted Average
274,980 61 59.98% Pervious Area
183,470 98 40.02% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
14.4 150 0.0200 0.17 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.83"

Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

0

Type II 24-hr
100-yr Rainfall=7.33"

Runoff Area=458,450 sf
Runoff Volume=4.037 af

Runoff Depth=4.60"
Flow Length=150'

Slope=0.0200 '/'
Tc=14.4 min

CN=61/98

57.58 cfs

145



Type II 24-hr  100-yr Rainfall=7.33"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 38HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 2P: Knollwood Pond

Inflow Area = 10.525 ac, 40.02% Impervious,  Inflow Depth = 4.60"    for  100-yr event
Inflow = 57.58 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 4.037 af
Outflow = 1.69 cfs @ 15.69 hrs,  Volume= 3.111 af,  Atten= 97%,  Lag= 217.9 min
Discarded = 0.02 cfs @ 2.45 hrs,  Volume= 0.329 af
Secondary = 1.67 cfs @ 15.69 hrs,  Volume= 2.781 af

Routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Starting Elev= 885.50'   Surf.Area= 37,370 sf   Storage= 92,400 cf
Peak Elev= 887.93' @ 15.69 hrs   Surf.Area= 66,829 sf   Storage= 215,733 cf   (123,333 cf above start)

Plug-Flow detention time= 3,042.4 min calculated for 0.990 af (25% of inflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 1,184.0 min ( 1,971.0 - 787.0 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 880.00' 220,445 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic) Listed below (Recalc)

Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)

880.00 2,361 0 0
882.00 10,012 12,373 12,373
884.00 23,993 34,005 46,378
885.50 37,370 46,022 92,400
886.00 40,742 19,528 111,928
888.00 67,775 108,517 220,445

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Secondary 886.61' 8.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   Limited to weir flow at low heads   
#2 Discarded 885.50' 0.02 cfs Exfiltration when above 885.50'   

Discarded OutFlow  Max=0.02 cfs @ 2.45 hrs  HW=885.52'   (Free Discharge)
2=Exfiltration  (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Secondary OutFlow  Max=1.67 cfs @ 15.69 hrs  HW=887.93'   (Free Discharge)
1=Orifice/Grate  (Orifice Controls 1.67 cfs @ 4.78 fps)

146



Type II 24-hr  100-yr Rainfall=7.33"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 39HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 2P: Knollwood Pond

Inflow
Outflow
Discarded
Secondary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

0

Inflow Area=10.525 ac
Peak Elev=887.93'

Storage=215,733 cf

57.58 cfs

1.69 cfs
0.02 cfs1.67 cfs

147



Type II 24-hr  100-yr Rainfall=7.33"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 40HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond

Inflow Area = 10.525 ac, 40.02% Impervious,  Inflow Depth = 4.60"    for  100-yr event
Inflow = 57.58 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 4.037 af
Outflow = 5.45 cfs @ 12.76 hrs,  Volume= 4.433 af,  Atten= 91%,  Lag= 42.1 min
Discarded = 0.02 cfs @ 11.25 hrs,  Volume= 0.023 af
Primary = 4.68 cfs @ 12.76 hrs,  Volume= 4.281 af
Secondary = 0.75 cfs @ 12.76 hrs,  Volume= 0.128 af

Routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Starting Elev= 885.50'   Surf.Area= 37,370 sf   Storage= 92,400 cf
Peak Elev= 887.15' @ 12.76 hrs   Surf.Area= 56,264 sf   Storage= 167,627 cf   (75,227 cf above start)

Plug-Flow detention time= 668.4 min calculated for 2.311 af (57% of inflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 243.7 min ( 1,030.7 - 787.0 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 880.00' 220,445 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic) Listed below (Recalc)

Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)

880.00 2,361 0 0
882.00 10,012 12,373 12,373
884.00 23,993 34,005 46,378
885.50 37,370 46,022 92,400
886.00 40,742 19,528 111,928
888.00 67,775 108,517 220,445

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Secondary 886.61' 8.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   Limited to weir flow at low heads   
#2 Discarded 885.50' 0.02 cfs Exfiltration when above 885.50'   
#3 Primary 885.00' 12.0"  Round Culvert   

L= 750.0'   RCP, sq.cut end projecting,  Ke= 0.500   
Inlet / Outlet Invert= 885.00' / 874.27'   S= 0.0143 '/'   Cc= 0.900   
n= 0.012  Concrete pipe, finished,  Flow Area= 0.79 sf   

Discarded OutFlow  Max=0.02 cfs @ 11.25 hrs  HW=885.53'   (Free Discharge)
2=Exfiltration  (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Primary OutFlow  Max=4.68 cfs @ 12.76 hrs  HW=887.15'   (Free Discharge)
3=Culvert  (Barrel Controls 4.68 cfs @ 5.96 fps)

Secondary OutFlow  Max=0.75 cfs @ 12.76 hrs  HW=887.15'   (Free Discharge)
1=Orifice/Grate  (Orifice Controls 0.75 cfs @ 2.50 fps)

148



Type II 24-hr  100-yr Rainfall=7.33"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 41HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond

Inflow
Outflow
Discarded
Primary
Secondary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

60

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

20

15

10

5

0

Inflow Area=10.525 ac
Peak Elev=887.15'

Storage=167,627 cf

57.58 cfs

5.45 cfs

0.02 cfs4.68 cfs

0.75 cfs

149



Type II 24-hr  NURP Rainfall=2.50"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 42HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Time span=0.00-200.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 4001 points
Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv.

Reach routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method  -  Pond routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method

Runoff Area=458,450 sf   40.02% Impervious   Runoff Depth=1.03"Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond
   Flow Length=150'   Slope=0.0200 '/'   Tc=14.4 min   CN=61/98   Runoff=11.71 cfs  0.900 af

Runoff Area=458,450 sf   40.02% Impervious   Runoff Depth=1.03"Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond
   Flow Length=150'   Slope=0.0200 '/'   Tc=14.4 min   CN=61/98   Runoff=11.71 cfs  0.900 af

Peak Elev=886.41'  Storage=129,994 cf   Inflow=11.71 cfs  0.900 afPond 2P: Knollwood Pond
   Discarded=0.02 cfs  0.327 af   Secondary=0.00 cfs  0.000 af   Outflow=0.02 cfs  0.327 af

Peak Elev=885.67'  Storage=98,788 cf   Inflow=11.71 cfs  0.900 afPond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond
   Discarded=0.02 cfs  0.006 af   Primary=1.55 cfs  1.291 af   Secondary=0.00 cfs  0.000 af   Outflow=1.57 cfs  1.296 af

Total Runoff Area = 21.049 ac   Runoff Volume = 1.800 af   Average Runoff Depth = 1.03"
59.98% Pervious = 12.625 ac     40.02% Impervious = 8.424 ac

150



Type II 24-hr  NURP Rainfall=2.50"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 43HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff = 11.71 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 0.900 af,  Depth= 1.03"
     Routed to Pond 2P : Knollwood Pond

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv., Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  NURP Rainfall=2.50"

Area (sf) CN Description
146,100 98 Paved parking, HSG B

37,370 98 Water Surface, HSG B
274,980 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
458,450 76 Weighted Average
274,980 61 59.98% Pervious Area
183,470 98 40.02% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
14.4 150 0.0200 0.17 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.83"

Subcatchment 1S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Type II 24-hr
NURP Rainfall=2.50"

Runoff Area=458,450 sf
Runoff Volume=0.900 af

Runoff Depth=1.03"
Flow Length=150'

Slope=0.0200 '/'
Tc=14.4 min

CN=61/98

11.71 cfs

151



Type II 24-hr  NURP Rainfall=2.50"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 44HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff = 11.71 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 0.900 af,  Depth= 1.03"
     Routed to Pond 4P : Proposed Knollwood Pond

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Split Pervious/Imperv., Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Type II 24-hr  NURP Rainfall=2.50"

Area (sf) CN Description
146,100 98 Paved parking, HSG B

37,370 98 Water Surface, HSG B
274,980 61 >75% Grass cover, Good, HSG B
458,450 76 Weighted Average
274,980 61 59.98% Pervious Area
183,470 98 40.02% Impervious Area

Tc Length Slope Velocity Capacity Description
(min) (feet) (ft/ft) (ft/sec) (cfs)
14.4 150 0.0200 0.17 Sheet Flow, 

Grass: Short   n= 0.150   P2= 2.83"

Subcatchment 3S: Drainage to Pond

Runoff

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Type II 24-hr
NURP Rainfall=2.50"

Runoff Area=458,450 sf
Runoff Volume=0.900 af

Runoff Depth=1.03"
Flow Length=150'

Slope=0.0200 '/'
Tc=14.4 min

CN=61/98

11.71 cfs

152



Type II 24-hr  NURP Rainfall=2.50"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 45HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 2P: Knollwood Pond

Inflow Area = 10.525 ac, 40.02% Impervious,  Inflow Depth = 1.03"    for  NURP event
Inflow = 11.71 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 0.900 af
Outflow = 0.02 cfs @ 6.20 hrs,  Volume= 0.327 af,  Atten= 100%,  Lag= 0.0 min
Discarded = 0.02 cfs @ 6.20 hrs,  Volume= 0.327 af
Secondary = 0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs,  Volume= 0.000 af

Routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Starting Elev= 885.50'   Surf.Area= 37,370 sf   Storage= 92,400 cf
Peak Elev= 886.41' @ 24.35 hrs   Surf.Area= 46,350 sf   Storage= 129,994 cf   (37,594 cf above start)

Plug-Flow detention time= (not calculated: initial storage exceeds outflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 5,273.4 min ( 6,062.0 - 788.6 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 880.00' 220,445 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic) Listed below (Recalc)

Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)

880.00 2,361 0 0
882.00 10,012 12,373 12,373
884.00 23,993 34,005 46,378
885.50 37,370 46,022 92,400
886.00 40,742 19,528 111,928
888.00 67,775 108,517 220,445

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Secondary 886.61' 8.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   Limited to weir flow at low heads   
#2 Discarded 885.50' 0.02 cfs Exfiltration when above 885.50'   

Discarded OutFlow  Max=0.02 cfs @ 6.20 hrs  HW=885.52'   (Free Discharge)
2=Exfiltration  (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Secondary OutFlow  Max=0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs  HW=885.50'   (Free Discharge)
1=Orifice/Grate  ( Controls 0.00 cfs)

153



Type II 24-hr  NURP Rainfall=2.50"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 46HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 2P: Knollwood Pond

Inflow
Outflow
Discarded
Secondary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=10.525 ac
Peak Elev=886.41'

Storage=129,994 cf

11.71 cfs

0.02 cfs
0.02 cfs

0.00 cfs

154



Type II 24-hr  NURP Rainfall=2.50"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 47HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Summary for Pond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond

Inflow Area = 10.525 ac, 40.02% Impervious,  Inflow Depth = 1.03"    for  NURP event
Inflow = 11.71 cfs @ 12.06 hrs,  Volume= 0.900 af
Outflow = 1.57 cfs @ 12.59 hrs,  Volume= 1.296 af,  Atten= 87%,  Lag= 32.0 min
Discarded = 0.02 cfs @ 12.10 hrs,  Volume= 0.006 af
Primary = 1.55 cfs @ 12.59 hrs,  Volume= 1.291 af
Secondary = 0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs,  Volume= 0.000 af

Routing by Dyn-Stor-Ind method, Time Span= 0.00-200.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs
Starting Elev= 885.50'   Surf.Area= 37,370 sf   Storage= 92,400 cf
Peak Elev= 885.67' @ 12.59 hrs   Surf.Area= 38,506 sf   Storage= 98,788 cf   (6,388 cf above start)

Plug-Flow detention time= (not calculated: initial storage exceeds outflow)
Center-of-Mass det. time= 229.6 min ( 1,018.2 - 788.6 )

Volume Invert Avail.Storage Storage Description
#1 880.00' 220,445 cf Custom Stage Data (Prismatic) Listed below (Recalc)

Elevation Surf.Area Inc.Store Cum.Store
(feet) (sq-ft) (cubic-feet) (cubic-feet)

880.00 2,361 0 0
882.00 10,012 12,373 12,373
884.00 23,993 34,005 46,378
885.50 37,370 46,022 92,400
886.00 40,742 19,528 111,928
888.00 67,775 108,517 220,445

Device Routing     Invert Outlet Devices
#1 Secondary 886.61' 8.0" Vert. Orifice/Grate    C= 0.600   Limited to weir flow at low heads   
#2 Discarded 885.50' 0.02 cfs Exfiltration when above 885.50'   
#3 Primary 885.00' 12.0"  Round Culvert   

L= 750.0'   RCP, sq.cut end projecting,  Ke= 0.500   
Inlet / Outlet Invert= 885.00' / 874.27'   S= 0.0143 '/'   Cc= 0.900   
n= 0.012  Concrete pipe, finished,  Flow Area= 0.79 sf   

Discarded OutFlow  Max=0.02 cfs @ 12.10 hrs  HW=885.54'   (Free Discharge)
2=Exfiltration  (Exfiltration Controls 0.02 cfs)

Primary OutFlow  Max=1.55 cfs @ 12.59 hrs  HW=885.67'   (Free Discharge)
3=Culvert  (Inlet Controls 1.55 cfs @ 2.78 fps)

Secondary OutFlow  Max=0.00 cfs @ 0.00 hrs  HW=885.50'   (Free Discharge)
1=Orifice/Grate  ( Controls 0.00 cfs)

155



Type II 24-hr  NURP Rainfall=2.50"Knollwood
  Printed  12/8/2025Prepared by City Of New Brighton, Eng Dept

Page 48HydroCAD® 10.20-6a  s/n 04460  © 2024 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

Pond 4P: Proposed Knollwood Pond

Inflow
Outflow
Discarded
Primary
Secondary

Hydrograph

Time  (hours)
2001901801701601501401301201101009080706050403020100

F
lo

w
  (

c
fs

)

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

Inflow Area=10.525 ac
Peak Elev=885.67'
Storage=98,788 cf

11.71 cfs

1.57 cfs

0.02 cfs
1.55 cfs

0.00 cfs

156



I. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Organization (to be named as Grantee):
Street Address:

City, State, Zip:
Tax Status: Tax ID#:

(e.g., local government, non-profit 501(c)(3), private business, etc.)

II. PROJECT CONTACTS

Project Officer: Financial Officer: 

Title: Title: 
Telephone: Telephone: 

Fax: Fax: 
Email: Email: 

III. PROJECT INFORMATION
Project Name:

Location(s) of Project:
City: State: County: 

Project Start Date: Project Completion Date: 

Project Type (check only those that directly apply):

Water Quality Treatment Project Stormwater Reuse Irrigation Project
Peak Runoff Rate Control Project   Runoff Volume Control / Flood Storage Project 
Other: 

Is a RCWD Rule C permit required for this project? YES NO UNKNOWN
IV. GRANT REQUEST

RCWD Grant Funding Requested: $

Applicant Match Funding Committed: $

Total Estimated Project Cost: $

Would you be willing to accept grant funding in an amount less than requested? YES NO

V. SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT
I certify that the information contained within this application is true and accurate.

Signature of Project Officer Date

Rice Creek Watershed District 
Stormwater Management Grant Program 

2026 Application Form

Water
Peak Runoff Rate Control Project
Other:

157



Page 2 of 4

VI. Executive Summary / Abstract 

Include a brief Executive Summary (100 words or less) that summarizes the main goals and activities of 
the project and the expected environmental outcomes that will be achieved. Identification of the total 
amount of funds being requested along with the required match. The summaries will be used in the grant 
review process and on the RCWD website for projects that are funded. 

 
 

VII. Description (10 points) 
The RCWD has established guidelines for prioritizing projects based on location. Water quality 
improvement projects should be located to benefit a RCWD lake classified as either “Protection” or 
“Restoration” (see Table 2-4 in the RCWD 2020 Watershed Management Plan), and/or a waterbody with 
an approved Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) study or other recognized diagnostic water quality study. 
Flood storage and runoff rate control projects should focus on reducing peak flood elevations in known 
regional flood hazard areas and/or documented local problem areas. Describe the specific watershed 
management, water quality or quantity need(s) that the project will address and its impact on the target 
water resource within the District. 

 
Name the target waterbody benefiting from this project:   

List and describe the Best Management Practices (BMPs) to be incorporated into this project

If applicable, describe how the project impacts or protects RCWD groundwater resources, minimizes 
impervious surfaces, and/or maximizes infiltration.

Provide drawings, maps and/or schematics which graphically illustrate the location and conceptual 
design of the project. (Attach separate sheets.)

Describe how long-term operation and maintenance of the project will be accomplished and identify the 
individual(s) responsible for maintenance activities if different than the project officer listed in section 2.

158



Page 3 of 4 

VIII. Prioritization (20 points)
How does the project support existing regional planning efforts such as the RCWD Watershed 
Management Plan, municipal surface water management plans, TMDLs, or other recognized diagnostic 
studies? Is the project included on the Member Community Project List (Appendix G) within the RCWD 
Watershed Management Plan? Please provide citations where possible.

IX. Targeting (15 points) 
Describe the critical pollution or flooding sources and risks addressed by this project. Explain why the 
proposed project is the most cost-effective and feasible means to attain the expected resource benefits. 
Has a formal analysis been conducted to substantiate this position?

X. Measurable Outcomes (20 points)

Provide a detailed estimate and description of the anticipated pollutant reduction, stormwater 
rate/volume reduction, groundwater withdrawal reduction, and/or other environmental or natural 
resource benefits associated with the project. Describe the methods and cite the sources (i.e. P8 model, 
HydroCAD, XP-SWMM, MIDS, MN Stormwater Manual, etc.) used to calculate or estimate the pollutant 
reductions and/or hydrologic outcomes. (Mandatory for RCWD to consider your proposal!)

159



Page 4 of 4 

XI. Cost-Effectiveness (15 points)

Provide a detailed budget that lists each item for which funding is being requested. You must also list the 
sources of required local matching contributions. Please provide a summary that demonstrates why this 
is the most cost-effective approach to solving the problem. Or, have other alternatives been explored, 
and if so, why were they determined to not be the best alternative? What is the anticipated lifespan of 
the practice? (Attach separate sheets if needed.)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
XII. Project Readiness (10 points) 
Please describe the anticipated timeline for implementing this project. What steps have been taken to 
ensure that the project can be implemented according to this timeline? Are any permits needed? 
(If permits are required please cite from what agency and where the project is in that process). 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
XIII. Engagement Opportunities (10 points) 
Demonstrate any potential for public engagement, education and demonstration and describe what 
methods will be used to ensure that the purpose and success of the project are made known to the 
public. Applicants must incorporate a public engagement component into the project. 

160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



Expanded Answers: Shoreview Target Pond IESF 

Section VI Executive Summary & Abstract 

The City of Shoreview intends to convert an existing sand filtration system in the southeast 
corner of Red Fox Road and Lexington Avenue North into an iron-enhanced filtration 
system. The existing system receives runoff from the surrounding roadways and ultimately 
outlets into Valentine Lake, which has been on the MPCA's Impaired Water list since 2002. 
The goal of this project is to provide additional treatment for runoff outletting into Valentine 
Lake to work towards improving its water quality and removing it from the Impaired Water 
List. A total of $81,772.50 is requested, with a City match of $81,772.50. 

Section VII Description 

List and describe the Best Management Practices (BMPs) to be incorporated into this 
project. 

Iron-enhanced filtration system: The existing sand filtration system will be converted into 
an iron-enhanced filtration system. The proposed filter will be designed and installed per 
the MPCA design standards as feasible. The system receives flow from an existing 
pretreatment wet pond directly south via five existing culverts. The existing sand will be 
removed and replaced with iron-enhanced sand. The existing draintile will be replaced to 
extend the lifetime of the system. 

If applicable, describe how the project impacts or protects RCWD groundwater 
resources, minimizes impervious surfaces, and/or maximizes infiltration. 

An iron-enhanced sand filter provides additional removal of Total Phosphorus than the 
existing system, which will limit the amount of phosphorus entering RCWD groundwater 
further downstream. 

188



Describe how long-term operation and maintenance of the project will be 
accomplished and identify the individual(s) responsible for maintenance activities if 
different than the project officer listed in section 2. 

A maintenance agreement will be executed that requires the following: 

The City of Shoreview will perform annual inspections of the filter bed, inlets, and outlets. 
Staff will remove accumulated sediment to maintain a clean filter bed and replace 
structural components, as necessary.  

City staff will visually inspect the filter and surrounding area on a monthly basis. Staff will 
verify the system, inlets, and outlets are clear of debris and remove vegetation and grasses 
from the filter surface, per MPCA recommendations, as needed.  

The top 2-5 inches of media will be removed and replaced every 3-5 years or as needed to 
remove clogged filter media. 

Section VIII Prioritization 

The receiving water body, Valentine Lake, has TMDLs for excess nutrients and chlorine, per 
the RCWD WMP and MPCA Impaired Waters List. The existing sand filter system receives a 
significant amount of runoff from surrounding roadways and industrial areas, which 
ultimately discharge into Valentine Lake. This project will provide additional water quality 
benefit to this discharge, in line with the goal of removing Valentine Lake from the Impaired 
Waters List.  The project is not included in the Member Community Project List within the 
RCWD WMP. 

Section IX Targeting 

The proposed system will treat runoff from the neighboring Target and Raising Cane's 
parking lots, a portion of Red Fox Road, and a portion of Lexington Avenue. Runoff from 
each of these areas introduce trash, debris, oil, grease, and sediment from cars and other 
vehicle into the downstream storm system. This project is able to treat all these pollutants 
in one central location with the existing wet pond and proposed iron-enhanced sand filter. 
A central location is more cost-effective and space-efficient than multiple smaller 
systems. The project's location allows it to treat this runoff at its source prior to entering 
the downstream storm system and ultimately Valentine Lake. 

189



I. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Organization (to be named as Grantee):
Street Address:

City, State, Zip:
Tax Status: Tax ID#:

(e.g., local government, non-profit 501(c)(3), private business, etc.)

II. PROJECT CONTACTS

Project Officer: Financial Officer: 

Title: Title: 
Telephone: Telephone: 

Fax: Fax: 
Email: Email: 

III. PROJECT INFORMATION
Project Name:

Location(s) of Project:
City: State: County: 

Project Start Date: Project Completion Date: 

Project Type (check only those that directly apply):

Water Quality Treatment Project Stormwater Reuse Irrigation Project
Peak Runoff Rate Control Project   Runoff Volume Control / Flood Storage Project 
Other: 

Is a RCWD Rule C permit required for this project? YES NO UNKNOWN
IV. GRANT REQUEST

RCWD Grant Funding Requested: $

Applicant Match Funding Committed: $

Total Estimated Project Cost: $

Would you be willing to accept grant funding in an amount less than requested? YES NO

V. SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT
I certify that the information contained within this application is true and accurate.

Signature of Project Officer Date

Rice Creek Watershed District 
Stormwater Management Grant Program 

2026 Application Form

Water
Peak Runoff Rate Control Project
Other:

190



Page 2 of 4

VI. Executive Summary / Abstract 

Include a brief Executive Summary (100 words or less) that summarizes the main goals and activities of 
the project and the expected environmental outcomes that will be achieved. Identification of the total 
amount of funds being requested along with the required match. The summaries will be used in the grant 
review process and on the RCWD website for projects that are funded. 

 
 

VII. Description (10 points) 
The RCWD has established guidelines for prioritizing projects based on location. Water quality 
improvement projects should be located to benefit a RCWD lake classified as either “Protection” or 
“Restoration” (see Table 2-4 in the RCWD 2020 Watershed Management Plan), and/or a waterbody with 
an approved Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) study or other recognized diagnostic water quality study. 
Flood storage and runoff rate control projects should focus on reducing peak flood elevations in known 
regional flood hazard areas and/or documented local problem areas. Describe the specific watershed 
management, water quality or quantity need(s) that the project will address and its impact on the target 
water resource within the District. 

 
Name the target waterbody benefiting from this project:   

List and describe the Best Management Practices (BMPs) to be incorporated into this project

If applicable, describe how the project impacts or protects RCWD groundwater resources, minimizes 
impervious surfaces, and/or maximizes infiltration.

Provide drawings, maps and/or schematics which graphically illustrate the location and conceptual 
design of the project. (Attach separate sheets.)

Describe how long-term operation and maintenance of the project will be accomplished and identify the 
individual(s) responsible for maintenance activities if different than the project officer listed in section 2.

191



Page 3 of 4 

VIII. Prioritization (20 points)
How does the project support existing regional planning efforts such as the RCWD Watershed 
Management Plan, municipal surface water management plans, TMDLs, or other recognized diagnostic 
studies? Is the project included on the Member Community Project List (Appendix G) within the RCWD 
Watershed Management Plan? Please provide citations where possible.

IX. Targeting (15 points) 
Describe the critical pollution or flooding sources and risks addressed by this project. Explain why the 
proposed project is the most cost-effective and feasible means to attain the expected resource benefits. 
Has a formal analysis been conducted to substantiate this position?

X. Measurable Outcomes (20 points)

Provide a detailed estimate and description of the anticipated pollutant reduction, stormwater 
rate/volume reduction, groundwater withdrawal reduction, and/or other environmental or natural 
resource benefits associated with the project. Describe the methods and cite the sources (i.e. P8 model, 
HydroCAD, XP-SWMM, MIDS, MN Stormwater Manual, etc.) used to calculate or estimate the pollutant 
reductions and/or hydrologic outcomes. (Mandatory for RCWD to consider your proposal!)

192



Page 4 of 4 

XI. Cost-Effectiveness (15 points)

Provide a detailed budget that lists each item for which funding is being requested. You must also list the 
sources of required local matching contributions. Please provide a summary that demonstrates why this 
is the most cost-effective approach to solving the problem. Or, have other alternatives been explored, 
and if so, why were they determined to not be the best alternative? What is the anticipated lifespan of 
the practice? (Attach separate sheets if needed.)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
XII. Project Readiness (10 points) 
Please describe the anticipated timeline for implementing this project. What steps have been taken to 
ensure that the project can be implemented according to this timeline? Are any permits needed? 
(If permits are required please cite from what agency and where the project is in that process). 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
XIII. Engagement Opportunities (10 points) 
Demonstrate any potential for public engagement, education and demonstration and describe what 
methods will be used to ensure that the purpose and success of the project are made known to the 
public. Applicants must incorporate a public engagement component into the project. 

193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



Expanded Answers: Shoreview Pervious Pavers 

Section VI Executive Summary & Abstract 

The City of Shoreview proposes replacement of the existing roadway asphalt with pervious 
pavers in two neighborhoods that have direct stormwater discharge to surface waters. The 
stormwater currently flows off the road and into the storm system that outlets to Island 
Lake. The proposed pavers will allow the water to soak into the ground, rather than having it 
flow to the lake. This project will reduce pollutant loading to the lake, including 
phosphorus, by reducing stormwater discharge with the intent to improve water quality for 
the lake.  

Section VII Description 

If applicable, describe how the project impacts or protects RCWD groundwater 
resources, minimizes impervious surfaces, and/or maximizes infiltration. 

The project will remove 12,450SF of impervious pavement. The installation of pervious 
pavers will allow infiltration of the stormwater runoff that drains to this area. The angular 
rock under the pavers allows for 10,300CF of stormwater storage volume. 

Describe how long-term operation and maintenance of the project will be accomplished 
and identify the individual(s) responsible for maintenance activities if different than the 
project officer listed in section 2. 

Shoreview has 17 installations of pervious pavers throughout the city. Staff has knowledge 
of installation and maintenance of this style pavers and is confident in the operation of the 
system. 

Maintenance and operations include application of a spray coating to protect the pavers 
from salt damage, use of a rubber snow plow blade to prevent damage during snow 
maintenance, annual inspection, replacement of individual blocks as needed, street 
sweeping five times per year in addition to a vacuum sweep as needed to prevent clogging. 

Section VIII Priotization 

By capturing stormwater runoff from Milton Street and Randy Avenue environmental 
benefits for the area are anticipated, including pollutant loading reduction and stormwater 
volume reduction. It is the intent of the project to continue to improve water quality and 
reduce discharge to address the TMDL for Island Lake, continuing the water quality 
protection work which has recently see the lake removed from the impaired waters list. 

204



ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION 
1. Annual Designation of Depository and Newspaper (Nick Tomczik) 

  

205



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Rice Creek Watershed District  

1 | P a g e  

 

 

Date:  February 2, 2026 

To:  RCWD Board of Managers 

From:  Nick Tomczik, Administrator 

Subject: Annual Designation of Depository and Newspaper 
 

Introduction 
The District by-laws require annual designation of an official depository and newspaper. 
 
 
Background 
The District Board must annually designate an official depository and newspaper.  This is stated 
in the By-Laws of RCWD Article 4, Section 8 identifying the designation to occur at the first 
regular meeting in February. 

The District’s current official depository is PMA Financial Network, LLC. administering the 4M 
Fund with US Bank as the financial institution. 

The District’s current official newspaper is the St. Paul Pioneer Press. 

 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends no change to District’s official depository and official newspaper. 
 
 
Proposed Board Motion 
Manager _______moves to designate PMA Financial Network, LLC. administering the 4M Fund 
with US Bank as the financial institution as the official depository of the Rice Creek Watershed 
District and the St. Paul Pioneer Press as the official newspaper of the Rice Creek Watershed 
District. 

206



ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION 
2. Jones Lake Outlet Modification, Dredging, and Restoration Project 

– Environmental Assessment Worksheet Findings of Fact (David 
Petry) 

  

207



 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Rice Creek Watershed District  

1 | P a g e  

 

 

Date:  February 4, 2026 

To:  RCWD Board of Managers 

From:  David Petry, Project Manager 

Subject: Jones Lake Project, EAW, Finding of Fact 
 

Introduction 
Rice Creek Watershed District (RCWD) has requested Houston Engineering, Inc. (HEI) to prepare responses to 
comments received in response to the Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) for the Jones Lake Outlet 
Modification, Dredging, and Restoration Project. In conclusion, staff recommend the Board adopt the Negative 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) Declaration, Findings of Fact, and Conclusions of Law and Order (Declaration). 

Background 
HEI prepared the EAW and it was approved by the RCWD Board for publication to the EQB Monitor on December 
10, 2025. The 30-day comment period for the EAW was open from December 23, 2025 – January 22, 2026. 
Comments were received from four agencies: MN Department of Health, Met Council, MN Pollution Control Agency, 
and MN Department of Natural Resources. HEI prepared responses to comments with feedback from RCWD program 
managers.  

Upon reviewing the comments received, and responses to those comments, HEI prepared (and reviewed by Rinke 
Noonan) the Declaration for Board consideration, and to be adopted by the Board.  

Within 5 business days of making the Declaration , RCWD will distribute a notice of the Declaration to the full EAW 
distribution list and all individuals who submitted comments. Then, the Declaration will be posted to the EQB 
Monitor, which marks the RCWD’s final decision. Once published, any appeal must be filed through the Court of 
Appeals and is limited to a 30-day window following publication.  

Staff and HEI have had multiple pre-application meetings with the various regulatory agencies to discuss the project 
and concerns and coordinate applicable permits for this project. We will continue to engage them as we submit the 
permit applications to ensure any outstanding concerns are adequately addressed.  

Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommend the Board of Managers adopt the Negative Environmental Impact Statement Declaration, Findings 
of Fact, and Conclusions of Law and Order, and authorize the Administrator and Board President to execute the 
Order.  

Proposed Motion 
Manager                     moves to adopt the Jones Lake Outlet Modification, Dredging, and Restoration Project Negative 
Environmental Impact Statement Declaration, Findings of Fact, and Conclusions of Law and Order, and authorize the 
Administrator and Board President to execute the Order, seconded by Manager                                    . 

Attachments 

• Negative EIS Declaration, Finding of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order 

• Appendix A – EAW Comments/Responses 

208



February 11, 2026  Page 1 of 3 

RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT BOARD OF MANAGERS 

NEGATIVE EIS DECLARATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
WHEREAS, Rice Creek Watershed District acting as the local sponsor and RGU, adopted the 

following Negative Environmental Impact State Declaration, Findings of Fact, Conclusions of 

Law and Order in the matter of the decision of the need for an Environmental Impact Statement 

for the Jones Lake Outlet Modification, Dredging and Restoration Project that involves a 

modification to the outlet, construction of a sediment forebay, dredging sediment from within 

and adjacent to the basin, and restore the habitat within and around the basin. 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 
A. Rice Creek Watershed District is proposing a project at Jones Lake to modify its outlet, 

construct a sediment forebay, dredge sediment from within and adjacent to the basin, and 

restore the habitat within and around the basin. The planned depth of excavation is 

intended to match historic (early mid-20th century) conditions and is based on field 

survey of loosely consolidated sediment depths. The outlet structure is designed to 

attenuate flood flows without impacting surrounding structures. A sediment forebay is 

planned to capture sediment before it enters Jones Lake from the RCD 5 system south of 

Jones Lake. 

B. An extreme rainfall event on July 16th, 2011 greatly heightened the awareness of flooding 

and flood risk along the RCD 2, 3, and 5 public drainage systems. The consequences of 

this rainfall event prompted the cities (New Brighton, St. Anthony and Roseville) to 

evaluate the adequacy of their existing stormwater conveyance and management facilities 

resulting in the submission of a petition to the RCWD to develop a comprehensive plan 

to address flood risks in the watershed 

C. A three-phase feasibility study by Houston Engineering, Inc. dated June 10, 2014, 

September 4, 2019 and May 18, 2021 assessed several projects within New Brighton, St. 

Anthony, and Roseville; forming a comprehensive strategy to achieve cost effective 

stormwater management, reduce flood risk, and water quality improvements, while 

enhancing ecological resources and public amenities. The modification of Jones Lake 

Outlet and Dredging was the only project which creates benefits in all three categories.  

D. As local sponsor, Rice Creek Watershed District initiated environmental review, in 

accordance with Minnesota Rules 4410.4300 subp. 27, by the preparation of a mandatory 

Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) to determine if the project had the 

potential for significant environmental effects. 

In the Matter of the Decision of the Need 

for an Environmental Impact Statement 

for the Jones Lake Outlet Modification, 

Dredging and Restoration Project, in 

Ramsey County, Minnesota.  

FINDINGS OF FACT, 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW,     

AND ORDER 

209



February 11, 2026  Page 2 of 3 

E. Houston Engineering Inc., on behalf of Rice Creek Watershed District, prepared the 

EAW for the project in accordance with Minnesota Rules Chapter 4410. 

F. The EAW and supporting technical materials used in preparation of the EAW are 

incorporated by reference into this Record of Decision on the Determination of Need for 

an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS). 

G. The EAW was filed with the Environmental Quality Board (EQB) and a notice of its 

availability was published in the EQB Monitor on December 23, 2025. A copy of the 

EAW was sent to all persons on the EQB Distribution List and to those persons 

requesting a copy.  Press releases announcing the availability of the EAW were sent to 

the local newspaper and uploaded to the Rice Creek Watershed District web site. 

H. The 30-day EAW public review and comment began December 23, 2025, and ended 

January 22, 2026, pursuant to Minnesota Rules part 4410.1600. 

I. During the 30-day public review and comment period, Rice Creek Watershed District 

received three (4) letters containing written comments. Comments were received from the 

following parties: 

a. Anna Munsell, Hydrologist, Environmental Health Division, Minnesota 

Department of Health. 

b. Angela Torres, Senior Manager, Local Planning Assistance, Metropolitan 

Council. 

c. Chris Green, Project Manager, Environmental Review Unit, Resource 

Management and Assistance Division, Minnesota Pollution Control Agency. 

d. Melissa Collins, Regional Environmental Assessment Ecologist, Ecological and 

Water Resources, Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 

 

J. Written comments received and Houston Engineering’s responses, on behalf of Rice 

Creek Watershed District are compiled in Appendix A and incorporated by reference 

into this Record of Decision on the Determination of Need for an EIS. 

 

K. Responses provided by the DNR will be considered by the DNR during their public water 

work permit review and incorporated into the  final design for the Jones Lake Outlet 

Modification, Dredging, and Restoration Project as applicable.  

 

L. The Rules of the Minnesota Environmental Quality Board set forth the following 

standards and criteria (Minnesota Rules part 4410.1700, subps. 6 and 7) to which the 

effects of a project are to be compared to determine whether it has the potential for 

significant environmental effects: 

a. Type, extent and reversibility of the environmental effects; 

b. Cumulative potential effects of related or anticipated future projects; 

c. Extent to which the environmental effects are subject to mitigation by ongoing 

regulatory authority; and 

210



February 11, 2026  Page 3 of 3 

d. The extent to which environmental effects can be anticipated and controlled as a 

result of other environmental studies undertaken by public agencies or the project 

proposer, including other EISs.  

 

M. Based on the information contained within the EAW and provided in written comments 

received and in the responses to those comments, Rice Creek Watershed District has 

identified no un-mitigated environmental effects for the Jones Lake Outlet Modification, 

Dredging, and Restoration Project. 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

 
1. Rice Creek Watershed District, which is the RGU for the project, has fulfilled the procedural 

requirements of law and rule applicable for the need of a Mandatory EAW.  

 

2. There are adequate and appropriate state and local regulations governing the activities of this 

project that will limit and control environmental effects, specifically the impacts to wetlands, 

public waters, and rare/natural resources.  

 

3. It has been determined that the proposed project does not present a potential for 

environmental impacts of such significance that an Environmental Impact Statement would 

be required.  

 

ORDER 

 
Based on the above Findings of Fact and Conclusions and the entire record of this matter: 

 

The Rice Creek Watershed District Board of Managers hereby makes a Negative Declaration on 

the need for an Environmental Impact Statement. An EIS is not required for the Jones Lake 

Outlet Modification, Dredging and Restoration Project in Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

 

Any Findings that might properly be termed Conclusions and any Conclusions that might 

properly be termed Findings are herby adopted as such. 

  

Dated this 11th day of February 2026 

 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

 

             

Nick Tomczik 

District Administrator 

 

Rice Creek Watershed District  

Michael Bradley 

President 

 

211



Appendix A 

JONES LAKE 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MN 

EAW COMMENTS/RESPONSES 

COMMENT 

ID 

PUBLIC 

COMMENT

/AGENCY 

REVIEW 

COMMENT 

TOPIC 

ORIGINAL REVIEW COMMENT RESPONSE 

1 MDH Emergency 

Well 

Location 

Section 12.a.i discussing groundwater does 

not mention the New Brighton emergency well 

located within the area of interest. Care 

should be taken to protect the well during 

construction from both heavy equipment, 

possible spills, and stormwater run-o(. Public 

water supply well locations are not public. We 

suggest that Rice Creek work with the Source 

Water Protection Unit at MDH or the city of 

New Brighton Public Works for the exact 

location of the well and in  

determining suitable protection for this public 

water supply well. 

Comment noted. RCWD is aware of the well and 

maintains a GIS layer of wells for its regulatory 

authorities and programs. RCWD will coordinate with 

its project partner, City of New Brighton, on the 

proximity of the well to the construction site. 

2 Metropolita

n Council 

Sta( 

Review 

The sta( review finds that the EAW is 

complete and accurate with respect to 

regional concerns and raises no major issues 

of consistency with Council policies. An EIS is 

not necessary for regional purposes. 

Comment noted. 

212



JONES LAKE 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MN 

EAW COMMENTS/RESPONSES 

COMMENT 

ID 

PUBLIC 

COMMENT

/AGENCY 

REVIEW 

COMMENT 

TOPIC 

ORIGINAL REVIEW COMMENT RESPONSE 

3 MPCA Watershed Water resources section 12: Jones Lakes 

TMDL - I recommend that instead of "a TMDL 

is required", a "TMDL has not been 

completed." 

Comment noted. 

4 MPCA Watershed Water resources section 12: Include: County 

Ditch 2 (07010206-522) is within the one-mile 

radius. It is impaired for Benthic 

macroinvertebrates bioassessments, 

Chloride, and Fish bioassessments. There is a 

completed Chloride TMDL. 

Comment noted. 

213



JONES LAKE 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MN 

EAW COMMENTS/RESPONSES 

COMMENT 

ID 

PUBLIC 

COMMENT

/AGENCY 

REVIEW 

COMMENT 

TOPIC 

ORIGINAL REVIEW COMMENT RESPONSE 

5 DNR Excavation The magnitude of the excavation of Jones Lake 

that is proposed in the EAW, in terms of both 

area and depth, lacks clear justification and 

appears unlikely to meet DNR’s rules 

regarding excavation in public waters. Minn. R 

6115.0200, subp. 1, Goals states it is DNR’s 

goal to limit excavation in public waters to 

“preserve the natural character of public 

waters and their shorelands, in order to 

minimize encroachment, change, or damage 

to the environment, particularly the 

ecosystem of the waters” and to “regulate the 

nature, degree, and purpose of excavations so 

that excavations will be compatible with the 

capability of the waters to assimilate the 

excavation.” 

The proposed depth of excavation is based on 

a depth of refusal survey, rather than detailed 

soil borings. The material above and below the 

depth of refusal is not described. The 

evidence provided is insu(icient to determine 

the depth of post-development accumulated 

sediment. 

The proposed project meets Minn. R 6115.0200 Subp. 

1. Jones Lake currently is not representative of a 

natural ecosystem due to the severe degradation 

resulting from upstream urbanization.  This 

urbanization has delivered sediment and nutrients to 

the lake over the last century that has filled in much of 

the wetland, damaging the ecosystem.  The only 

feasible method of restoring ecological habitat to the 

system is to excavate the accumulated sediment from 

the last 100+ years of urban development that has 

been deposited in the lake.   

 

The RCWD has developed extensive analysis to 

determine the most reasonable approximation of 

conditions that existed prior to rapid upstream 

development.  This information includes: 

- Subsurface soil survey in Jones Lake 

completed by the City of New Brighton in 2015 

identifying the interface between loose 

organic matter and compacted subsoils. 

Approximately 100 data points were collected 

- Survey completed by Houston Engineering in 

2025 identifying existing top of bog and survey 

below the bog surface 

- Analysis of historic aerial photos identifying 

the change in open water extents from 1957 

2025 

214



JONES LAKE 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MN 

EAW COMMENTS/RESPONSES 

COMMENT 

ID 

PUBLIC 

COMMENT

/AGENCY 

REVIEW 

COMMENT 

TOPIC 

ORIGINAL REVIEW COMMENT RESPONSE 

Material proposed to be excavated is almost 

entirely loosely consolidated muck and cattail 

material that was not present in 1957. 

The magnitude of excavation proposed for this project 

is similar to that permitted and completed just 

downstream at Hansen Park under the same DNR 

public water rule requirements. 

215



JONES LAKE 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MN 

EAW COMMENTS/RESPONSES 

COMMENT 

ID 

PUBLIC 

COMMENT

/AGENCY 

REVIEW 

COMMENT 

TOPIC 

ORIGINAL REVIEW COMMENT RESPONSE 

6 DNR Aerial 

Imagery 

The EAW states that sediment removal is 

necessary to restore habitat to conditions 

similar to pre-settlement, but the area of 

maximum depth of excavation is based on the 

extent of the open water observed in a single 

1957 aerial photo. Other publicly available 

aerial photos that pre-date 1957 show a 

smaller open water extent. For example, the 

1940 aerial photograph available in Ramsey 

County’s Interactive Property Map shows 

virtually no open water area in Jones Lake. 

Historical maps of Ramsey County from the 

late 1800s show Jones Lake as a mapped 

waterbody, but the depth of the lake or the 

amount of aquatic vegetation in the lake at the 

time are not shown. Jones Lake is a public 

waters wetland, mapped in the National 

Wetland Inventory as having shallow open 

water in the center of the lake and freshwater 

emergent wetland over the rest of the lake 

area. There is no indication that the general 

wetland characteristics of Jones Lake have 

significantly changed over time. 

Multiple aerial photos were considered between the 

1940s and today.  The photos clearly indicate a 

progression from 1957 through the 1980s and beyond 

of a basin experiencing degradation due to 

sedimentation rapidly accelerated by urban 

development.  This basin is located downstream of an 

urban landscape with virtually no stormwater 

treatment devices, and the first significant water body 

that runo( drains through in much of this area is Jones 

Lake. 

 

The 1940s aerial was taken 6/11/1940. According to 

Antecedent Precipitation and the historical data from 

the National Integrated Drought Information System, 

this area of Ramsey County was experiencing a 

“Moderate Drought” at the time.  This is likewise 

following the “dustbowl” years of the 1930s which had 

prolonged drought in the region, particularly a(ecting 

shallow marshes.  This explains the lack of water in 

the imagery and why the 1940s photo is not 

representative of a natural or prolonged condition in 

the lake. 

 

Jones Lake is appropriately characterized as a shallow 

open-water marsh in the central portion with 

freshwater emergent wetland surrounding it. However, 

the relative extent and quality of these wetland types 

216



JONES LAKE 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MN 

EAW COMMENTS/RESPONSES 

COMMENT 

ID 

PUBLIC 

COMMENT

/AGENCY 

REVIEW 

COMMENT 

TOPIC 

ORIGINAL REVIEW COMMENT RESPONSE 

have substantially changed over time, beginning with 

the first draining of the lake by the construction of 

Ramsey County Ditch 2 in 1908. Specifically, the 

proportion of emergent wetland relative to shallow 

open water has increased, and the overall ecological 

condition of the wetland has declined. This change in 

quality is evidenced by the dominance of invasive or 

disturbance-tolerant species, including hybrid cattail 

(Typha × glauca) and reed canary grass (Phalaris 

arundinacea), which are widely recognized indicators 

of altered hydrology and degraded wetland 

conditions. 

217



JONES LAKE 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MN 

EAW COMMENTS/RESPONSES 

COMMENT 

ID 

PUBLIC 

COMMENT

/AGENCY 

REVIEW 

COMMENT 

TOPIC 

ORIGINAL REVIEW COMMENT RESPONSE 

7 DNR Excavation 

of Public 

Waters 

Minn. R. 6115.0201, subp. 3 has specific 

standards for water basin excavations. To be 

approved, a proposed project must be 

intended to achieve one or more of the 

following public purposes: (1) to improve 

navigation, swimming, and other recreational 

uses; (2) to reduce winter fish-kill potential; (3) 

sediment removal to eliminate a source of 

nutrients and/or contaminants. To be 

approved, a water basin excavation project 

must be designed to achieve at least one of 

the specific purposes mentioned in the rule. 

Flood control, notably, is not included in the 

rule’s list of public purposes for excavation. If 

the proposed excavation is to eliminate a 

source of nutrients/contaminants in 

accumulated sediments, the depths of 

accumulated sediment within  

the basin and concentrations of 

nutrients/contaminants in those sediments 

will be required as part of a public waters work 

permit application. 

The project meets criteria (3): “sediment removal to 

eliminate a source of nutrients and/or contaminants.”  

Jones Lake internal loading is estimated to be 70 lbs. 

of phosphorus annually. The project will remove loose 

sediment which is causing release of 

orthophosphorus into the water column, contributing 

to impairments within the lake and in downstream 

lakes.  The removal of sediment when dredged and 

disposed of o(-site, is estimated to reduce internal 

loading by a range of 25% to 95%. Therefore, dredging 

the accumulated sediment in Jones Lake have been 

estimated to potentially provide an additional 

reduction of 15 to 63 lbs. of TP annually. 

Water quality in Jones Lake will continue to improve 

via the capture of sediment in the proposed forebay.  

Applicant will continue to work with DNR during the 

public waters work permit process to address these 

concerns. Depths of accumulated sediments will be 

provided during permit process. 

218



JONES LAKE 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MN 

EAW COMMENTS/RESPONSES 

COMMENT 

ID 

PUBLIC 

COMMENT

/AGENCY 

REVIEW 

COMMENT 

TOPIC 

ORIGINAL REVIEW COMMENT RESPONSE 

8 DNR Storm 

bounce 

The EAW does not adequately describe the 

e(ect of the proposed new outlet structure on 

the hydrology of Jones Lake. Minn. R. 

6115.0220, subp. 1, Goals state it is DNR’s 

goal to “maintain or restore natural flow and 

natural water level conditions to the maximum 

feasible extent.” Further, Minn. R. 6115.0221, 

subp. 2 requires proposed lake level control 

facilities to be  “Reasonably consistent with 

natural conditions.” It appears, however, that 

the design would significantly increase the 

“storm bounce” in Jones Lake. Storm bounce 

is recognized to have negative e(ects on 

wetland health. Rice Creek Watershed 

District’s Rule C, Stormwater Management 

seeks to limit the negative e(ects of excessive 

bounce by setting specific hydroperiod 

standards for wetlands. The EAW indicates 

that the 100-year flood elevation would 

increase by 0.67 feet. No information on 

hydrology changes is provided for other storm 

events. A more thorough hydrologic analysis, 

including a broad range of storm events, is 

needed to understand the e(ects of the 

proposed outlet on Jones Lake. 

An existing weir is currently present at the outlet of 

Jones Lake, and the proposed outlet structure does 

not alter the established runout elevation.  

Under Rice Creek Watershed District Rule C, Jones 

Lake is classified as a slightly susceptible wetland. 

For wetlands in this category, RCWD standards allow 

storm bounce for the 2-year and 10-year events of up 

to existing conditions plus 1.0 foot, with additional 

inundation durations of up to two days for the 2-year 

event and up to 14 days for the 10-year event. The 

anticipated hydrologic response of Jones Lake under 

the proposed outlet is consistent with the allowable 

standards. 

While Minn. R. 6115.0220 and 6115.0221 reference 

maintaining or restoring natural flow and water levels 

to the maximum feasible extent, it is important to note 

that fully natural hydrologic conditions do not 

currently exist within the Jones Lake basin. The 

watershed has experienced extensive hydrologic 

modification over the past century, including 

upstream drainage alterations, outlet modifications, 

and shoreline disturbances. Given the extent and 

permanence of these alterations, restoration of fully 

natural flow and water level regimes is not feasible 

within the basin. The proposed outlet is therefore 

designed to function within the context of existing, 

219



JONES LAKE 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MN 

EAW COMMENTS/RESPONSES 

COMMENT 

ID 

PUBLIC 

COMMENT

/AGENCY 

REVIEW 

COMMENT 

TOPIC 

ORIGINAL REVIEW COMMENT RESPONSE 

long-altered hydrologic conditions rather than 

attempting to replicate pre-settlement hydrology. 

With respect to storm bounce, while excessive and 

prolonged water level fluctuations can negatively 

a(ect wetland health, storm bounce in itself does not 

inherently result in adverse ecological impacts. 

Potential negative e(ects can be e(ectively mitigated 

through restoration strategies such as revegetation 

with species appropriate to the site’s hydrologic 

regime. Existing vegetation within the basin is 

dominated by disturbance-tolerant and invasive 

species, which is not indicative of a high-quality or 

resilient wetland ecosystem. The proposed project 

provides an opportunity to improve wetland function 

through vegetation management and restoration, 

thereby o(setting potential stressors associated with 

water level fluctuations.  

The EAW discloses that the modeled 100-year flood 

elevation would increase by approximately 0.67 feet. 

A more detailed hydrologic analysis evaluating a 

broader range of storm events, including 2-year and 

10-year events, will be provided as part of the Public 

Waters Work Permit application as well as the 

restoration and maintenance plan.  

 

220



JONES LAKE 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MN 

EAW COMMENTS/RESPONSES 

COMMENT 

ID 

PUBLIC 

COMMENT

/AGENCY 

REVIEW 

COMMENT 

TOPIC 

ORIGINAL REVIEW COMMENT RESPONSE 

9 DNR Quantifiabl

e Flood 

Reductions 

The desired direct e(ect of the project, 

according to the EAW, is to increase flood 

storage capacity and thereby reduce 

downstream flood risk. However, no 

quantifiable reductions in flood risk, such as 

the number of habitable structures removed 

from the floodplain, are described in the EAW. 

A major change in the configuration of the 

established outlet of Jones Lake must be 

adequately justified with a clear public 

benefit. 

The reduction of flood risk is just one of multiple 

project purposes, which also include downstream and 

in-lake nutrient reduction and wetland habitat 

restoration.  

 

In prior studies, RCWD has identified specific 

reduction in peak inundation depth in locations such 

as Interstate 35W and Garden View Apartments.  

These studies are available on the RCWD website and 

will be provided in conjunction with the public waters 

work permit application. 

 

10 DNR Storm 

Bounce 

wetland 

impacts 

The EAW claims without supporting evidence 

that the project will restore wetland function 

and will result in “enhanced habitat quality for 

aquatic and wetland species.” Enhanced 

habitat quality is claimed despite the project’s 

likely e(ect of increasing the “storm bounce” 

in Jones Lake. The EAW does not describe the 

target hydrology and target vegetation for the 

proposed  

restoration. Without such analysis and 

planning, it cannot be determined whether the 

proposed project will result in a successful 

habitat restoration. 

Removing invasive species, household waste, and 

construction waste from the basin, and decreasing 

internal phosphorus loading to the basin, are 

evidence of wetland function restoration. Details on 

vegetation restoration will be provided in public 

waters permit submittals.  

221



JONES LAKE 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MN 

EAW COMMENTS/RESPONSES 

COMMENT 

ID 

PUBLIC 

COMMENT

/AGENCY 

REVIEW 

COMMENT 

TOPIC 

ORIGINAL REVIEW COMMENT RESPONSE 

11 DNR 100-year 

Flood 

Elevation 

In accordance with Minn. R. 6120.5700, subp. 

4(A), increases in the 100-year flood elevation 

of greater than 0.5 feet require a special 

commissioner's approval. The EAW indicates 

that the project would increase the 100-year 

flood elevation by 0.67 feet. 

Comment noted. 

12 DNR Alternatives The EAW in several locations indicates that 

alternatives were considered in project 

development. However, the EAW does not 

explain what alternatives were evaluated nor 

provide any analysis of these alternatives. 

Please be advised that any application for a 

DNR public waters work permit must include 

a robust alternatives analysis that can 

demonstrate that the chosen alternative is the 

minimal impact solution to a specific need 

with respect to all other reasonable 

alternatives, and does not exceed more than a 

minimum encroachment, change, or damage 

to the environment, particularly the ecology of 

the waters. 

Comment noted. Multiple alternative analyses have 

been completed over the last 13 years, each of which 

have identified the proposed project as the only 

feasible project to address the flooding, water quality, 

and ecological concerns in this location.  This analysis 

has been discussed with regulating agencies in prior 

pre-application meetings.  Applicant will submit a 

robust alternative analysis when applying for public 

waters work permit. 

222



JONES LAKE 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MN 

EAW COMMENTS/RESPONSES 

COMMENT 

ID 

PUBLIC 

COMMENT

/AGENCY 

REVIEW 

COMMENT 

TOPIC 

ORIGINAL REVIEW COMMENT RESPONSE 

13 DNR Threatened

/Endangere

d Species 

Page 43, State-Listed Species.  Please note 

that the DNR Rare Species Guide currently 

lists 588 endangered, threatened, and species 

of special concern. It appears that the EAW 

shows an incorrect number of species of 

special concern, as well as listed species in 

Ramsey County. Please review these numbers 

and update Table 14 if there are any changes. 

Also note, at the time of the Natural Heritage 

Review, the federally-listed rusty-patched 

bumblebee was not state-listed, but has since 

been uplisted to the status of state-

endangered. 

Comment noted. Note correction: There are 296 

species of special concern in the state of MN. Ramsey 

county information listed is in accordance to the 2024 

NHIS layer. The note about Rusty-Patched bumblebee 

is noted, however no information has been provided to 

the public yet, nor can it be found on the DNR’s 

website. The status and table accuracy will be 

checked again to ensure current information before 

inclusion in permit application, as applicable. 

 

223



An equal opportunity employer. 

 

P r o t e c t i n g ,  M a i n t a i n i n g  a n d  I m p r o v i n g  t h e  H e a l t h  o f  A l l  M i n n e s o t a n s  

January 6, 2026 

David Petry 
Rice Creek Watershed District  
Project Manager  
4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive NE, #611 
Blaine, MN 55449 

Dear David Petry 

Thank you for providing the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH) with the opportunity to 
comment on the Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) for the proposed Jones Lake 
Outlet Modification, Dredging, and Restoration Project. The mission of MDH is to protect, 
maintain, and improve the health of all Minnesotans. The careful planning and development of 
projects such as this one supports this mission and is an important step in ensuring health in all 
policies. 

Section 12.a.i discussing groundwater does not mention the New Brighton emergency well 
located within the area of interest. Care should be taken to protect the well during construction 
from both heavy equipment, possible spills, and stormwater run-off. Public water supply well 
locations are not public. We suggest that Rice Creek work with the Source Water Protection Unit 
at MDH or the city of New Brighton Public Works for the exact location of the well and in 
determining suitable protections for this public water supply well. 

Health starts where we live, learn, work, and play. To create and maintain healthy Minnesota 
communities, we have to think in terms of health in all policies. Thank you again for the 
opportunity to provide comments on this EAW for the proposed Jones Lake Outlet Modification, 
Dredging, and Restoration Project. Feel free to contact Anneka Munsell at (651) 201-5841 or 
anneka.munsell@state.mn.us if you have any questions regarding this letter.  

Sincerely,  

Anneka Munsell 
Environmental Health Division 
PO Box 64975, 
St. Paul, MN 55164-0975 

224

mailto:anneka.munsell@state.mn.us


2 

 

(651) 201-5841 
anneka.munsell@state.mn.us 
www.health.state.mn.us 

CC:  

David Bell, MDH, Environmental Review Coordinator 
John Woodside, MDH, Hydrologist Supervisor 
Steve Robertson, MDH, Source Water Protection Manager 
Abby Shea, MDH, Source Water Protection Planner 

225

mailto:anneka.munsell@state.mn.us
http://www.health.state.mn.us/


Metropolitan Council (Regional Office & Environmental Services) 
390 Robert Street North, Saint Paul, MN 55101-1805 
P 651.602.1000 | F 651.602.1550 | TTY 651.291.0904 
metrocouncil.org 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 

  

January 20, 2026 
 
David Petry, Project Manager 
Rice Creek Watershed District 
4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive NE, #611 
Blaine, MN 55449 
 
 
RE: Rice Creek Watershed District – Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) – Jones 

Lake Outlet Modification, Dredging, and Restoration 
Metropolitan Council Review No. 23157-1 
Metropolitan Council District No. 2 

 
Dear David Petry: 
 
The Metropolitan Council received an EAW for the Jones Lake Outlet Modification, Dredging, and 
Restoration project in the Rice Creek Watershed District on December 16, 2025. The proposed project is 
located generally east of Old Highway 8 NW and west of I-35W in the City of New Brighton in Ramsey 
County. The Rice Creek Watershed District proposes a project at Jones Lake to modify its outlet, 
construct a sediment forebay, dredge sediment from within and adjacent to the basin, and restore the 
habitat within and around the basin. The staff review finds that the EAW is complete and accurate with 
respect to regional concerns and raises no major issues of consistency with Council policies. An EIS is 
not necessary for regional purposes.   
 
This concludes the Council’s review of the EAW. The Council will take no formal action on the EAW. If 
you have any questions or need further information, please contact Amber Turnquest, Principal 
Reviewer, at 651-602-1576 or via email at Amber.Turnquest@metc.state.mn.us. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Angela R. Torres, AICP, Senior Manager 
Local Planning Assistance 
 
 
CC: Tod Sherman, Development Reviews Coordinator, MnDOT - Metro Division  
 Reva Chamblis, Metropolitan Council District No. 2 
 Ben Gozola, Assistant Director of Community Assets and Development, New Brighton 
 Amber Turnquest, Sector Representative/Principal Reviewer 
 Reviews Coordinator 
 
N:\CommDev\LPA\Agencies\Watershed Districts\Rice Creek WD\Letters\Rice Creek WD 2026 Jones Lake Outlet Modification, Dredging, and 
Restoration EAW Admin Review 23157-1.docx 
 

226

mailto:Amber.Turnquest@metc.state.mn.us


 
 
January 21, 2026 
 
 
David Petry 
Rice Creek Watershed District 
4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive Northeast, Suite 611 
Blaine, Minnesota 55449 
dpetry@ricecreek.org 
 
RE: Jones Lake Outlet Modification – Environmental Assessment Worksheet 
 
Dear David Petry: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review and comment on the Environmental Assessment Worksheet 
(EAW) for the Jones Lake Outlet Modification project (Project) located in Ramsey County, Minnesota. 
The Project consists of Rice Creek Watershed District proposing a project at Jones Lake to modify its 
outlet, construct a sediment forebay, dredge sediment from within and adjacent to the basin, and 
restore the habitat within and around the basin. The planned depth of excavation is intended to match 
historic (early mid-20th century) conditions and is based on a field survey of loosely consolidated 
sediment depths. The outlet structure is designed to attenuate flood flows without impacting 
surrounding structures. A sediment forebay is planned to capture sediments before it enters Jones Lake 
from the RCD 5 system south of Jones Lake. Regarding matters for which the Minnesota Pollution 
Control Agency (MPCA) has regulatory responsibility and other interests, the MPCA staff has the 
following comments for your consideration. 
 
Watershed: 

• Water resources section 12: 
• Jones Lakes TMDL - I recommend that instead of "a TMDL is required", a "TMDL has not 

been completed." 
• Include: County Ditch 2 (07010206-522) is within the one-mile radius. It is impaired for 

Benthic macroinvertebrates bioassessments, Chloride, and Fish bioassessments. There is a 
completed Chloride TMDL. 

 
We appreciate the opportunity to review this Project. Please be aware that this letter does not 
constitute approval by the MPCA of any or all elements of the Project for the purpose of pending or 
future permit actions by the MPCA. Ultimately, it is the responsibility of the Project Proposer to secure 
any required permits and to comply with any requisite permit conditions. If you have any questions 
concerning our review of this EAW, please contact me by email at chris.green@state.mn.us or by 
telephone at 507-476-4258. 
  

227

mailto:dpetry@ricecreek.org
mailto:chris.green@state.mn.us


David Petry 
Page 2 
January 21, 2026 

Sincerely, 

Chris Green 
This document has been electronically signed. 

Chris Green, Project Manager 
Environmental Review Unit 
Resource Management and Assistance Division 
 
CG:rs 
 
Attachment 
 
cc: Amy Timm, MPCA (w/attachment) 
 Melinda Neville, MPCA (w/attachment) 
 Nicole Peterson, MPCA (w/attachment) 
 Lauren Dickerson, MPCA (w/attachment) 
 Deepa deAlwis, MPCA (w/attachment) 

228



1 

 

 
Division of Ecological and Water Resources      Transmitted by Email 
Region 3 Headquarters 
1200 Warner Road 
Saint Paul, MN 55106 

January 22, 2026 

  

David Petry 
Rice Creek Watershed District 
4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive NE, #611 
Blaine, MN 55449 

 

Dear David Petry, 

Thank you for the opportunity to review the Jones Lake Outlet Modification, Dredging, and Restoration 
Project Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) for the project area located in Ramsey County. 
The DNR appreciates the ongoing coordination that has already occurred regarding the project; 
however, we continue to have concerns about the ability of the project to meet DNR’s public water 
rules as currently proposed. Therefore, we respectfully submit the following comments for your 
consideration: 

1. The magnitude of the excavation of Jones Lake that is proposed in the EAW, in terms of both 
area and depth, lacks clear justification and appears unlikely to meet DNR’s rules regarding 
excavation in public waters. Minn. R 6115.0200, subp. 1, Goals states it is DNR’s goal to limit 
excavation in public waters to “preserve the natural character of public waters and their 
shorelands, in order to minimize encroachment, change, or damage to the environment, 
particularly the ecosystem of the waters” and to “regulate the nature, degree, and purpose of 
excavations so that excavations will be compatible with the capability of the waters to 
assimilate the excavation.” 

The proposed depth of excavation is based on a depth of refusal survey, rather than detailed 
soil borings. The material above and below the depth of refusal is not described. The evidence 
provided is insufficient to determine the depth of post-development accumulated sediment. 

The EAW states that sediment removal is necessary to restore habitat to conditions similar to 
pre-settlement, but the area of maximum depth of excavation is based on the extent of the 
open water observed in a single 1957 aerial photo. Other publicly available aerial photos that 
pre-date 1957 show a smaller open water extent. For example, the 1940 aerial photograph 
available in Ramsey County’s Interactive Property Map shows virtually no open water area in 
Jones Lake. Historical maps of Ramsey County from the late 1800s show Jones Lake as a 
mapped waterbody, but the depth of the lake or the amount of aquatic vegetation in the lake 

229



2 

 

at the time are not shown. Jones Lake is a public waters wetland, mapped in the National 
Wetland Inventory as having shallow open water in the center of the lake and freshwater 
emergent wetland over the rest of the lake area. There is no indication that the general 
wetland characteristics of Jones Lake have significantly changed over time. 

Minn. R. 6115.0201, subp. 3 has specific standards for waterbasin excavations. To be approved, 
a proposed project must be intended to achieve one or more of the following public purposes: 
(1) to improve navigation, swimming, and other recreational uses; (2) to reduce winter fish-kill 
potential; (3) sediment removal to eliminate a source of nutrients and/or contaminants. To be 
approved, a waterbasin excavation project must be designed to achieve at least one of the 
specific purposes mentioned in the rule. Flood control, notably, is not included in the rule’s list 
of public purposes for excavation. If the proposed excavation is to eliminate a source of 
nutrients/contaminants in accumulated sediments, the depths of accumulated sediment within 
the basin and concentrations of nutrients/contaminants in those sediments will be required as 
part of a public waters work permit application. 

2. The EAW does not adequately describe the effect of the proposed new outlet structure on the 
hydrology of Jones Lake. Minn. R. 6115.0220, subp. 1, Goals states it is DNR’s goal to “maintain 
or restore natural flow and natural water level conditions to the maximum feasible extent.” 
Further, Minn. R. 6115.0221, subp. 2 requires proposed lake level control facilities to be 
“reasonably consistent with natural conditions.” It appears, however, that the design would 
significantly increase the “storm bounce” in Jones Lake. Storm bounce is recognized to have 
negative effects on wetland health. Rice Creek Watershed District’s Rule C, Stormwater 
Management, seeks to limit the negative effects of excessive bounce by setting specific 
hydroperiod standards for wetlands. The EAW indicates that the 100-year flood elevation 
would increase by 0.67 feet. No information on hydrology changes is provided for other storm 
events. A more thorough hydrologic analysis, including a broad range of storm events, is 
needed to understand the effects of the proposed outlet on Jones Lake. 

3. The desired direct effect of the project, according to the EAW, is to increase flood storage 
capacity and thereby reduce downstream flood risk. However, no quantifiable reductions in 
flood risk, such as the number of habitable structures removed from the floodplain, are 
described in the EAW. A major change in the configuration of the established outlet of Jones 
Lake must be adequately justified with a clear public benefit. 

4. The EAW claims without supporting evidence that the project will restore wetland function and 
will result in “enhanced habitat quality for aquatic and wetland species.” Enhanced habitat 
quality is claimed despite the project’s likely effect of increasing the “storm bounce” in Jones 
Lake. The EAW does not describe the target hydrology and target vegetation for the proposed 
restoration. Without such analysis and planning, it cannot be determined whether the 
proposed project will result in a successful habitat restoration. 

5. In accordance with Minn. R. 6120.5700, subp. 4(A), increases in the 100-year flood elevation of 
greater than 0.5 feet require a special commissioner's approval. The EAW indicates that the 
project would increase the 100-year flood elevation by 0.67 feet. 

230



3 

 

6. The EAW in several locations indicates that alternatives were considered in project 
development. However, the EAW does not explain what alternatives were evaluated nor 
provide any analysis of these alternatives. Please be advised that any application for a DNR 
public waters work permit must include a robust alternatives analysis that can demonstrate 
that the chosen alternative is the minimal impact solution to a specific need with respect to all 
other reasonable alternatives, and does not exceed more than a minimum encroachment, 
change, or damage to the environment, particularly the ecology of the waters. 

7. Page 43, State-Listed Species.  Please note that the DNR Rare Species Guide currently lists 588 
endangered, threatened, and species of special concern. It appears that the EAW shows an 
incorrect number of species of special concern, as well as listed species in Ramsey County. 
Please review these numbers and update Table 14 if there are any changes. Also note, at the 
time of the Natural Heritage Review, the federally-listed rusty-patched bumblebee was not 
state-listed, but has since been uplisted to the status of state-endangered.  

Thank you again for the opportunity to review this document. Please let me know if you have any 
questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Melissa Collins 

Regional Environmental Assessment Ecologist | Ecological and Water Resources 
Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
Phone: 651-259-5755 
Email: melissa.collins@state.mn.us 

CC:  Dan Scollan, DNR Area Hydrologist 

 Jack Gleason, DNR Area Hydrologist Supervisor 

Equal Opportunity Employer 

231



ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION 
3. Memorials to RCWD (Nick Tomczik) 

  

232



 

Date: February 5, 2026 

To: RCWD Board of Managers 

From: Nick Tomczik, Administrator 

Subject: Memorials to RCWD 

 

 

Introduction 
Rice Creek Watershed District staff are aware of potential memorials which require do care in the 
District’s records. 
 
 

Background 
Rice Creek Watershed District has been designated the beneficiary of memorial donations by the estate 
of former Citizens’ Advisory Committee member Gary Krejcarek.  The process of accepting and 
documenting memorials has two steps. 
 
Step one recognizes that the District has been designated as a beneficiary of memorial gifts for Gary 
Krejcarek, authorizes deposit of received funds, and acknowledges the donations as furthering a public 
purpose of the District.  Staff will create and maintain an accounting of submitted funds.  Step two is for 
the Board, at a subsequent meeting, to receive the accounting (donations or not), accept the final and 
designate as appropriate how the funds are to be used by the District. 

 
Staff have been contacted by two parties inquiring about making a memorial donation.  Staff will 
prepare and send an acknowledgement for any received donations. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommend adoption of the resolution to establish protocols for any potential donation. 
 
 
Proposed Motion 
Manager _________ moves to approve Resolution 2026-02 Krejcarek Memorial Donations, seconded 
by Manager _________. 
 
 
Attachment 

• Resolution 2026-02 Krejcarek Memorial Donations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 | P a g e 

 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 

Rice Creek Watershed District 

233



 

 1 of 2 
RCWD Resolution 2026-02  
4920-7244-5830, v. 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2026-02 

RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT 
BOARD OF MANAGERS 

KREJCAREK MEMORIAL DONATIONS 

Manager ____________________ offered the following Resolution and moved its 
adoption, seconded by Manager ____________________: 

WHEREAS, the Rice Creek Watershed District has been designated the beneficiary of 
memorial donations by the estate of former Citizens’ Advisory Committee member Gary 
Krejcarek; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Managers of the Rice Creek Watershed District recognizes and 
acknowledges the donations as furthering a public purpose of the Watershed District. 

THEREFORE, the Board authorizes receipt and deposit of such funds; and 

FURTHER, at such later date as a full accounting of donated funds is possible, the Board 
directs its Treasurer and staff to provide a final accounting for approval by the Board, and 

FURTHER, unless conditioned upon a specific use furthering the public purposes of the 
Watershed District, the Board shall, at the time of final accounting, designate how such funds 
shall be used. 

The question was on the adoption of the Resolution and there were ___ yeas and ___ nays as 
follows: 

     Yea  Nay Absent  Abstain 

BRADLEY                   
 ROBERSTON                  
 WALLER                   
 WEINANDT                  
 

Upon vote, the President declared the Resolution _____________. 

 

______________________________________   Dated:  February, 11, 2026 
Jessica Robertson, Secretary  

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

234



 

 2 of 2 
RCWD Resolution 2026-02  
4920-7244-5830, v. 1 

 I, Jessica Roberston, Secretary of the Rice Creek Watershed District, do hereby certify that 
I have compared the above resolution with the original thereof as the same appears of record 
and on file with the District and find the same to be a true and correct transcript thereof. 

 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this 11th day of February, 2026. 

 

       ______________________________  
       Jessica Robertson, Secretary 

235



ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION 
4. Check Register Dated February 11, 2026, in the Amount of 

$252,912.98 Prepared by Redpath and Company 

  

236



Rice Creek Watershed District
Check Register
January 29, 2026 - February 11, 2026
To Be Approved at the February 11, 2026 Board Meeting

Check # Date Payee Description Amount

26803 02/11/26 Awards by Hammond, Inc. Printing 54.00  
26804 02/11/26 Barr Engineering Engineering 9,593.50 *2025
26805 02/11/26 City of Fridley Construction 100,000.00 *2025
26806 02/11/26 City of Mounds View Professional Services 200.00  
26807 02/11/26 EPG Companies Professional Services 8,831.05 *2025
26808 02/11/26 Friends of the Mississippi River Professional Services 24,000.00 *2025
26809 02/11/26 Tom Hoffman Professional Services 1,850.00 *2025
26810 02/11/26 Metropolitan Council Professional Services 5,700.00 *2025
26811 02/11/26 Plaudit Design Professional Services 155.00
26812 02/11/26 Recycle Technologies, Inc. Professional Services 4.50
26813 02/11/26 Rymark Professional Services 3,255.97
26814 02/11/26 Timesaver Off Site Secretarial Professional Services 178.00
26815 02/11/26 Washington Conservation District Professional Services 2,924.00 *2025
26816 02/11/26 WSB  & Associates Engineering 709.00 *2025

11516 02/11/26 Bethel University Surety Release - #21-021 16,900.00
11517 02/11/26 Centerpoint Energy Surety Release - #21-092 1,000.00
11518 02/11/26 Mounds View Public Schools ISD 621 Surety Release - #01-064 5,000.00

Payroll 02/15/26 February 15th Payroll (estimate) February 15th Payroll (estimate) 40,978.85

EFT 02/10/26 US Bank Equipment Finance Equipment Lease 691.94
EFT 02/11/26 Comcast Telecommuncations 334.89
EFT 02/11/26 Wex Bank Vehicle Fuel 169.04
EFT 02/11/26 Xcel Energy Telecommuncations 13.19
EFT 02/11/26 Xcel Energy Telecommuncations 13.92
EFT 12/31/26 Card Services-Elan December Credit Card 1,623.85 *2025
EFT 02/19/26 Card Services-Elan January Credit Card 1,505.39

EFT 02/15/26 Internal Revenue Service 2/15 Federal Withholding  (estimate) 14,392.05
EFT 02/15/26 Minnesota Revenue 2/15 State Withholding (estimate) 2,574.00
EFT 02/15/26 Empower Retirement 2/15 Deferred Compensation 860.00
EFT 02/15/26 Empower Retirement 2/15 Roth IRA 390.00
EFT 02/15/26 Health Equity 2/15 HSA 503.00
EFT 02/15/26 PERA 2/15 PERA (estimate) 8,507.84

Total $252,912.98

Page: 1

237



ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND INFORMATION 
1. District Engineer Updates and Timeline 

 

238



Date Prepared: 4-Feb-26

Prepared by: C. Grandbois

Project Name Task Order Manager
Estimated 

Budget

Cost to 

Date

Remaining 

Budget

Project 

Complete 

/ Transfer 

Funds?

Estimated 

Progress 

Based on 

Work 

Completed

Percentage 

of  Budget 

Utilized

Within 

Budget? 

(Y/N)

District Billed 

for 

Exceedence 

of Budget? 

(Y/N)

Initial Target 

Completion 

Date

Items of Interest / Concern

East Moore Lake Stormwater Resilience and 

Water Quality Analysis
Adam Nies $77,000 $22,994 $54,006 N 20.0% 29.9% Y N/A 1-Feb-26

Potential BMP sites are currently being evaluated using the District 

Wide Model

Old Central Aventue Feasibility Study Greg Bowles $26,000 $14,911 $11,089 N 60.0% 57.3% Y N/A 30-Sep-25 Alternatives for water quality treatment are being reviewed.

JD 3 Clearwater Creek Final Plans Adam Nies $110,000 $10,687 $99,313 N 10.0% 9.7% Y N/A 30-Jun-26
Existing easement data has been assembled.  Project limits are 

being compared to determine easement needs and/or project 

2025 District Wide Modeling Program Annual 

Updates
Bret Zimmerman $35,200 $37,131 ($1,931) N 99.0% 105.5% N N 1-Nov-25 Modeling is complete.  Data is being uploaded to MS4Front

Lake Johanna Outlet Structure Feasibility 

Study
Chris Otterness $13,000 $7,773 $5,227 N 80.0% 59.8% Y N/A 30-Aug-25

Preliminary plans are near completion, and a cost estimate has 

been prepared.

Jones Lake Outlet Modification and Dredging 

Project: Final Design and Permitting
Joe Lewis $485,000 $185,991 $299,009 N 40.0% 38.3% Y N/A 30-Jun-26

EAW comments have been received.  Regulatory applications are 

nearing completion.

Hardwood Creek / JD 2 Subwatershed 

Storage Feasibility Study
Adam Nies $54,000 $21,537 $32,463 N 40.0% 39.9% Y N/A 1-Mar-26

Preliminary screening of potential storage sites has been 

completed.  Potential options are being evaluated.

ARJD 1 Repair Report Adam Nies $102,000 $33,114 $68,887 N 30.0% 32.5% Y N/A 1-Jun-26
Culvert sizing has been completed.  Report preparation is 

underway.

ACD 53-62 Branches 5 & 6 Final Design 

Bidding and Construction Management
Adam Nies $125,000 $75,367 $49,633 N 60.0% 60.3% Y N/A 31-Dec-26

Contractor has completed most excavation within Branch 5 Lateral 

2.

2026 Stormwater Management Grant 

Program Application Review
Chris Otterness $8,100 $4,312 $3,788 N 95.0% 53.2% Y N/A 29-Jan-26

HEI has completed a review of each application and prepared 

scoring.

GIS and Ditch Records Maintenance; 

DrainageDB Annual Subscription
Brian Fischer $19,000 $3,106 $15,894 N 8.3% 15.8% Y N/A 31-Dec-26

HEI uploads ditch records to DrainageDB quarterly, updates GIS 

data, and manages WMD charge information.

MS4Front Annual Subscription and 

Implementation Services
Brian Fischer $16,000 $3,106 $12,894 N 8.3% 0.8% Y N/A 31-Dec-26 HEI completes updates to MS4Front on an as-requested basis.

Comprehensive Wetland Protection and 

Management Plans Annual Reporting - 2025
Chris Otterness $17,000 $3,106 $13,894 N 30.0% 29.2% Y N/A 9-Feb-26 Summarization of WCA reviews in 2025 are underway.

Hansen Park IESF Rehabilitation Alex Schmidt $18,300 $3,106 $15,194 N 10.0% 17.9% Y N/A 30-Jun-26
We have begun initial investigation including sampling of sand 

substrate

Values in red are either potential budget concerns or changes in schedule. 

The "overage" for those projects shown as "over budget" is not billed to the District. The cost to date column reflects HEi's actual internal cost. Projects are considered within budget if ± 5%.

District Engineer - Monthly Project Report January 2026

Rice Creek Watershed District

1 of 1

239



20.0%

60.0%

10.0%

99.0%

80.0%

40.0%

40.0%

30.0%

60.0%

95.0%

8.3%

8.3%

30.0%

10.0%

29.9%

57.3%

9.7%

105.5%

59.8%

38.3%

39.9%

32.5%

60.3%

53.2%

15.8%

0.8%

29.2%

17.9%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 110% 120%

East Moore Lake Stormwater Resilience and Water
Quality Analysis

Old Central Aventue Feasibility Study

JD 3 Clearwater Creek Final Plans

2025 District Wide Modeling Program Annual Updates

Lake Johanna Outlet Structure Feasibility Study

Jones Lake Outlet Modification and Dredging Project:
Final Design and Permitting

Hardwood Creek / JD 2 Subwatershed Storage Feasibility
Study

ARJD 1 Repair Report

ACD 53-62 Branches 5 & 6 Final Design Bidding and
Construction Management

2026 Stormwater Management Grant Program
Application Review

GIS and Ditch Records Maintenance; DrainageDB Annual
Subscription

MS4Front Annual Subscription and Implementation
Services

Comprehensive Wetland Protection and Management
Plans Annual Reporting - 2025

Hansen Park IESF Rehabilitation

District Engineer
Monthly Progress Report (Actual & Estimated Progress) 

Through January 2026

Percentage of Budget Utilized Percentage of Work Completed

240


	02-11-2026 Agenda
	02-11-2026 Dividers
	1-28-26 BD minutes draft
	02-11-2026 Dividers
	Consent_Agenda_Statement_02-11-2026
	PERMIT_Reviews_02-11-2026_Map_ER_25-123
	02-11-2026 Dividers
	R26-01 Barnes Board Packet
	Board Memo Template_2025 (11).pdf
	R26-01 Barnes CAC Packet.pdf
	R26-01_Barnes_RCWDBoardPacket.pdf
	small plans R26-01.pdf
	SWCD Cost Estimate - Barnes_ Raingarden B & Porous Pavers.pdf
	Cost Est-RG B 
	Cost Est_Porous Pavers

	BID_Sandstrom quote 1-12-26.pdf


	R26-02 WBT Board Packet
	Board Memo Template_2025 (12).pdf
	R26-02 WBT CAC Packet_reduced size.pdf
	R26-02_WBT Shoreline_RCWDBoardPacket.pdf
	small plans R26-02.pdf
	SWCD Cost Estimate - WBT LAKESHORE.pdf
	COST

	Sandstrom_white bear twp bald eagle quote 11-13-25.pdf


	02-11-2026 Dividers
	0 SMG Combined
	2-11 SMG Public Hearing Memo.pdf
	0 karth pond.pdf
	Arden Hills Karth Pond.pdf
	0 karth safl.pdf
	Arden Hills Karth SAFL.pdf
	0 lino lakes.pdf
	Copy of Measurable Outcome Data  Related Information.pdf
	Lino Lakes  Regenerative Air Sweeper.pdf
	0 new brighton.pdf
	0 shoreview iesf.pdf
	Shoreview Target Pond IESF.pdf
	0 shoreview pavers.pdf
	Shoreview Pervious Pavers.pdf

	02-11-2026 Dividers
	Annual Designation of Depository and Newspaper
	02-11-2026 Dividers
	Board Memo - Jones Lake EAW Finding of Fact
	Combined Jones Lake Findings of Fact Final
	1-Jones Lake Findings of Fact Final
	2-Appendix A- Comment Response Table Final
	3- MDH Comment Letter
	4- Metropolitan Council Comment Letter
	5-MPCA Comment Letter
	6- DNR Comment Letter

	02-11-2026 Dividers
	Krejcarek memorial donations memo
	Resolution accept gifts
	02-11-2026 Dividers
	2-11-26 check register
	02-11-2026 Dividers
	January_2026_engineers report_table
	January_2026_engineers report_chart



